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Wilibros Group Inc is global contractor serving the oil gas and power industries We

provide project management engineering construction maintenance and Iifecvcle extension

services to industry and government entities Founded in 1903 Willbros has performed work

for more than 400 clients in over 60 countries and is listed on the New York Stock Exchange

under the symbol WG
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Dear Fellow Shareholders

During 2010 Willbros marked another milestone toward

eahzing its vision to be fully diversified engineering and

consti uction services piovider On July 2010 ss ith the

acquisition of Infi asti LIX maintenance and consti uction

solutions providei to the electric power and natural
gas

transmission and distribution industi we fui ther advanced

our strategic vision to grow Willbios by diversifying our

service ofki ings and end market exposui while also

increasing the revenue we generate from ecurring sei vices

The InfiastruX acquisition positioned Willbros to pai ticipate

in significant growth opportunities in the U.S electric

transmission and disti ibution infrasti ucture maiket as well

as enhance our midstream offes ings in the emerging

unconventional shale plays Now ieported as our Utility

Ii ansmission Distribution Utility TD segment

InfrastruX affoids Willhios more balanLed portfolio both

from end market and commodity cycle perspectives

As rse entered 2010 demand for our sci vices in all of our

segments continued to be aufected by the sveak economy

Eoi the
yeai genci ated revenue of $1.2 billion and net

loss fioin continuing operations of S3 1.8 million or S0.74

pci diluted shaic The full veai iesults weic impacted by

special aftei tax items associated ss ith the Infrasti uX

acquisition and previous acquisition These special items

had the net eftect of improving urn 2110 results an

additional 89.3 million or s0.22 pci shai

Our 2111 pci foi mance was cleai
ly

not \vhat we had

anticipated We continued to be challenged by weakei

demand foi our services hich \\ as furthem compounded by

poor visibility
for the timing of both committed as well as

anticipated projects In our Downstream and Utility Tl
segments found om selves maintaining resomce levels

sufficient to uutiate and complete certain projects that weic

delayed oi cancelled on shoi notice The combination of

these cii cumstances resulted in misalignnient of om costs

ith the uncertain timing of ieveuues

In the fourth
quai ter of 2010 we had cost ovei tuns on

cci tam Canadian projects Pitject management erioms and

fla\ved estimating assumptions led to lower pioductivity and

schedule dela which caused to pci form construction in

harsher \veathei conditions Unseasonably cold tempei atumes

even for Canada reduced our pioductivity even more We

have conducted thoiough revie\v of the issues in Canada

and have determined that the pmoblems were not due to the

design of our systems and piocesses but rathei \vei caused

less than robust nmanageinent oversight at both the
project

and business unit level compounded by deviations from our

execution plan and schedule delays We are in the
process

of

sti engthening the management structure in Canada and

at the corpoiate level \ve have implemented additional

management oversight We do not believe the circumstances

that led to the project loss
pi ovisions in Canada exist

elsewbeic in the Company

Out fnanLial iesults bile disapp3immting do not diminish

the multiple successes we bad in 211 bieb included

excellent iesults on our majom pioject execution in the

United States Om superioi perforimmance on the Fayetteville

Express Pipeline PEP pioject enabled us to deliver better

than expected results on that pioject Additionall\ iii urn

Upstream segment oum Eimgmneem ing business unit exceeded

its plan as it continued to des chop its maintenance and

integm its sci rice uf1ci ing and expanded its aIIm nice with

inajui gas ti ansmmssmon and stui age opeiator We reduced



costs in our losnstieam segment and as anticipated its

performance was positis in the second halt of the
year

Ow ness Utility TM segment svon tss major
eleeti ic

transmission piojeets iii Maine and solai genei anon project

on Long Island These piojects coupled with hooked

Competine Renesvable Enei gy Zone CREZ ssoi us

Tex is give us much hettei
visihility

in the Utility

segment going foi ss aid

Strategical1 ss ai in the midst of ti ansfoi mation that is

both cultural and operational.We have refbcused oui business

model on Noi th Amei ica and expanded our addicssable

markets to include the expansion and improvement of the

North Amei ican electric utility gi id in addition to the

inassis unconventional shale play developments in the

United States the oil sands in Canada the second lai gest

hydiocarbon reserves in the svorld and the industrial process

and refnnng markets

Each of these markets cai ics ss ith it significant recui ing

sei vices opportunities that aie key tenet of urn sti ategy

Ci owing oui evenue sti cam associated svith moi ecurring

services has the potential to reduce the impact of seasonal

revenue declines in the foui th and fitst quat tei and provide

impi oed stability and
pi edictability

We added ke position to the management team in 201ff

In addition to sepai ating the CEO and COO positions and

bringing dedicated resoui cc to the COO position ss also

added the sales and mai keting function to the executive

suite We base high expectations fiom the ness Is coiifigui ed

managenscut team ss hich has the skills and experience to

execute on our vision to delis ci pi
ufitable

gi
oss th

As 55 move into II orn foremost
pi

iOi it i5 strengthening

Willbros financial position.The dircctis to our management

team is to focus on foui pi imar objectives

Reduce debt bs approximately S5 slOt million to

signific inth educe interest expense and provide better

fin incial flexibility This should help tianslate moic of oui

EBITIA into earnings

Continue to emphasize and impios our pioject

management tools and capabilities to eplicate the iesults we

achiesed on the PEP pioject

Maintain oui focus on North Ainei ica Oui piesence in

the U.S electi ic ti ansnsissiois iuai kets the unconventional

sh ile pla and the Canadian oil sands presents the best

gross th oppoi trinities foi Willbios This is ss heie our key



mai kets and resources conic togcthei to otter the best

risk adjusted returns Thciefore sic are not planning to

pui sue irge international piojccts like we did in 10

Remain focused on ifety Our objective for the yeai is

to reduce injuries by jU0o 1We differentiate Willbros on this

value both as an employer and as pioxider of sers ices

Looking ahead we are verb encoui aged is ith the investments

Si made in 2011 and oui plans for 2011 and beyond We

have positioned Willbios to participate thi cc robust and

giowing Noi th American markets and the outlook for each

of our segments
is

positive

ai gathering momentum in our new LJtilit1
T1

segment
and can expand oui reles ant experience capabilities

and capacity as sic execute the more than Sff million of

Texas CREZ svoik and the major projects in the Northeast

is noss have in backlog With this mcauingful ness

experience and enhanced project skills and capabilities we

can pai ticipate in utility
transmission construction maiket

us svhich demand is expected to exceed available capacity

cieating sellers market foi cousti uction services Os er S50

billion in new piojects aic pioposed for this sector us the

next eight yeais

We iemi ned our Dowusti cam segment to piofitability in the

second half of 2010 and continue to monitor and reduce oui

costs As our customei generate more cash flow is expect

our integrated EEC offering to enable us to participate

profitabl in the small capital piojects we anticipate svill be

in the foiefiont of their spending plans We expect this

segment to contribute positive iesults in II

We ai positioned svell to participate in significant

oppoi trinities us the Upstream segment The oil sands us

Alberta are expected to attract over Slff billion in capital

oser the next 10
ycais as low political and exploiation risks

and modeiate pioduction costs coupled svith large reserves

base has diass investment fiom both large ustegrated and

uatioual oil companies We offer multiple product and

seivice lines that enable us to provide solutions for capital

piojects and maintenance of operating facilities Expansion

of our U.S pipeline EC services to include regional offices

in order to delivei oui services locally to oil and gas

producers places us in the nexus of the development of these

new sources of supply The production from the shale plays

in North Amei ica includes both gas and oil and is an active

and gioss ing usarket lisdusti studies place the capital spend

on shale play iisfrastructui at S6 billion per year thiough



O2O Abundant and fas ot ably priced natural gas iesei yes also

portend mote use of natni al
gas

foi
pover genei ation as it is

vie\ved as botb economical and environineittally favorable

Aeioss all of Not th America existing hydrocaibon infrastruetni

is aging and increased regulatoiy serntin is expected to

inctease demand for our pipeline maintenance and
mtegi it1

set vices in an annual market gauged at S5 billion
per year

Respettlull submitted

John McNabh II

Clint nati ol the Iioaid

We believe all of our segments are on an npsard trajectoiy

and that we have the oppoi tunit to achies growth in the

electric ti ansmission space compai able to hat we

accomplished in big inch cioss eountiy pipelines five years

ago /e have the backlog to build our skills and capability

we have great organization with great people and we are

focused on the right objectives We can deliver outstanding

resnlts We did it before and we can do it again

Robeit P.. Flail

Pt esiden and

Jolt .\ kXoff II attf Robet ii itt

Aptil 62011 hief Exec ntis Ofltcei
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements All statements other than statements of historical

facts included in this Form 10-K that address activities events or developments which we expect or

anticipate will or may occur in the future including such things as future capital expenditures including the

amount and nature thereof oil gas gas liquids and power prices demand for our services the amount and

nature of future investments by governments expansion and other development trends of the oil and gas

refinery petrochemical and power industries business strategy expansion and growth of our business and

operations the outcome of government investigations and legal proceedings and other such n1atters are

forward-looking statements These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions and analyses we
made in light of our experience and our perception of historical trends current conditions and expected

future developments as well as other factors we believe are appropriate under the circurlistances Hpwever
whether actual results and developments will conform to our expectations and predictions is subject to

number of risks and uncertainties As result actual results could differ materially from our expectations

Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those contemplated by our-forward-looking statemeAts

include but are not limited to the following

curtailment of capital expenditures and the unavailability of project funding in the oil and gas

refinery petrochemical and power industries

increased capacity and decreased demand for our services in the more competitive industry

segments that we serve

reduced creditworthiness of our customer base and higher risk of non-payment of receivables

inability to lower our cost structure to remain competitive in the market

inability of the energy service sector to reduce costs in the short term to level where our

customers project economics support reasonable level of development work

inability to predict the timing of an increase in energy sectpr capital spending which results in

staffing below the level required when the market recovers

reduction of services to existing and prospective clients as they bring hitorically out-sourced

services back in-house to preserve intellectual capital and minimize layoffs

the consequences we may encounter if we fail to comply with the terms and conditions of our final

settlements with the Department of Justice DOJ and the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC including the imposition of civil or criminal fines penalties enhanced monitoring

arrangements or other sanctions that might be imposed by the DOJ and SEC

the issueØ we may encounter with espect to the federal monitor appointed under our Deferred

Prosecution Agreement with the DOJ and any changes in our business practices which the monitor

may require

the commencement by foreign governmental authorities of investigations into the actions of our

current and former employees and the determination that such actions constituted violations of

foreign law

difficulties we may encounter in connection with the previous sale and disposition of our Nigeria

assets and Nigeria based operations including obtaining indemnification for any losses we may
experience if due to the non-performance by the purchaser of these assets claims are made

against any parent company guarantees we provided to the extent those guarantees may be

determined to have continued validity

the dishonesty of ethploees and/or other representatives or their refusal to abide applicable laws

and our established policies and rules

adverse weather conditions not anticipated in bids and estimates

project cost overruns unforeseen schedule delays and the application of liquidated damages

the occurrence during the course of our operations of accidents and injuries to ou persOnnel as

well as to third parties that negatively affect our safety record which is factor used by many
clients to pre-qualify and otherwise award work to contractors in our industry

cancellation of projects in whole or in part for any reason



failing to realize cost recoveries on claims or change orders from projects completed or in progress

within reasonable period after completion of the relevant project

political or social circumstances impeding the progress of our work and increasing the cost of

performance

inability to obtain and maintain legal registration status in one or more foreign countries in which we

are seeking to do business

failure to obtain the timely award of one or more projects

inability to identify and acquire suitable acquisition targets or to finance such acquisitions on

reasonable terms

inability to hire and retain sufficient skilled labor to execute our current work our work in backlog and

future work we have not yet been awarded

inability to execute cost-reimbursable projects within the target cost thus eroding contract margin

and potentially contract income on any sudh project

inability to obtainsufficient surety bonds or letters of credit

inability to obtain adequate financing

loss of the services of key management personnel

the demand for energy moderating or diminishing

downturns in general economic market or business conditions in our target markets

changes in and interpretation of U.S and foreign tax laws that impact our worldwide provision for

income taxes and effective income tax rate

the potential adverse effects on our operating results if our non-U.S operations became taxable in

the United States

changes in applicable laws or regulations or changed interpretations thereof including climate

change legislation

changes in the scope of our expected insurance coverage

inability to manage insurable risk at an affordable cost

enforceable claims for which we are not fully insured

incurrence of insurable claims in excess of our insurance coverage

the occurrence of the risk factors listed elsewhere in this Form 10-K or described in our periodic

filings with the SEC and

other factors most of which are beyond our control

Consequently all of the forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-K are qualified by these

cautionary statements and there can be no assurance that the actual results or developments we anticipate

will be realized or even if substantially realized that they will have the consequences for or effects on our

business or operations that we anticipate today We assume no obligation to update publicly any such

forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise except as

may be required by law

Unless the context requires or is otherwise noted all references in this Form 10-K to Willbros the

Company we us and our refer to Willbros Group Inc its consolidated subsidiaries and their

predecessors Unless the context requires or is otherwise noted all references in this Form 10-K to dollar

amounts except share and per share amounts are expressed in thousands



PART

Items and Business and Properties

General

We are provider of services to global end markets serving the oil and gas refinery petrochemical and

power industries Our services which include engineering procurement and construction either individually

or together as an integrated EPC service offering turnaround maintenance and other specialty services

are critical to the ongoing expansion and operation of energy infrastructure Within the global energy market

we specialize in designing constructing upgrading and repairing midstream infrastructure such as pipelines

compressor stations and related facilities for onshore and coastal locations as well as downstream facilities

such as refineries We also provide specialty turnaround services tank services heater services

construction services and safety services and fabricate specialty items for hydrocarbon processing units Our

services include maintenance and small capital projects for transmission and distribution facilities for electric

and natural gas utilities as well as larger capital projects for renewable power generation and electric

transmission projects We believe our engineering planning and project management expertise as it relates

to optimizing the structure and execution of project provides us with competitive advantages in the

markets we serve

Our near term focus is on the North American markets for natural gas and electric infratructure We
believe our service offering is well aligned for these markets and that we can generate more attractive risk

adjusted returns in North America than in other locations around th world However depending upon

market conditions and our assessment of an appropriate risk-adjusted return we may work in developing

countries Through our legacy international pipeline construction business we have constructed

approximately 124000 miles 200000 kilometers of pipelines in our history building global reputation for

performing quality work on time often under challenging conditions Having performed work in over 60

countries we believe our experience gives us competitive advantage in frontier areas where experience in

dealing with project logistics is an important consideration for project award and execution We complement

our pipeline construction market expertise with service offerings to the downstream hydrocarbon processing

market providing integrated solutions for turnaround maintenance and capital projects for the refining and

petrochemical industries We have performed these downstream services for over 100 refineries in the

United States and have experience in certain international markets We offer our clients full asset lifecycle

services and in some cases provide the entire scope of services for project from front-end engineering

and design to procurement construction and commissioning as well as ongoing facility operations and

maintenance Our Utility Transmission Distribution segment Jtility TD acquired with the purchase of

the InfrastruX Group expands our services reach into the transmission and distribution markets for both

electricity and natural gas With operations in the Northeast South Central and Midwest regions of the

United States and customer relationships established for as many as 50 years we are positioned to

participate in the anticipated electric transmission build-out linking new renewable generation facilities to end

markets and in the reliability improvements planned for aging transmission grids With over 100 years of

experience in the global energy infrastructure market our full asset lifecycle services are utilized by major

pipeline transportation companies exploration and production companies refining companies and electric

utilities as well as government entities worldwide

We maintain àur headquarters at 4400 Post Oak Parkway Suite 1000 Houthon TX 77027 our

telephone number is 713-403-8000 All significant operations are carried out by the following material direct

or indirect subsidiarieŁ

Willbros United States Holdings Inc

Willbros Construction U.S LLC

Willbros Canada Holdings ULC

Willbros Downstream LLC

Wink Engineering LLC

Willbros Engineers U.S LLC

Willbros Project Services U.S LLC

Willbros Construction Services Canada L.P

Willbros Micrwest Pipeline Construction Canada L.P

Willbros Government Services U.S LLC



Wilibros Middle East Ltd

Willbros Overseas Ltd

The Oman Construction Company TOCO L.L.C

Construction Turnaround Services U.S L.L.C

International Limited

InfrastruX Group LLC

Chapman Construction Co L.P

Texas Electric Utility Construction Ltd

lnterCon Construction Inc and

Hawkeye LLC

The Wilibros corporate structure is designed to comply with jurisdictional and registration requirements

and to minimize worldwide taxes Additional subsidiaries may be formed
in specific work countries where

such subsidiaries are necessary or useful to comply with local laws or tax objectives

Our public internet site is http//www.willbros.com We make available free of charge through our internet

site via link to Edgar Online our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-0 current

reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with or furnish it to the Securities and Exchange Commission Our common
stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol WG

In addition we currently make available on our internet site annual reports to stockholders You will need

to have the Adobe Acrobat Reader software on your computer to view these documents which are in the

.PDF format link to Adobe Systems Incorporateds internet site is provided to assist with obtaining this

software

Willbros Background

We are the successor to the pipeline construction business of Williams Brothers Company which was

started in 1908 by Miller and David Williams and eventually became The Williams Companies Inc major

U.S energy company Williams

In December 1975 Williams elected to discontinue its pipeline construction activities and sold

substantially all of the non-U.S assets and international entities comprising its pipeline construction division

to newly formed independently owned Panamanian corporation Ownership of the new privately-held

company eventually renamed Willbros Group Inc changed infrequently during the 1980s and 1990s until

an initial public offering of common stock was completed in August 1996

Having been in business for over 100 years we have achieved many milestones which are summarized

as follows

1908 Miller and David Williams form the construction business of Williams Brothers Company

1915 Began pipeline work in the United States

1923 First project outside the United States performed in Canada

1939 Began pipeline work in Venezuela first project outside North America

1942-44 Served as principal contractor on the Big Inch and Little Big Inch War Emergency

Pipelines in the United States which delivered Gulf Coast crude oil toihe Eastern Seaboard

1954-55 Built Alaskas first major pipeline system consisting of 625 miles of petroleum products

pipeline housing communications two tank farms five pump stations and marine dock and

loading facilities

1960 Built the first major liquefied petroleum gas pipeline system the 2175-mile Mid-America

Pipeline in the United States including six delivery terminals two operating terminals 13

pump stations communications and cavern storage

1962 Began operations in Nigeria with the commencement of construction of the TransNiger

Pipeline 170-mile crude oil pipeline



1964-65 Built the 390-mile Santa Cruz to Sica Sica crude oil pipeline in Bolivia The highest altitude

reached by this line is 14760 feet 4500 meters above sea level

1965 Began operations in Oman with the commencement of construction of the 175-mile Fahud

to Muscat crude oil pipeline system

1970-72 Built the Trans-Ecuadorian Pipeline crossing the Andes Mountains consisting of 315 miles

of 20-inch and 26-inch pipeline seven pump stations four pressure-reducing stations and

six storage tanks Considered the most logistically difficult pipeline project ever completed at

the time

1974-76 Led joint venture which built the northernmost 225 miles of the Trans Alaska Pipeline

System

1984-86 Constructed through joint venture the All-American Pipeline System 1240-mile 30-inch

heated pipeline including 23 pump stations in the United States

1988-92 Performed project management engineering procurement and field support services to

expand the Great Lakes Gas Transmission System in the northern United States The

expansion involved modifications to 13 compressor stations and the addition of 660 miles of

36-inch pipeline in 50 separate loops

1992-93 Rebuilt oil field gathering systems in Kuwait as part of the post-war reconstruction effort

1996 Listed shares upon completion of an initial public offering of common stock on the New

York Stock Exchange under the symbol WG
2002 Completed engineering and project management of the Gulfstream project $1.6 billion

natural gas pipeline system from Mobile Alabama crossing the Gulf of Mexico and serving

markets in central and southern Florida

2003 Completed an EPC contract for the 665-mile 30-inch crude oil ChadCameroon Pipeline

Project through joint venture with another international contractor

2007 Completed the sale of our Nigerian interests in February 2007 Acquired Midwest

Management 1987 Ltd Midwest in July 2007 and Integrated Service Company in

November2007 renamed Willbros Downstream LLC lnServ in 2010

2008 Completed two 36-inch loops in Northern Alberta for TransCanada This was the first major

project in Canada following the Midwest acquisition

Completed approximately 190 miles of the Southeast Supply Header LLC SESH project

that connects the Perryville Hub in northeast Louisiana with the Gulfstream Natural Gas

System L.L.C pipeline in Mobile County Alabama

2009 Changed our corporate domicile from Panama to Delaware on March 2009

Acquired the engineering business of Wink Companies LLC in July 2009 renamed Wink

Engineering LLC Wink in February 2010

Established new quality productivity and safety performance standards on the Texas

Independence Pipeline project 143 miles of 42-inch natural gas pipeline in East Texas

2010 Completed major portion of the Fayetteville Express Pipeline on schedule 145 miles of

42-inch natural gas pipeline in Arkansas and Mississippi

AcqUired the InfrastruX Group on July 2010 entering the services market for electric

transmission and distribution infrastructure

Business Segments

Prior to the InfrastruX acquisition we operated through two business segments Upstream Oil Gas

and Downstream Oil Gas These segments operate primarily in the United States Canada and Oman On

July 2010 we closed on the acquisition of InfrastruX InfrastruX is provider of electric power and natural

gas transmission and distribution maintenance and construction solutions to customers from their regional

operating centers in the South Central Midwest arid East Coast regions of the United States This

acquisition significantly diversifies our capabilities and end markets The acquired InfrastruX assets and

business operations have been designated as newly established segment Utility TD



During the third quarter of 2009 we acquired the engineering business of Wink Companies LLC In

conjunction with the Wink acquisition we redefined our business segments from Engineering Upstream Oil

Gas and Downstream Oil Gas to two segments by integrating the existing Engineering segment into the

Upstream Oil Gas segment and Wink into the Downstream Oil Gas segment We believe the inclusion

of engineering services within each segment wilt make our EPC offering even more effective by improving

internal connectivity and providing dedicated specialized engineering services to both the upstream and

downstream markets

Our segments are comprised of strategic business units that are defined by the industry segments
served and are managed separately as each has different operational requirements and strategies

Management evaluates the performance of each operating segment based on operating income To supporf

our segments we have focused corporate operation led by our execulive management team which in

addition to oversight and leadership provides general adminisfrative and financing functions for the

organization The costs to provide these services are allocated as are certain other corporate costs to the

three operating segments

Through our business segments we have been employed by m9re than 400 clients to carry out work in

over 60 countries ThOse segments currently operate primarily in the United States Canada and Oman
Within the past 10 years we have worked in North America the Middle East Africa and Soutlr America

Private sector clients have histor1cally accounted for the majority of our revenue Governmental entities and

agencies have accounted for the remainder Our top 10 clients were responsible for 49.4 percent of our

revenue from continuing operations in 2010 73.0 percent in 2009 and 65.0 percent in 2008

See Note 15 Segment Information in Item 8-of this Form 10-K for more information on our operating

segments

Services Provided

Upstream Oil Gas

We provide individual engineering procurement and construction or fully-integrated EPC expertise

including systems equipment and personnel to design build or replace large-diameter cross-bountry

pipelines fabricate engineered structures process modules and facilities and build oil and gas production

facilities pump stations flow stations gas compressor stations gas processing facilities gathering lines and

related facilities We provide broad array of engineering project -management pipeline integrity and field

services to increase our equipment and personnel utilization We currently provide these services primarily in

the United States Canada and Oman and with our international experience can enter or re-enter

individual country markets when conditions there are attractive to us and present an acceptable risk-adjusted

return

Construction Services

Our earliest success was attributed to our focus and execution of upstream infrastructure projects which

we have grown into our current construction offering encompassing pipeline systems compressor and pump
stations as well as fabrication and ongoing maintenance services to major upstream customers In additiOn

to our core upstream infrastructure construction and maintenance competencies we have developed wide

range of specialty services thatallow us to maximize our resource utilization by providing solutions to difficult

probems for our clients

Pipeline Construction Pipeline construction for both liquids and gas is capital intensive We ownlease

operate and maintain fleet of specialized equipment necessary for operations in this business We prefer

tageting construction of large diameter cross-countrj pipelines in remote areas and harsh climates where

we believe our experience gives us competitive advantage and higher revenue and margins can be

achieved We alsSperform construction of smaller diameter pipelines including gathering liqes utilizing

dedicated resources appropriately structured to meet the unique cost and execution needs of dur customers

In our history we have constructed approximately 124000 miles of pipelines which we believe positions us

in the top tier of pipeline contractors in the world We have developed the expertise to employ automatic

welding processes in the onshore construction of large-diameter greater than 30-inch natural gas pipelinps

and have extensive experience using automatic welding processes in the United States Canada and Oman

The construction of cross-country pipeline involves number of seqyential operations along the

designated pipeline right-of-way These operations are virtually the same for all overland pipelines but

personnel and equipment may vary widely depending upon such factors as the time required for completion

general climatic conditions seasonal weather patterns the number of road crossings the number and size



of river crossings terrain considerations extent of rock formations density of heavy timber and amount of

swamp

Special equipment and techniques are required to construct pipelines across wetlands and offshore We
have used swamp pipe-laying methods extensively in past international projects This expertise is applicable

in wetland regions elsewhere and can provide competitive advantage for projects in geographies such as

southern Louisiana where we expect to see additional work opportunities

Fabrication Fabrication services can be more efficient means of delivering engineered proces or

production equipment with improved schedule certainty and quality We provide fabrication services and are

capable of fabricating such diverse deliverables as process modules station headers valve stations and

flare pipes and tips We currently operate two fabrication facilities in Alberta Canada allowing us the

opportunity to provide process modules and other fabricated assemblies to the heavy oil market in northern

Alberta In addition our fabrication facility in Edmonton applies chrome carbide overlay process which

increases the wear life of pipe used in transporting the bitumen and sand slurry

Facilities Construction Companies in the hydrocarbon value chain require various facilities in the course

of producing processing storing and moving oil gas refined products and chemicals We are experienced

in and capable of constructing facilities such as pump stations flow stations gas processing facilities gas

compressor stations and metering stations We provide full range of services for the engineering design

procurement and construction of processing pumping compression and metering facilities We are capable

of building such facilities onshore offshore in shallow water or in swamp locations The construction of

station facilities while not as capital-intensive as pipeline construction is generally characterized by complex

logistics and scheduling particularly on projects in locations where seasonal weather patterns limit

construction options and in countries where the importation process is difficult Our capabilities have been

enhanced by our experience in dealing with such challenges in numerous countries around the world

Engineering Senices

We specialize in providing engineering services to assist clients in designing engineering and

constructing or expanding pipeline systems compressor stations pump stations fuel storage facilities and

field gathering and production facilities We have developed expertise in addressing the unique engineering

challenges involved with pipeline systems and associated facilities

Natural Gas Transmission Systems We believe we have established strong position as leading

supplier of project management and engineering services to natural gas pipeline transmission companies in

the United States Since 1988 we have provided engineering services for over 20 major natural gas

transmission projects in the United States including the Gulfstream Natural Gas System and both Phase

and Phase II of the Guardian Pipeline Project

Liquids Pipelines and Storage Facility Design We have engineered number of crude oil and refined

petroleum products systems throughout the world and have become recognized for our expertise in the

engineering of systems for the storage and transportation of petroleum products and crude oil In 2001 we

provided engineering and field services for conversion of natural gas system in the mid-western United

States involving over 797 miles of 24-inch to 26-inch diameter pipeline to serve the upper Midwest with

refined petroleum products In 2003 we completed EPC services for the expansion of petroleum products

pipeline to the Midwest involving 12 new pump stations modifications to another 13 pump stations and

additional storage In 2009 we completed an engineering procurement construction management project

for gas liquids pipeline system in the United States from Wyoming to Kansas

Design of Peripheral Systems Our expertise extends to the engineering of wide range of project

peripherals including various types of support buildings and utility systems power generation and electrical

transmission communications systems fire protection water and sewage treatment water transmission

roads and railroad sidings

In addition to our broad infrastructure engineering service offerings we have also developed capabilities

that are unique to the upstream market and critical to successful execution of the most challenging projects

such as

Climatic Constraints In the design of pipelines and associated facilities to be installed in harsh

environments special provisions for metallurgy of materials and foundation design must be addressed We
are experienced in designing pipelines for arctic conditions desert conditions mountainous terrain swamps
and offshore



Environmental Impact of River Crossings/Wetlands We have considerable capability to design pipeline

crossings of rivers streams and wetlands in such way as to minimize environmental impact We possess

expertise to determine the optimal crossing techniques such as open cut directionally-drilled or overhead

and to develop site-specific construction methods to minimize bank erosion sedimentation and other

environmental impacts

Seismic Design and Stress Analysis Our engineers are experienced in seismic design of pipeline

crossings of active faults and areas where soil liquefaction or slope instability may -occur due to seismic

events Our engineers also carry out specialized stress analyses of piping systems that are subjected to

expansion and contraction due to temperature changes as well as loads from equipment and other sources

Hazardous Materials Special care must be taken in the design of pipeline systems transporting sour

gas Sour gas not only presents challenges regarding personnel safety since hydrogen sulfide leaks can be

extremely hazardous but also requires that material be specified to withstand highly corrosive conditions

Our engineers have extensive natural gas experience which includes design of sour gas systems

Hydraulics Analysis for Fluid Flow in Piping Systems We employ engineers Qvith the specialized

knowledge necessary to properly address the effects of both steady-state and transient flow conditions for

wide-variety of fluids transported by pipelines including natural gas crude oil refined petroleum products

natural gas liquids carbon dioxide and water This expertise is important in optimizing the capital costs of

pipeline projects where pipe material costs typically represent significant portion of total project capital

costs

Procurement Services Because procurement plays critical part in the success of any project we
maintain an experienced staff to carry out the procurement of all materials and services Procurement

services are provided to clients as complement to the engineering services performed for project

Material and services procurement is especially critical to the timely completion of construction on the EPC
contracts we undertake We maintain computer-based material procurement tracking and control system
which utilizes software enhanced to meet our specific requirements

Pipeline Integrity Testing Management Maintenance In addition to the capital projects discussed

above we also offer our considerable upstream infrastructure construction expedise to our clients through

our management and maintenance Manage Maintain offerings This allows us to support our clients

with our EPC engineering procurement or construction capabilities on recurring basis through alliance

agreements whereby we will be the provider of program development project management design

engineering geographic information systems GIS integrity arid maintenance services with respect to

existing pipeline systems In 2009 we entered into our most significant alliance agreement with NiSource

Gas Transmission Storage NGTS unit of NiSource Inc NYSE NI We believe this form of

alliance which includes participation in the development of the annual NGTS capital maintenance GIS

and integrity programs will yield significant benefits to both parties and serve as model for future work
much of which is currently performed by our customers

EPC Services

EPC projects often yield profit margins on the engineering and construction components consistent with

stand-alone contracts for similar services however the benefits from performing EPC projects include the

incremental income associated with project management and the income associated with the procurement

component of the contract Both of these income generating activities are relatively low risk compared with

the construction aspect of the project In performing EPC contracts we participate in numerous aspects of

project and are therefore able to determine the most efficient design permitting procurement and

constryction sequence for project in connection with making engineering and constructability decisions

EPC contracts enable us to deploy our resources more efficiently and capture those efficiencies in the form

of iræproved margins on the engineering and construction components of these projects at the same time

optimizing the overall project solution and execution for the client While EPC contracts carry lower margins

for the procurement component the increased control over all aspects of the project coupled with

cOmpetitive market margins for engineering and construction portions makes these types of contracts

attractive to us and we believe to our customers

Specialty Sen/ices

-We utilize the skill sets and resources from our engineering construction and EPC services to provide

wide range of support arid ancillary services related to the construction operation repair and rehabilitation of

pipelines and other hydrocarbon processing facilities Frequently such services require the utilization of



specialized equipment which is costly and requires specific operating expertise Due to the initial equipment

cost and operating expertise required many client companies hire us to perform these services We own

and operate variety of specialized equipment that is used to support construction projects and to provide

wide range of oillTeld and plant services

Downstream Oil Gas

We provide integrated full-service specialty construction turnaround repair and maintenance services

to the downstream energy infrastructUre market.which consists primarily of major integrated oil companies

independent refineries product terminals and petrochemical companies We also provide services to select

EPC firms independent power producers government entities specialty process facilities and ammonia and

fertilizer manufacturing plants and facilities We provide these services primarily in the United States

however our experience includes international projects Our principal services include

construction maintenance and turnaround services for downstream facilities including

revamp/reconditioning of fluid catalytic cracking FCC units one of the main process units in

refinery which have three to five year rquired maintenapce intervals in order to maintain production

efficiency

manufacturing services for process heaters heater coils alloy piping specialty components and

other equipment for installation in oil refineries

heater services including design manufacture and installation of fired heaters in refining and

process plants

tank services for construction maintenance or repair of petroleum storage tanks typically located at

pipeline terminals and refineries

safety services for supplementing refinerys safety personnel permitting procedures and providing

safety equipment

government services through building and managing fueling depots and other fueling systems and

evaluating maintaining and building petroleum oil and lubricant POL facilities

multi-disciplinary engineering services to clients in the petroleum refining chemicals and

petrochemicals and oil and gas industries and

EPC services through program management and EPC project services

Construction Maintenance and Turnaround Seivices When performing construction and maintenance

project as part of refinery turnaround detailed planning and execution is imperative in order to minimize

the length of the outage which can cost owners millions of dollars in downtime Our experience includes

successful turnaround execution on the largest most complex FCC units Our record in providing

construction-driven approach with attention to planning scheduling and safety places us at the forefront of

qualified bidders in North America for work on FCC units and qualifies us for most turnaround projects of

interest These services include refractory services furnace re-tube and revamp projects stainless and

alloy welding services and heavy rigging and equipment setting The skills and experience gained from our

turnarourid performance is complementary to our construction services for new units expansions and

revamp projects

Manufacturing Seniices We have manufacturing facilities with specialty welding and plate cutting and

rolling capabilities located on two sites in the Tulsa Oklahoma area with easy access to truck rail air and

river barge transportation through the inland most ice-free port in the United States the Kerr-McClellan

Nqvigation System Specialty equipment that can be fabricated includes FCC components reactors and

regenerators refractory process heater coils and components and process piping spools alloy and carbon

steel Our Mohawk facility consistS of 150000 square feet of manufacturing space which includes

significant convection section fabrication capacity and which also allows us to fabricate process heaters and

furnace components We believe our ability to combine the quality fabrication and timely manufacturing of

these components is complementary to other services we provide and offers competitive advantage for us

Heater Seniices As vertically-integrated provider of process heater services in North America we can

perform engineering studies process mechanical structural and instrumentation and electrical design

fabrication and manufacture and installation and erection of fired heaters in one-stop shop We also

specialize in modifications to existing fired heaters for expanded service or process improvement
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Tank Services We provide services to the above-ground storage tank industry Our capabilities include

American Petroleum Institute API compliant tank maintenance and repair floating roof seals floating roof

installations and repairs secondary containment bottoms cone roof and structure replacements and new

API compliant aboveground storage tanks We provide these services as stand-alone or in combination

including EPC solutions

Safety Services We provide both safety services and equipment to support the safety and qyality

requirements of our clients We can provide safety supervisors confined space and fire watch services

confined space rescue and training safety planning services technicians training drug scireerling and

medical personnel Our safety services also include safety service vehicles to support the services offered

and to provide necessary equipment including first aid equipment fire retardant clothing fall protection

equipment fresh air equipment gas detectors and breathing air supply trailers We are an authorized dealer

for fire-retardant and Nomex safety clothing and variety of equipment lines

U.S Government Services We provide government services primarily in building and managing

fueling systems Since 1981 we have established our position with U.S government agencies as leading

engineering contractor for jet fuel storage as well as aircraft fueling facilities having performed the

engineering for major projects at eight U.S miIitary bases including three air bases outside the United

States The award of these projects was based largely on contractor experience and personnel

qualifications In the past 10 years we have also won six Design-Build-Own-Operate-Maintain projects to

provide fueling facilities at military bases in the United States for the U.S Defense Energy Support Center

From time to time we add additional features to these facilities such as tanks and pumps for alternative fuels

In 2009 we were selected as contractor by the U.S Navys Naval Facilities Engineering Command

NAVFAC We compete for task orders under the Engineering Service Centers multiple-award Indefinite

Delivery Indefinite Quantity lDlQ contract for assessments inspections repair and construction services

for POL systems at U.S Navy locations worldwide The total contract value is up to $350 million In

August 2010 the NAVFAC awarded Willbros Government Services five separate task orders under its global

$350 million IDIQ construction and construction services contract for POL fuel systems The task orders

include various inspections construction and repair at Eielson Air Force Base AK Misawa Air Force Base

Japan Naval Air Station Oceana Virginia Beach VA Naval Support Activity Panama City FL and Naval

Air Weapons Station China Lake CA The work began in August andis scheduled for completion in early

2011 We continue to compete for additional task orders under this IDIQ contract

Engineering Services The acquisition of Wink in July 2009 enables us to provide project management

engineering and material procurement services to the refining industries and government agencies including

chemical/process mechanical civil structural electrical instrumentation/controls and environmental We
provide our engineering services through resources located at the project site or at our offices in Louisiana

Our comprehensive services include among others

project development conceptual design front-end engineering and feasibility studies

project engineering services

definitive design and drafting services

project management estimating scheduling and controls

turnkey EPC arrangements

field engineering and construction liaison services

material and services procurement

planning and management of maintenance programs and

topographic hydrographic and engineering as-built surveying including the establishment of rights-

of-way for public utilities and industrial uses

These services are furnished to number of oil gas power refining and government clients on stand

alone basis as well as part of EPC contracts undertaken by us

EPC Services The refining and process industries strive to minimize costs through operating efficiencies

and hiring experienced process engineering as needed It is often more cost effective to engage
contractor to oversee and manage the planning engineering procurement installation and commissioning

of new capacity additions revamps or new process units to support the need to meet new refining or
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manufacturing specifications Our experience and capability covers the breadth of all process units in

refinery allowing us to offer clients single source solution for expansion and revamp programs We seek to

do this in the most efficient competitive manner and supply both our own personnel and supplemehtal

services of other contractors as needed

Utility TD
We provide wide range of services in electric power and natural gas transriiission and distribution

which include comprehensive maintenance and construction repair and restoration of utility infrastructure

Electric Power TD Sevices

We provide broad spectrum of overhead and underground electric power TD services from the

maintenance and construction of high-voltage transmission linS to the installation of local service iines and

meters

Electric Power Transmission and Substation We maintain and construct overhead and updergroupd

transmission lines up to 500-ky Overhead transmission services include the installation maintenance and

repair of transmission structures involving wood concrete steel pole and steel lattice towei configurations

Underground transmission services include the installation and maintenance of underground transmission

cable and its associated duct conduit and manhole systems Electric power transmission also includes

substation services which involve the maintenance construction expansion calibration and testing of

electric power substations and components We subcontract related electric power design and engineering

work if required

Electric Power Distribution We maintain construct and upgrade underground and overhead electric

power distribution lines from 34.5-ky to household voltage levels Our services encompass all facets of

electric power distribution systems including primary and secondary voltage cables wood and steel poles

transformers switchgear capacitors underground duct manhole systems residential and commerpial and

electric meter installation

Emergency Storm Response Our natiqnwide emergency storm response capabilities span both electric

power transmission and distribution systems We provide storm response services for our existing customers

oh-system as well as customers with which we have no ongoing Master Service Agreement MSA
relationships off-system Typically with little notice our crews deploy nationally in response to hurricanes

ice storms tornadoes floods and other natural disasters which damage crItical electric TD infrastructure

Some notable examples of major emergency storm response deployments in 2008 include the rebuilding of

electric power distribution systems damaged by Hurricane Gustav in Louisiana Hurricane Ike in Texas and

ice storms in New England

Cable Restoration and Assessment In the U.S and internationally we offer two complementary

services for the restoration and assessment of underground power caDles to utilities

CabIeCURE is proprietary process for the restoration of aged underground electric power cables

Using the process we inject silicone-based CabIeCURE fluid into electrical cables at transformer

or other termination point while the lines remain energized The fluid extends the life of electric power
cables by creating barrier to moisture and repairs and prevents damage caused by water treeing

type of progressive failure of the insulation caused by water absorption We perform initial testing to

determine if the cable can be treated using CabIeCURE technology treat cables that.we determine

are good candidates and often provide replacement services for those that are not We have

worldwide exclusive license for this technology from Dow Corning which holds the patentson the

CabIeCURE fluid We also hold number of patents on certain of the materials associated with the

treatment process including Dimethyldibutoxysilane fluid developed by UtilX Corporation We have

injected over 17000 miles of cable to date backed by 20 year warranty

CabIeWISE is proprietary non-destructive online electrical system-condition assessment process

that enables electric power utilities and wide range of commercial and industrial facilities to evaluate

the condition of cable systems transformers and switchgear Knowing cable systems weaknesses

enables owners asset managers and reliability engineers to be proactive in finding and fixing

problems before they cause outages We hold the patent and trademark to CabIeWISE
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Natural Gas TD Services

We provide full spectrum of natural gaØ TD services from the maintenance and construction of large

diameter transmission pipelines through the installation of residential natural gas service

Natural Gas Transmission We construct maintain and upgrade steel natural gas transmission pipelines

in diameters up to 42 inches Our services include right-of-way clearing trenching transporting velding and

laying pipe post-construction testing and restoration We construct and maintain upstream gathering

systems including well connects and compressor stations for our natural gas and to lesser extent oil

industry customers While most of our projects have been in support of natural gas transmission we have

also constructed maintained and upgraded pipelines for transportation of other gases and liquids

Additionally we offer other complementary services including pipeline integrity assessments hydrostatic

testing cathodic protection and spill remediation

Natural Gas Distribution Pipeline We construct maintain and upgrade natural gas distribution pipelines

Our services include trenching transporting welding or fusing and laying pipe post-construction integrity

testing site restoration and meter setting

Specialty Services

We also provide other specialty services to customers nationwide These services include

Utility-line Locating Our crews locate underground electric power gas telecom water cable and

sewer utilities prior to excavation Qur locating services sometimes require physical visit to the

location whereby our employees will locate and mark utility infrastructure In other cases we are able

to provide the excavating party clearance to dig without having to physically visit the location

Stray Voltage and Gas Leak Detection Our crews test for stray voltage and gas leaks in areas

where these problems are suspected Stray voltage typically arises through failure to properly

ground electrical equipment and may result in injury to the public Similarly gas leaks often occur as

result of the deterioration of gas distribution infrastructure

Large-Bore Horizontal DirectionS Drilling HDD We provide HDD services nationwide with total of

five large-bore directional drills ranging from 220000 to one million pounds of pullback force These

HDD rigs are typically deployed in support of large pipeline construction projects as well as

underground crossings of environmentally sensitive areas and can be deployed on projects

throughout North America

Telecommunications Our crews install and maintain overhead and underground

telecommunications infrastructure including conventional telephone cables fiber optic installation

cables fiber to the premises commonly referred to as FTTP cellular towers broadband-over

powerline and cable television lines

Other On limited basis we also offer certain commercial electric power environmental

remediation water and sewer and civil construction services

Current Market Conditions

We continue to advance our strategic objective of becoming more diversified global engineering and

construction company delivering discrete and integrated engineering procurement construction program

management maintenance and life cycle extension solutions tailored to the needs of our customers The

economic challenges over the past two years appear to be abating and we believe the long term

fundamentals continue to support increased activity in the industries we serve However near term

uncertainties may continue to impact capital and maintenance expenditure decisions of our customers in

2011 Inquiry levels in all three segments of our business have improved over the past two quarters and

contract awards have risen but not to level that corresponds to the increase inquiries The level of

uncertainty around new projects and investments in our markets has diminished but we continue to be

challenged to forecast future impacts on our business particularly with respect to timing

Upstream Oil Gas

In the Upstream Oil Gas segment we believe additional pipeline infrastructure build-out is requiredto

meet requirements from drilling activities that began years ago in the prolific natural gas shale and other

unconventional gas plays in North America Record levels of natural gas storage in the United States have

receded in the winter months of 2010 and despite depressed industrial demand we continue to see new
investment by major integrated oil companies such as ExxonMobil in North American shale gas plays
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Historically our upstream business is characterized by larger complex projects which evolve over time

as engineering and environmental studies and regulatory filings precede actual construction The high levels

of activity in the shale plays in North America are led by exploration and production companies and we
believe shift in our customer base is underway as more capital flows into field development gathering

systems and lateral line development We anticipate that one consequence of this shift will be more projects

of smaller scope and scale We expect our customers to place rnpre emphasis on local presence integrated

service delivery and flexible response to projects with shod timelines and urgent completion dates We
believe the build-out of large diameter cross country pipeline systems has outpaced the smaller lines and

field infrastructure and that themarket will reflect less activity for large diameter projects Delays Qf certain

major projects anticipated to be underway in 2011 have also caused us to view the smaller regional projects

as larger part of the market for our services going forward particularly in 2011 We expect bidding for

projects in 2011 to be highly competitive but we also believe our pricihg and therefore our value

proposition will enable us to win work with appropriate risk-adjusted margins

As pipeline system owners seek ways to decrease their maintenance and system iiitegrity costs we
believe there are opportunities to ekpand our Mahae Maintain services beyond the current alliance with

NiSource We believe over time other owners will consider dutsourcing Manage Maintain activities to

expert service providers such as ourselves in order to focus on their core competencies and strategic

objectives Additionally we expect the outcome of these programs to create more opportunities for our

specialty services offering which provides services related to the operation repair and rehabilitation of

pipelines and other hydrocarbon processing facilities

Markets in Canada driven by aptivity related to the oil sands reserves hould continue attract capital

as result of the perceivedlow political risk and higher crude prices We have begun to see large capital

projects such as Imperials Kearl Oil Sands Suncors Firebag and Canadian Natural Resources Horizon

expansion reinitiated in Western Canada as result of more favorable economics related to lower input

prices primarily steel and labor and increased crude prices There has been margin pressure on services

associated with the obligatory maintenance for oil sands production and owners are seeking cost savings

We believe our understanding of our customers needs allows us to identify mutual cost savings and as such

provides increased opportunities for us to deliver solutiops that align with their expectations

We believe that our successful business model in Oman where we have been active and profitable

since 1965 is viable business model that we can leverage to establish commercial presence in other

Middle East locations but current unrest in North Africa and the Middle East reinforces our focus on North

America Our investment in establishing presence in Libya while resulting in contract awards did not yield

any notice to proceed on the subject awards and we exited this market at the end of 2010

Green initiatives may present market opportunities to evaluate certain sequestration and transportation

projects for example carbon dioxide pipelines as government policy supports environmental projects

through initiatives and grants

Downstream Oil Gas

We believe the current business environment dictates additional reduÆtion in refinery capacity which will

ultimately increase utilization rates leading to improved economics for the remaining market participants It

is our expectation that with improved utilization rates and recovery in product demand the refining industry

wIll resumØ inveØtments in capital projects not only to maintain and improve process efficiencybut also to

address expectations for more stringent regulatory requirements and shifting crude compositions We
believe our integrated services offering enhanced by the acquisition of our Downstream engineering Unit

favorably positions Us to participate in this expected increase in small high return capital projeOts The timing

of the anticipated recovery of the small capital irojects market remains uncertain and We have reduced our

costs in this segment to enhance our returns in tight market We believe we can sustain the level of

performance generated in the past two quarters until the industry improves its utilization rates and refining

margins For 2011 we expect turnaround and maintenance services market similar to that experiOnced in

2010 with similar levels of activity and risk of delays and cancellations

Our government services business is benefiting from increased management focus as highlighted by our

selection as contractor by the U.S Navy on the NAVFAC IDIQ contract allowing us to compete for $350

million in task orders for petroleum oil and lubricants maintenance and rehabilitation assignments This

contract is now in the second of three year tçrm and we anticipate additional opportunities from our

government services group particularly in the area of fuels storage anq handling which aligns with our

relevant experience
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Utility TD
We believe we are entering period of substantial activity in the electric transmission construction

market in the United States Over 16000 miles of new electric transmission lines are planned for the five

year period ending in 2015 We are confident our experience and management tools used to manage for the

growth we experienced in our legacy pipeline construction business will enable us to take full advantage of

this anticipated opportunity Our alliance with Oncor which is expected to provide over $500 million in

construction assignments to us on the Texas Competitive Renewable Energy Zones CREZ transmission

line construction work committed to Oncor over the next three years gives us the opportunity to bring these

skills and tools into our new segment and to expand our capability and capacity to compete for and perform

construction projects in this burgeoning market We also believe we are well-positioned in the Northeast to

gain more experience and further enhance our qualifications to perform major transmission line construction

in this region exemplified by recent additions to backlog for transmission line construction in Maine Our

electric distribution business is still hampered by the downturn in new housing starts but we believe this

business has troughed although the pace of recovery is still uncertain According to at least one

infrastructure research report the market fundamentals indicate capacity shortage for transmission

construction could develop in the next two years followed by similar shortage for electric distribution

construction

Our Vision

continue to believe that long-term fundamentals support increasing demand for our services end

substantiate our vision for Willbros to be diversified global provider of professional engineering

construction and maintenance solutions addressing the entire asset lifecycle of global energy infrastructure

To accomplish this we are actively working towards achieving the following objectives

Integrating the InfrastruX acquisition which we believe advances our desire to diversify our end

markets and geographic exposure to better serve clients and mitigate market specific risk

Increasing professional services project/program management engineering design procurement

and logistics capabilities to minimize cyclicality and risk assoóiated with large capital projects in

favor of recurring service work

Positioning Willbros as service provider and employer of choice

Developing long-term client partnerships and alliances by exceeding performance expectations and

focusing team driven sales efforts on key clients and

Establishing industry best practices particularly for safety and performance

Our Values

We believe the values we adhere to as an organization shape the relationships and performance of our

company We are committed to strong Leadership across the organization to achieve Excellence

Accountability and Compliance in everything we do recognizing that Compliance is the catalyst for

successfully applying all of our values Our core values are

Safety always perform safely for the protection of ourpeople and our stakeholders

Honesty Integrity always do the right thing

Our People respect and care for their well being and development maintain an atmosphere of

trust empowerment and teamwork ensure the best people are in the right position

Our Customers understand their needs and develop responsive solutions promote mutually

beneficial relationships and deliver good job on time

Superior Financial Performance deliver earnings per share and cash flow and maintain balance

sheet which places us at the forefront of our peer group

Vision Innovation understand the drivers of our business environment promote constant

curiosity imaginatiob and creativity about our business and opportunities seek continuous

improvement and

Effective Communications present clear consistent and accurate messageto ourpeople our

customers and the public
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We believe that adhering to and living these values will result in high performance organization which

can differentiate itself and compete effectively providing incremental value to our customers our employees

and all our stakeholders

Our Strategy

We work diligently to apply these values every day and use them to guide us in the development and

execution of our strategy which we believe will increase stockholder value by leveraging the full resources

and core competencies of an integrated Willbros business platform Key elements of our strategy are as

follows

Stabilize the Revenue Stream with Recurring Services

We believe increasing the level of revenue generated by recurring services will make our business

model more predictable and allow us to reduce our dependence on large capital projects which are more

cyclical in nature Additionally we believe more stable revenue stream will enable us to profitably scale our

offerings to match changing market conditions To that end we have emphasized our Manage Maintain

service offering and continue to pursue new alliances with owner/operators of major infrastructure facilities

whereby we provide core teams of engineers and project managers having the ability to flex with the

engineering and project management needs of the client Our July 2010 acquisition of lnfratruX also

significantly increases our recurring services component through the high level of revenue generated by

Master Service Agreements MSA5 which account for 77 percent of revenue generated by our Utility TD
segment

Focus on Managing Risk

We have implemented core set of business conduct practices and policies that have fundamentally

improved our risk profile Examples include diversifying our service offerings and end markets to reduce

market specific exposure and focusing on contract execution risk starting with our opportunity review

process and ending at job completion In todays economic environment acknowleding the importance of

risk management is paramount to success It is emphasized throughout our organization and covers all

aspects of project from strategic planning and bidding to contract management and financial reporting

Focus resources in markets with the highest risk-adjusted return The majority Of our resources are

focused on North America as we believe North America continues to offer us significant

opportunities with attractive risk-adjusted returns Opportunities for our expanded service offerings

are expected to result from the ongoing development of unconventional gas production in shale gas

plays increased emphasis on the maintenance and integrity of existing infrastructure and facilities

high value-added small capital projects to meet environmental regulatory and product slate

requirements in the refining sector and new electric infrastructure development opportunities We
will focus on integration and optimization of our complementary service offerings to deliver superior

results

While our operations are currently concentrated in North America we have examined the markets

for opportunities to further diversify our geographic footprint into international markets that provide

attractive risk-adjusted returns We have concluded that North America continues to offer the most

attractive risk-adjusted returns at this time Our .extensive international experience remains

differentiator for us and we will continue to selectively consider international opportunities

Maintain conservative contract portfolio and limit contract execution risk While we will continue to

pursue balanced contract portfolio current market dynamics indicate our U.S pipeline operations

as well as other service offerings are in much more competitive period characterized by

competitive pricing and more fixed price contracts We beieve our fixed price execution experience

our recent initiatives to realign our cost structure to the rapidly changing market our improved

systems and our ongoing focus on risk management provide us competitive advantage versus

many of our competitors We prefer to maintain risk-limited project portfolio

Configure operating segments to minimize market risk We have recognized and responded to shifts

in the markets addressed by both our Upstream Oil Gas and Downstream Oil Gas segments by

reducing equipment and personnel levels to hold certain resources key teams and skill sets and

maximize their chargeability keeping in mind future opportunities and commitments We are

currently addressing our Utility TD segment and corresponding requirements as we have

previously done with our other two segments
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Leverage Industry Position and Reputation into Broader Servióe Offering

We believe the long term dynamics supporting the global energy infrastructure market will continue to

provide attractive opportunities Our established service platform capabilities and track record position us to

expand our expertise into broader range of related service offerings We intend to leverage our project

management engineering and construction skills to provide additional service offerings such as

instrumentation and electrical services turbo-machinery services and environmental services and to

enhance our ability to offer sole source solutions and develop alliances and frame agreements with strategic

customers We believe that more balanced mix of recurring services such as program management and

maintenance services together with our traditional project work will enhance the earnings profile of our

business

We have pursued selective acquisitions to complement our organic expansion strategies and to reduce

our dependence on the cycliqal large-diameter cross-country pipeline construction market We began this

process in 2007 with the lnServ and Midwest acqUisitions that expanded our service offerings as well as the

geographies vhere we deliver those services Our July 2007 acquisition of Midwest significantly enhanced

our presence in mainline pipeline construction in Western Canada Our November 2007 acquisition of lnServ

complemented our service offerings to our traditional market of engineering and construction services in the

midstream hydrocarbon transportation industry In July 2009 our acquisition of the engineering business of

Wink Companies LLC Wink or Downstream engineering business unit when combined with our

existing downstream offering created platform to provide integrated EPC services to the downstream

market mirroring our upstream capabilities More recently on July 2010 we closed on the acquisition of

InfrastruX an electric power and natural gas transmissiOn and distribution contractor with service delivery

capabilities from regional operating centers based primarily in the South Central Midwest and East Coast

energy corridors We believe this acquisition gives us viable position in the large and fast growing market

for electric transmission infrastructure as well as completing our capability to provide fully integrated services

from engineering through construction and integrity services for the full spectrum of natural gas transmission

and distribution Our near term focus will be on integration and optimization of this transformational

acquiition We take long term perspective on acquisitions which we believe will build strong diversified

platforms to drive future stockholder value

Maintain Financial Flexibility

Maintaining the financial flexibility to meet the material equipment and personnel needs to support our

projectcommitrnents as well as the ability to pursue our expansion and diversification objectives is critical

to our growth We view financial strength and flexibility as fundamental requirement to fulfilling our

stratØgi As of December 31 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $141101 On July 2010 and

as part of the iransaction financing for the acquisition of InfrastruX we entered into the 2010 Credit

Areement that provides for $475000 senior secured credit facility consisting of four-year $300000

Term Loan and three year revolving dredit facility of $175000 The201 Credit Agreement replaces our

thee-year $150000 sehior secured bredit facility which was scheduled to expire in November 2010 On

MÆrch4 2011 we amended our 2010 Credit Agreement the Amendment The Amendment allows us to

make certain dispositions of equipment real estate and business units In most cases proceeds from these

dispositions woyld be required to pay down the existing Term Loan made pursuant to the Credit Agreement
Financial covenants and associated definitions such as Consolidated EBITDA were also amended to permit

us to carry out our business plan and to clarify the treatment of certain items We have agreed to limit our

revolver .borrwings under the Credit Agreement to $25000 with the exception of proceeds from revolving

borrowings used to make any payments in respect of our Convertible Senior Notes until our total leverage

ratio is 3.0 to or less However the Amendment does not change the limit on obtaining letters of credit

The Amendment also modifies the definition of Excess Cash Flow to include proceeds from the

TransCanada Pipeline Arbitration which would require us to use all or portion of such proceeds to further

pay down the Term Loan in the following fiscal year of.receipt

Leverage Core Service E.xtpertise into Additional Full EPC Contracts

Our core expertise and service offerings allow us to provide our customers with single source EPC
solution which creates greater efficiencies and benefits both our customers and our company We believe

our upstream EPC and our downstream EPC which are focused on small to mid-sized capital projects are

relatively unique in our respective markets providing us with competitive advantage in providing these

services In performing integrated EPC cpntracts we often perform front-end engineering and design
services while establishing ourselves as overall project managers from the earliest stages of project

inception and are therefore better able to efficiently determine the design permitting procurement and
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construction sequence for project in connection with making engineering decisions Our customers benefit

from more seamless execution while for us these contracts often yield consistent profit margins on the

engineering and construction components of the contract compared to stand-alone contracts for similar

services Additionally this contract structure allows us to deploy our resources more efficiently and capture

the engineering procurement and construction components of these projects The acquisition of Wink

enabled us to provide EPC services to the downstream market thus mirroring our upstream capabilities

GEOGRAPHIC REGIONS

We operate globally but have concentrated our operations in recent years on certain markets in North

America and the Middle East Our continuing operations contract revenue by geographic region for recent

years is shown in the following table

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Contract Revenue

United States 924590 77.5% 939985 74.6% 1440239 75.3%

Canada 193841 16.3% 254420 20.2% 387498 20.3%

Oman 73589 6.2% 65368 5.2% 84967 4.4%

Other 392 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total $1192412 100.0% $1259773 100.0% 1912704 100.0%

United States

Upstream Oil Gas We believe that the United States will continue to be an important market for our

services Pipeline infrastructure demand in the United States is currently driven by unconventional natural

gas and Canadian oil sands development The February 2011 Oil Gas Journal survey of planned

worldwide pipeline construction indicates planned projects for 2011 and beyond in the United States and

Canada of nearly 13000 miles decrease of approximately 31 percent from 2010 Proposal activity

leading indicator for large diameter pipeline construction has plateaued and while we are actively pursuing

similar dollar volume of projects as at the end of 2009 the market is comprised of more and smaller

contracts with less large diameter work being offered Our acquisition of InfrastruX in July 2010 adds

complementary small pipe gathering and field infrastructure capabilities and extends our service reach to the

city gate andj into the gas distribution market The acquisition also gives us regional presence in the active

shale plays in the Northeast South Central and Southwest markets for natural gas and liquids infrastructure

Based on inquiries and announced projects we anticipate the number of miles constructed will be down

again in 2011 It is uncertain that any increase will be noted in 2012 or 2013 Additionally we can observe

that the industry has returned to more seasonal patterns of execution from early spring to late fall which will

compress project activity into nine-month period

In the current environment oil and gas energy producers appear to be focusing development budget

spending on preserving acreage that must be drilled and exploiting those areas which offer more oil and gas

liquids production given the great disparity in oil and gas prices This implies that near term activity will be

greater in the oilier shale plays such as the Eagle Ford Niobrara and Bakken hence our strategic initiative

to devolve our U.S constrUction model to one of more regionally dispersed resources With natural gas now
viewed as cheap and abundant we expect to see more opportunities to participate in gas fueled electric

generation projects particularly to replace retiring coal plants While liquefied natural gas LNG appears

to be disadvantaged in the current North Americah market there could be opportunity to participate in LNG

export projects going forward Environmental concerns will likely continue to require careful thorough and

specialized professional engineering and planning for all new facilities within the oil gas and power sectors

Furthermore the demand for replacement and rehabilitation of pipelines is expected to increase as pipeline

systems in the United States approach the end of their design lives and population trends influence overall

energy distribution needs Our Manage Maintain service offering which focuses on pipeline systems

maintenance and integrity could benefit from increased regulatory scrutiny of aging pipeline systems We are

recognized as an industry leader in the United States for providing project management engineering

procurement and construction services We maintain staff of experienced management construction

engineering and support personnel in the United States We provide these services through engineering

offices located in Denver Colorado Tulsa Oklahoma Kansas City Missouri and Houston Texas
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Construction operations based in Houston Texas with regional offices in the major shale plays provide the

majority of construction services in the United States

Downstream Oil Gas The United States remains the primary market for our downstream oil and gas

services With nationwide reach we have experience serving over 100 of the operable refineries in the

country While capital budget reductions and project delays invoked by our customers have diminished

spending on capital construction projects of the type performed by our Downstream Oil Gas segment

many of our services are less dependent upon capital expenditures In particular turnaround and

maintenance projects are performed on more routine basis and are typically less susceptible to fluctuations

in hydrocarbon prices although mapy of these projects were delayed in the difficult environment of the past

year With the Clean Air Act of 199O pushing the refining industry to meet stringentlimitations on the sulfur

content in gasoline fuelØ Downstream Oil Gas benefited from the influx of Clean Fuels projects from 2000

to 2005 We expect similar scenario in the next few years as refiners will be required to meet other

mandates by the Environmental Protection Agency EPA including reducing the sulfur content level in

diesel fuels and redubing the benzene content in other motor fuels however forecasting the tithing of such

projects renpans challerging any U.S refinery operators have delayed their maintenance and turnaround

projects to thØextent pQssible and while we believe certain facilities have reaChed the limit on delay due to

both safety and operational considerations last minute delays and cancellations are still ppssible in an

uncertain business environment We believe we have successfully rationalized our downsf ream model to be

competitive and to operate prqfitably in this tight market Our integrated service àffening led by our

downstream engineering group should position us for an anticipated improvethent in the small capitŁl

project market although the timing of the anticipated improvement remains uncertain The storae tank

market does offer bright spot as we have seen an increase in both the number and size of inquiries over

the past two quarters

We have also provided significant engineering and facility management services to U.S government

agencies during the past 25 years particularly in fuel storage and distribution systems and aircraft fueling

facilities Based on our recent selection by the U.S Navy as contractor to compete for task orders under

the NAVFAC IDIQ contract for assessments inspections repair and construction services for petroleum oil

and lubricant systems at U.S Navy locations worldwide we expect to continue to grow our presence in this

market

Utility Tb Our acquisition of InfrastruX in July 2010 gives us presence and relevant experience in the

eleätnic tranCmission and distribution markets particularly in the Northeast and Southwest In the Northeast

we provide both transmission and distribution maintenance and construction services and have recently

increased our visibility with contract awards in Maine for transmission line construction and in New York for

solar powered generation plant construction We believe continued focus on system reliability will provide

additional transmission line constryction opportunities in this regiOn and the large base of both transmission

and distribution infrastruCture in place affords recurring services work under existing MSAs In the

Southwest our model is anchored by our alliance agreement with Oncor Under this Ægrºement we are the

preferred contractor for the construction of Oncors portion of the CREZ work that is sdheduled to be

completed in 2013 We expect this assignment to generate over $500 million in construction revenue for our

Utility TD segment over the next three years Our Utilty TD segment also participates in regional markets

through offices in the Midwest and provides specialty electric cable restoration services through its Utilx

business unit We believe we are entering period of substantial activity in the electric transmission

construction market in the United States

Canada

Rapid declines in global oil prices since mid-2008 following significant cost escalations in the 2006-2008

period increased uncertainty regarding the near term economic viability of many investments in the oil sands

region of northern Alberta Canada As result many key participants in the region reduced capital

expenditure plans during 2009 and in some cases delayed significant capital projects However the

Canadian Energy Fesearch Institute projections forecast investment by the end of 2020 in excess of Cdn

$180 billion Installed capacity combined with ongoing investment offers prospective fabrication and

installation work as well as maintenance opportunities Additionally several options are under consideration

with respect to transporting processed crude oil or unrefined bitumen to markets in the United States and

Asia via export pipelines from the region Unconventional shale gas and oil is also expected to drive

additional infrastructure needs as the Bakken Horn River and Muskwa shale plays are developed Unrest in

North Africa and the Middle East has caused oil prices to rise above $1 00/bbl in early 2011 Uncertainty and

political risk are expected to result in additional investment and projects in the oil sands in Canada Our

construction fabrication and maintenance services in Canada are provided primarily through facilities and
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resources located in Ft McMurray and Edmonton Alberta where we maintain fabrication facilities These

facilities include capabilities for CCO to reduce erosion in transmission piping CCC is process of cladding

pipe to withstand the highly abrasive bitumen sand slurry transported from mining sites to separation

facilities We also expect to have opportunities to participate in the expansion of storage tank capacity which

is required to support expansion of production in the oil sands Our pipeline construction assets in Canada

have visibility through the first quarter of 2012 and at December 31 2010 were fully utilized with three major

projects underway

Middle East

Our operations in the Middle East date back to 1948 We have worked in most of the countries in the

region with particularly heavy involvement in Kuwait Oman and Saudi Arabia Currently we have ongoing

operations in Oman where we have been continuously active for more than 45 years We maintain fully

staffed facility in Oman with equipment repair facilities and spare parts on site and offer construction

expertise repair and maintenance services engineering support oil field transport services materials

procurement and variety of related services to our clients We believe our presence in Oman and our

experience throughout the region will enable us to successfully win and perform prc$jects in this egion We
have evaluated the opportunities in the Middle East and determined that we should focus our efforts on

continued development of our operations in Oman and the extension of that expertise and capability into the

markets in Bahrain and the United Arab Emirates although current unrest in the region may preclude near

term expansion out of Oman The recent discovery by PDO in Oman of billion barrels of oil in place near

the al-Ghubar field represents additional market opportunity

Africa

Africa has been over time an important strategic market for us We will continue to evaluate it among
our international opportunities Due to delays and the identification of other more attractive opportunities we

exited the Libyan market at the end of 2010

Asia-Pacific

In Australia our project-specific joint venture with Nacap well-known international pipeline contractor

to leverage our complementary capabilities and experience was unsuccessful in the pursuit of multiple large

diameter pipeline EPC opportunities associated with proposed large coal seam methane to LNG

developments We currently do not have any identified attractive prospects in this region but will entertain

and evaluate any that arise

South America

The political situation in several South American countries remains uncertain and projects in these

countries continue to be delayed Because the governments of these countries continue to pursue agendas
which include nationalization and/or renegotiation of contracts with foreign investors we view these markets

as having limited opportunities but we consider opportunities on case by case basis

Backlog

In our industry backlog is considered an indicator of potential future performance because it represents

portion of the future revenue stream Our stratey is focused on backlog additions and capturing quality

backlog with margins commensurate with the risks associated with given project

Backlog broadly consists of anticipated revenue from the uncompleted portions of existing contracts and

contracts whose award is reasonably assured Historically our backlog has only included estimated work

under MSAs for period of 12 months or the remaining term of the contract whichever is less However

with the July 2010 acquisition of InfrastruX we gained significant alliance agreement with Oncor Under

this agreement we are the preferred contractor for the construction of Oncors portion of the CREZ work that

is scheduled to be completed in 2013 We expect this assignment to generate over $500 million in

construction revenue for our Utility TD segment over the next three years With this as the primary catalyst

we have updated our backlog presentation to reflect not only the 12 month estimate but also the full-term

value of the contract as we believe that this information is helpful in providing additional long-term visibility

We determine the amount of backlog for work under ongoing maintenance contracts or MSAs by using

recurring historical trends inherent in the MSAs factoring in seasonal demand and projecting customer

needs based upon ongoing communications with the customer We also include in backlog our share of

work to be performed under contracts signed by joint ventures in which we have an ownership interest
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We believe the backlog figures are firm subject onlyto the cancellation and modification provisions

contained in various contracts Additionally due to the short duration of many jobs revenue associated with

jobs performed within reporting period will not be reflected in quarterly backlog reports We generate

revenue from numerous sources including contracts of long or short duration entered into during year as

well as from various contractual processes including change orders extra work variations in the scope of

work and the effect of escalation or currency fluctuation formulas These revenue sources are not added to

backlog until realization is assured For the past several years we have put processes and procedures in

place to identify contractual and execution risks in new work opportunities and believe we have instilled in

the orOanization the disôipline to price accept and book only work which meets stringent criteria for

commercial success and profitability For additional discussion of backlog see Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this Form 10-K

The following table shows our backlog from continuing operations by operating segment and geographic

location as of December 31 2010 and 2009

As of December 31

Upstream oii Gas

Downstream Oil Gas

Utility TD

Backlog

2010

12 Month Percent Total Percent

311326 32.9% 653671 30.0%

107077 11.3% 107-077 5.0%

As of December 31

As of December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007

12 Month Backlog $946315 $389350 $655494 $1305441

Competition

We operate in highly competitive environment We compete against government-owned or supported

companies and other companies that have financial and other resources substantially in excess of those

available to us In certain markets we compete against national and regional firms against which we may not

be price competitive We have different comketitors in different markets as recapped below

Globally

Engineering CH2M Hill Gulf Interstate Universal Pegasus Trigon Mustang Engineering and

ENGlobal Engineering

United StØtes

Upstream Oil Gas Segment Construction Associated Pipeline Contractors Price Gregory

Services Sheehan Pipeline Construction U.S Pipeline and Welded Construction Quanta Services

MasTec Henkels McCoy Northern
Pipeline Construction Mióhels Corporation and Miller Pipeline

In addition there area number of regional competitors such as Sunland Dyess Flint and Jomax

Downstream Oil Gas Segment AltairStrickland JV Industrial Companies Plant Performance

Services KBR Chicago Bridge Iron and Matrix Services

2009

__________ ________ __________ ________ __________ _________ _________
Peràent

66.0%

34.0%

527912 55.8% 1415279 65.0% 0.0% 0.0%

946315 100.0% $2176027 100.0% 389350 100.0% 429286 100.0%

12 Month Percent Total

243194 62.5% $283130

146156 37.5% 146156

2010 2009

Total Percent Total Percent

Total Backlog by Geographic Region

United States $1593241 73.2% 398744 92.9%

Canada

Middle EastlNorth Africa

532589 24.5%

Other International 4469 0.2%

Backlog $2176027 100.0% 429286

45728 2.1% 20903 4.9%

9639 2.2%

0.0%

100.0%

2006

$602272
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Utility TD Segment Quanta Services MYR Group MasTec and Pike Electric and larger privately-

held companies such as Henkels McCoy Northern Pipeline Construction Michels Corporation

and Miller Pipeline

Canada

Onshore Pipeline Construction North American Energy Services Flint Energy Services and OJ

Pipelines

Maintenance and field services North American Energy Services Flint Energy Services an
Ledcor

Oman

Oil Field Transport Services Ofsat and TruckOman both Omani companies

Construction and the Installation of Flow Lines and Mechanical Services Gulf Petrochemical

Services Oman CCC Greece Dodsal India Saipem Italy Special Technical Services Oman
and Galfar Oman

Other International

Construction Technip France CCC Greece Saipem Italy Spie-Capag France Techint

Argentina Bechtel U.S Stroytransgaz Russia Tekfen Turkey and Nacap Netherlands

Contract Provisions and Subcontracting

Most of our revenue is derived from engineering construction and EPC contracts The majority of our

contracts fall into the following basic categories

firm fixed-price or lump sum fixed-price contracts providing for single price for the total amount of

work or for number of fixed lump sums for the various work elements comprising the total price

cost plus fixed fee contracts where income is earned solely from the fee received

unit-price contracts which specify price for each unit of work performed

time and materials contracts where personnel and equipment are provided under an agreed-upon

schedule of daily rates with other direct costs being reimbursable and

combination of the above including lump sum payment for certain items and unit rates for others

Changes in scope-of-work are subject to change orders to be agreed upon by both parties Change
orders not agreed to in either scope or price result in claims to be resolved in dispute resolution process

These change orders and claims can affect our contract revenue either positively or negatively

We usually obtain contracts through either competitive bidding or negotiations with long-standing clients

We are typically invited to bid on projects undertaken by our clients who maintain approved bidder lists

Bidders are pre-qualified on the basis of their prior performance for such clients as well as their experience

reputation for quality safety record financial strength and bonding capacity

In evaluating bid opportunities we ponsider such factors as the client and theirgeographic location the

difficulty of the work current and projecfed workiQad the likelihood of additional work the projects cost and

profitability estimates and our competitive advantage relative to other likely bidders We give careful thought

and consideration to the political and financial stability of the country or region where the work is to be

performed The bid estimate forms the basis of project budget against which performance is tracked

through project control system enabling management to monitor projects effectively

All U.S government contracts and many of our other contracts provide for termination of the contract for

the convenience of the client In addition some contracts are subject to certain completion schedule

requirements that require us to pay liquidated damages in the event schedules are not met as the result of

circumstances within our control

We act as the primary contractor on majority of the construction projects we undertake In our capacity

as the primary contractor and when acting as ubcontractor we perform most of the work on our projects

with our own resources and typically subcontract only such specialized activities as hazardous waste

removal horizontal directional drills non-destructive inspection catering and security In the construction

industry the prime cbntractor is normally responsible for the performance of the entire contract including
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subcontract work Thus when acting as the primary contractor we are subject to the risk associated with the

failure of one or more subcontractors to perform as anticipated

Under fixed-price contract we agree on the price that we will receive for the entire project based upon

specific assumptions and project criteria If our estimates of our own costs to complete the project are below

the actual costs that we may incur our margins will decrease possibly resulting in loss The revenue cost

and gross profit realized on fixed-price contract will often vary from the estimated amounts because of

unforeseen .conditions or changes in job conditions and variations in labor and equipment productivity over

the term of the contract If we are unsuccessful in mitigating these risks we may realize gross profits that are

different from those originally estimated and may incur losses on projects Depending on the size of

project these variations from estimated contract performance could have significant effect on our

operating results for any quarter or year In some cases we are able to recover additional costs and profits

from the client through the change order process In general turnkey contracts to be performed on fixed-

price basis involve an increased risk of significant variations This is result of the long-term nature of these

contracts and the inherent difficulties in estimating costs and of the interrelationship of the integrated

services to be provided under these contracts whereby unanticipated costs or delays in performing part of

the contract can have compounding effects by increasing costs of performing other parts of the contract Our

accounting policy related to contract variations and claims requires recognition of all costs as incurred

Revenue from change orders extra work and variations in the scope of work is recognized when an

agreement is reached with the client as to the scope of work and when it is probable that the cost of such

workwill be recovered in change in contract price Profit on change orders exrra work and variations in the

scope of work are recognized when realization is assured beyond reasonable doubt Also included in

contract costs and recognized income not yet billed on uncompleted contracts are amounts we seek or will

seek to collect from customers or others for errors or changes in contract specifications or design contract

change orders in dispute or unapproved as to both scope and price or other customer-related causes of

unanticipated additional contract costs unapproved change orders These amounts are recorded at their

estimated net realizable value when realization is probable and can be reasonably estimated Unapproved

change orders and claims also involve the use of estimates and it is reasonably possible that revisions to

the estimated recpverable amounts of recorded unapproved change orders may be made in the near term If

we do not successfully resolve these matters net expense recorded as reduction in revenues may be

required in addition to amounts that have been previously provided

Contractual Arrangements

We provide services under MSAs and on project-by-project basis MSAs are typically one to three

years in duration but can be longer Under our MSAs our customers generally agree to use us to provide

certain services in specified geographic region on stipulated terms and conditions including pricing and

escalation However most of our contracts including MSAs and our alliance agreement with Oncor may be

terminated by our customers on short notice Further although our customers assign work to us under our

MSAs our customers often have no obligation to assign work to us and are not required to use us

exclusively in some cases subject to our right of first refusal In addition many of our contracts including

our MSAs are opened to public bid and generally attract multiple bidders Work performed under MSAs is

typically billed on unit-price or time-and-materials basis In addition any work encountered in the course of

unit-price project that does not have defined unit is generally completed on time-and-materials basis

Although the terms of our contracts vary considerably pricing is typically based on unit-price or fixed-

price structure Under our unit-price contracts we agree to perform identified units of work for an agreed

pride unit can be as small as the installation of single bolt or foot of cable or as large as

transmission tower or foundation The resulting profitability of particular unit is primarily dependent upon

the labor and equipment hours expended to complete the task that comprises the unit Under fixed-price

contracts we agree to perform the contract for fixed fee based on our estimate of the aggregate costs of

completing the particular project We are sometimes unable to fully recover cost overruns on our fixed-price

contracts We expect that industry trends could result in an increase in the proportion of our contracts being

performed on unit-price or fixed-price basis resulting in more profitability risk

Our storm restoration work which involves high labor and equipment utilization is typically performed on

time-and-materials basis and is generally more profitable when performed off-system rather than for

customers with which we have MSA5 Our ability to allocate resources to storm restoration work depends on

our capacity at that time and permission from existing customers to release some portion ofour workforce

from their projects
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Oncor Alliance Agreement

On June 12 2008 we entered into non-exclusive agreement with Oncor Due to the extensive scope

and long duration of the agreement we refer to it as an alliance agreement We summarize below the

principal terms of the agreement This summary is not complete description of all the terms of the

agreement

Term Renewals and Extensions The agreement became effective on August 2008 and will continue

until expiration on December 31 2018 unless extended renewed or terminated in accordance with its

terms

Provision of Sentices Spending Levels and Pricing Under the agreement it is anticipated that we will

provide Oncor transmission construction and maintenance services TCM and distribution construction

and maintenance services DCM pursuant to fixed-price unit-price and time-and-materials structures The

fees we charge Oncor under unit-price and time-and-materials structures are set forth in the agreement
most of which are adjusted annually according to indices proviçled in the agreement The agreement also

includes provision whereby Oncor receives pricing at least as favorable as we charge other customers for

any similar services which is not defined term in the agreement Management believes based on our

pricing practices and the nature and scope of the services we provide to Oncor that we are in compliance

with this provision

We frequently hold meetings with Oncor to discuss its forecasted monthly and annual TCM and DCM
spending levels The agreement provides for agreed incentives and adjustments for us and for Oncor

according to Oncors projected spending levels Calculations based on projected spending levels are subject

to subsequent adjustments based on actual spending levels The agreement also requires that we provide

dedicated resources to Oncor and that we meet or exceed minimum service levels as measured by specified

performance indicators

Termination Oncor could in some cases seek to terminate for cause or limit our activity or seek to

assess penalties against us under the agreement Oncor may terminate the agreement upon 90-days notice

or any work request thereunder without prior notice in each case at its sole discretion and may terminate the

agreement upon 30-days notice in the event there is an announcement of the intent to undertake or an

actual occurrence of change in control of Oncor or lnfrastruX Oncor consented to the change of control of

InfrastruX that resulted from our acquisition of InfrastruX Oncor may also terminate the agreement for cause

if among other things we breach and fail to adequately cure representation or warranty under the

agreement we materially or repeatedly default in the performance of our material obligations under the

agreement or we become insolvent

In the event Oncor terminates the agreement for convenience or due to an anticipated or actual change
of control of Oncor Oncor must pay us termination fee

Employees

At December 31 2010 we directly employed multi-national work force of 7271 persons of which

approximately 85.1 percent were citizens of the respective countries in which they work Although the level

of activity varies from year to year we have maintained an average work force of approximately 5426 over

the past five years The minimum employment during that period has been 3714 and the maximum was

7271 At December 31 2010 approximately 19.5 percent of our employees were covered by collective

bargaining agreements We believe relations with our employees are satisfactory The following table sets

forth the location of employees by work countries as of December 31 2010

Number of

Employees Percent

U.S.UpstreamOllGas 540 7.4%

U.S Downstream Oll Gas 977 13.5%

U.S Utility TD 3070 42.2%

U.S Administration 112 1.6%

Canada 1056 14.5%

Oman 1500 20.6%

Utility TD International 15 0.2%

Other International Libya 0.0%

Total 7271 100.0%
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Equipment

We own lease and maintain fleet of generally standardized construction transportation and support

equipment In 2010 and 2009 expenditures for capital equipment were approximately $18000 and $13000

respectively At December 31 2010 the net book value of our property plant and equipment was

approximately $229000

All equipment is subject to scheduled maintenance to maximize fleet readiness We continue to evaluate

expected equipment utilization given anticipated market conditions and may buy or lease new equipment

and dispose of Underutilized equipment from time to time In Decemer 2010 we completed the sale of

equipment having net book value of $12226 receiving proceeds of $15103 Additionally we have

committed to plan to dispose of $18867 in additional properties and equipment which is expected to be

completed in 2011

Facilities

The principaFfacilities that we utilize to operate our business are

Principal Facilities

Location Description Ownership
Business Unit

U.S Upstream Oil Gas Houston TX1 Equipment yard Own
maintenance facility

warehouse and office

space

Houston TX Office space Leased

Kansas City MO Office space Leased

Tulsa OK Office space Own

U.S Downstream Oil Gas Baton Rouge LA Office Space Lease

Catoosa OK Manufacturing general Own
warehousing and office

space

Principal Facilities

Business Unit Location Description Ownership

Houston TX Office space Lease

St Rose LA Office space Lease

Tulsa OK Manufacturing general Own
warehousing and office

space

U.S Utility TD Seattle WA Office space Leased

Buckeburg Germany Office and general Leased

warehouse

Kent WA Office and general Leased

warehouse

Pittsburgh PA Office and general Leased

warehouse
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Fitchburg WI

Trafford PA

Sherman TX

McKinney TX

Ft Worth TX

Henrietta TX

Hauppauge NY

Jacksonville VT

Eunice NM

Ft McMurray Alberta

Canada

Ft McMurray Alberta

Canada

Ft McMurray Alberta

Canada

Edmonton Alberta

Canada

Acheson Alberta

Canada

Principal Facilities

Leased

Leased

Leased

Own

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Own

Leased

Leased

Own

Own

Business Unit Location Description Ownership

Sherwood Park Alberta

Canada

Calgary Alberta Canada

Oman

Houston TX

Office space

Office space

Office space fabrication

and maintenance facility

Office Space

Canada

Office and general

warehouse

Office and general

warehouse

Office and general

warehouse

Office and general

warehouse

Office space

Office and general

warehouse

Office and general

warehouse

Office and general

warehouse

Office and general

warehouse

Fabrication and

maintenance facility

Lay down area

Office space

Fabrication and Module

facility

Office space and

equipment yard

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Oman

Headquarters

Location is currently classified as held for sale

We lease other facilities used in our operations primarily sales/shop offices equipment sites and

expatriate housing units in the United States Canada and Oman Rent expense for all leased facilities was

approximately $12400 in 2010 and $5200 in 2009

Insurance and Bonding

Operational risksare analyzed and categorized by our risk management department and are insured

through major international insurance brokers under comprehensive insurance program which includes
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commercial insurance policies consisting of the types and amounts typically carried by companies engaged
in the worldwide engineering and construction industry We maintain worldwide master policies written

mostly through highly-rated insurers These policies cover our property plant equipment and cargo against

all normally insurable risks including war risk political risk and terrorism in third-world countries Other

policies cover our workers and liabilities arising out of oUr operations Primary and excess liability insurance

limits are consistent with the level of our asset base Risks of loss or damage to project works and materials

are often insured on our behalf by our clients On other projects builders all risk insurance is purchased

when deemed necessary Substantially all insurance is purchased and maintained at the corporate level

with the exceptions being certain basic insurance which must be purchased in some countries in order to

comply with local insurance laws

The insurance protection we maintain may not be sufficient or effective under all circumstances or

against all hazards to which we may be subject An enforceable claim for which we are not fully insured

could have material adverse effect on our results of operations In the future our ability to maintain

insurance which may not be available or at rates we consider reasonable may be affected by events over

which we have no control such as those that occurred on September 11 2001 In 2010 we were not

constrained by our ability to bond new projects nor have we been negatively impacted in early 2011

Global Warming and Climate Change

Recent scientific studies have suggested that emissions of certain gases commonly referred to as

greenhouse gases may be contributing to warming of the earths atmosphere As result there have

been variety of regulatory developments proposals or requirements and legislative initiatives that have

been introduced in the United States as well as other parts of the world that are focused on restricting the

emission of carbon dioxide methane and other greenhouse gases

In 2007 the United States Supreme Court held that carbon dioxide may be regulated as an air

pollutant under the federal Clean Air Act if it represents health hazard to the public In December 2009
the EPA responded to that holding and issued finding that the current and projected concentrations of

greenhouse gases in the atmosphere threaten the public health and welfare of current and future

generations and that certain greenhouse gases contribute to the atmospheric concentrations of greenhouse

gases and hence to the threat of climate change

In June 2009 the U.S House of Representatives passed the American Clean Energy and Security Act

of 2009 sometimes referred to as the Waxman-Markey global climate change bill The U.S Senate

considered but did not approve such legislation The 2009 bill included many provisions that could

potentially have had significant impact on us as well as our customers The bill proposed cap and trade

regime renewable portfolio standard electric efficiency standards revised transmission policy and

mandated investments in plug-in hybrid infrastructure and smart grid technology The net effect of the bill

was to impose increasing costs on the combustion of carbon-based fuels such as oil refined petroleum

products and natural gas Although proposals have been introduced in the U.S Senate including

proposal that would require greater reductions in greenhouse gas emissions than the American Clean

Energy and Security Act of 2009 it is uncertain at this time whether and in what form legislation will be

adopted by the U.S Senate For legislation to become law both chambers of the U.S Congress would be

required to approve identical legislation Both President Obama and the Administrator of the EPA have

repeatedly indicated their preference for comprehensive legislation to address this issue and create the

framework for clean energy economy

In September 2009 the EPA finalized rule requiring nation-wide reporting of greenhouse gas

emissions beginning January 2010 The rule applies primarily to large facilities emitting 25000 metric tons

or more of carbon dioxide-equivalent greenhouse gas emissions per year and to most upstream suppliers of

fossil fuels and industrial greenhouse gas as well as to manufacturers of vehicles and engines

We do not know and cannot predict whether any of the proposed legislation or regulations will be

adopted as initially written if at all or how legislation or new regulations that may be adopted to address

greenhouse gas emissions would impact our business segments Depending on the final provisions of such

rules or legislation it is possible that such future laws and regulations could result in increasing our

compliance costs or additional operating restrictions as well as those of our customers It is also possible

that such future developments could curtail the demand for fossil fuels which could adversely affect the

demand for some of our services which in turn could adversely affect our future results of operations

Likewise we cannot predict with any certainty whether any changes to temperature storm intensity or

precipitation patterns as result of climate change or otherwise will have material impact on our

operations
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Compliance with applicable environmental requirements has not to date had material effect on the

cost of our operations earnings or competitive position However as noted above in connection with our

discussion of the regulation of greenhouse gases compliance with amended new or more stringent

requirements of existing environmental regulations or requirements may cause us to incur additional costs or

subject us to liabilities that may have material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial

condition
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Item IA Risk Factors

The nature of our business and operations subjects us to number of uncertainties and risks

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Our business is higly dependent upon the level of capital expenditures by oil and gas refinery

petrochemical and electric power companies on infrastructure

Our revenue and cash flow ate primarily dependent upon major engineering and construction projects The

availability Of these types of projects is dependent upon the economic condition of the oil and gas refinery

petrochemical and electric power industries and specifically the level of capital expenditures of oil and gas

refinery petrochemical and electric power companies on infrastructure The credit crisis in 2009 which

continues to some extent and related distress in the global financial system including capital markets as

well as the global recession continue to have an adverse impact on the level of capital expenditures of oil

and gas refinery petrochemical and electric power companies and/or their ability to finance these

expenditures Our failure to obtain rilajor projects The delay in awards of majorprojects the cancellation of

major projects or delays in completion of contracts are factors that could result in the under-utilization of our

resources which would have an adverse impact on our revenue and cash flow There are numerous factors

beyond our control that influence the level of capital expenditures of these companies including

current and projected oil gas and electric power prices as well as refining margins

the demand for gasoline and electricity

the abilities of oil and gas refinery petrochemiaI and electric power companies to generate

access and deploy capital

exploration production and transportation costs

the discovery rate of new oil and gas reserves

the sale and expiration dates of oil and gas leases and concessions

regulatory restraints on the rates that ele6tric power companies may charge their customers

local and international political and economic conditions

the ability or willingness of host country government entities to fund their budgetary commitments

and

technological advances

Our settlements with the DOJ and the SEC and the prosecution of former employees may
negatively impact our ongoing operations

In May 2008 the United States Department of Jutice DOJ filed an Information and Deferred Prosecution

Agreement DPA in the United States District Court in Houston concluding its investigation into violations

of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA by Willbros Group Inc and its subsidiary Willbros

International Inc WIl Also in May 2008 we reached final settlement with the SEC to resolve its

previously.disclosed investigation of possible violations of the FCPA and possible violations of the Securities

Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These investigations stemmed primarily from our

former operations in Bolivia Ecuador and Nigeria The settlements together require us to pay over

approximately three years total of $32.3 million in penalties and disgorgement plus post-judgment interest

on $7725 million of that amount See Note of our condensed consolidated financial statements included

herein

As part of our agreement with the DOJ we are subject to ongoing review and regulation of our business

operations including the review of our operations and compliance program by government-approved

independent monitor The independent monitoç was appointed effective September 25 2009 The activities

of the independent monitor have had and will continue to have material cost to us and will require

significant changes in our processes and operations the outcome of which we are unable to predict In
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addition the settlements and the prosecution of former employees may impact our operations or result in

legal actions against us including actions by foreign governments in countries that are the subject of the

settlements

Our failure to comply with the terms of settlement agreements with the DOJ and SEC would have

material adverse effect on our business

Under our settlement with the DOJ we are subject to the DPA which has an initial term of three years and

may be extended under certain circumstances and with respect to the SEC settlement we are permanently

enjoined from committing any future violations of the federal securities laws As provided foç in the DPA with

the approval of the DOJ we retained government-approved independent monitor at our expense for

two and one-half year period who is reporting to the DOJ on our compliance with the DPA Since the

appointment of the monitor we have cooperated and provided the monitor with access to information

documents records facilities and employees On March 2010 the monitorfiled with the DOJ the first of
three required reports under the JJPA In the report the monitor reported numerous findings and

recommendations with respect to the need for the improvement of our administrative internal controls

policies and procedures for detecting and preventing violations of ppplicable anj-corruption laws

Findings and recommendations have been made concerning the need for improvement of policies and

processes and internal controls related to the vetting of new employees agents and consultants disclosure

tracking and internal communications of conflicts of interest our FCPA training program the FCPA

certification process procurement and project controls and other administrative control procedures as well

as to improve our ability to detect and prevent violations of applicable anti-corruption laws

The report also sets out for the DOJs review the monitors findings relating to incidents that came to the

monitors attention during the course of his review which he found to be significant as well as

recommendations to address these incidents We and the monitor have met separately with the DOJ

concerning certain of these incidents The monitor in his report did not conclude whether any of these

incidents or any other matters constituted violation of the FCPA We do not believe that any of these

incidents or matters constituted violation of the FCPA based on our own investigations of the incidents and

mailers raised in the report Notwithstanding our assessment the DOJ could perform further investigation at

its discretion of any incident or matter raised by the report

We are now in the process of improving our hiring pçocedures and conflict of interest policies and have

openly discussed these matters with the DOJ in thecourse of our corhpliance with the terms of the DPA On

May 2010 we responded to the monitors report and advised the DOJ that we intend to implement all of

the monitors recommendations We have undertaken disciplined approach to implementing the monitors

recommendations and have incurred and will continue to incur significant costs as well as significant

management oversight time to effectively implement the recommendations The monitors second annual

review occurred in the first quarter of 2011 and we expect to receive the second report of the monitor near

the end of the first quarter of 2011

The DOJ could determine during the term of the DPA that we have violated the FCPA or other laws based

on the monitors findings or otherwise or not complied with the terms of the DPA which requires our

cooperation with the monitor and the DOJ or that we have not been successful in implementing the

monitors recommendations Our failure to comply with the terms of the settlements with the DOJ and SEC
could result in resumed prosecution and other regulatory sanctions criminal conviOtion of the charges that

are subject to the DPA or of other charges could result in fines civil and criminal penalties.and equitable

remedies including profit disgorgement and injunctive relief and would have material adverse effect on

our business The settlements and the findings of the independent monitor could also result in third-party

claims against us which may include claims for special indirect derivative or consequential damages

In addition if we fail to make timely payment of the penalty amounts due to the DOJ and/or the

disgorgement amounts specified in the SEC settlement the DOJ and/or the SEC will have the right to

accelerate payment and demand that the entire balance be paid immediately Our ability to comply with the

terms of the settlements is dependent on the success of our ongoing compliance program including

our supervision training and retention of competent employees

the efforts of our employees to comply with applicable law and our Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

Compliance Manual and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

our continuing management of our agents and businØ partners and
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our successful implementation of the recommendations of the independent monitor to further

improve our compliance program and internal controls

We may continue to experience losses associated with our prior Nigeria-based operations which

could have material adverse effect on us

On February 2007 Willbros Global Holdings Inc formerly known as Willbros Group Inc Panama

corporation WGHI which is now subsidiary of the Company and holds portion of the Companys non
U.S operations sold its Nigeria assets and Nigeria-based operations in West Africa to Ascot Offshore

Nigeria Limited Ascot Nigerian oilfield services company for total consideration of $155 million later

adjusted to $130 million The sale was pursuant to Share Purchase cAgreement by and between WGHI
and Ascot dated as of February 2007 the Agreement providing for the purchase by Ascot of all of the

share capital of WG Nigeria Holdings Limited WGNHL the holding company for Willbros West Africa Inc

WWAI Willbros Nigeria Limited Willbros Offshore Nigeria Limited and WG Nigeria Equipment Limited

In connection with the sale of its Nigeria assets and operations WGHI and WIl another subsidiary of the

Company entered into an indemnity agreement with Ascot and Barkeley Group plc Berkeley the parent

company of Ascot the Indemnity Agreement pursuant to whibh Ascot and Berkeley agreed to indemnify

WGHI and WIl for any obligations incurred by WGHI or Wll in bonnection with the parent ddmpany

guarantees the Guarantees that WGHI and WIl prºviouslt issued and maintained on behalf of certain

farmer subsidiaries now owned by Ascot under certain working contracts between the subsidiaries and their

customers Either WGHI WI or both may be contractually obligated in varying degrees under the

Guarantees with respect to the performance of work related to several ongoing projects Among the

Guarantees covered by the Indemnity Agreement are five contracts under which the Company estimates

that at February 2007 there was aggregate remaining contract revenue excluding any additional claim

revenue of $352 million and aggregate estimated cost to complete of $293 million At the February 2007

sale date one of the contracts covered by the Guarantees was estimated to be in loss position with an

accrual for such loss of $33 million The associated liability was included in the liabilities acquired by Ascot

and Berkeley

Approximately one year after the sale of the Nigeria assets and operations WGHI received its first

notification asserting various rights under one of the outstanding parent guarantees On February 2008

WWAI the Mcot company performing the West African Gas Pipeline WAGP contract received letter

from West African Gas Pipeline Company Limited WAPC0 the owner of WAGP wherein WAPCo gave

written notice alleging that WWAI was in default under the WAGP contract as amended and giving WWAI
brief cure period to remedy the alleged default We understand that WWAI responded by denying being in

breath of its WAGP contract obligations and apparently also advised WAPCo that WWAI requires further

$55 million without which it will not be able to complete the work which it had previously undertaken to

perform We understand that on February 27 2008 WAPCo terminated the WAGP contract for the alleged

continuing non-performance of WWAI

Also in February 2008 WGHI received letter from WAPCo remindingWGHI of its parent guarantee on the

WAGP contract and requesting that WGHI remedy WWAIs default under that contract as amended WGHI

responded to WAPCo consistent with its earlier communications that for variety of legal contractual and

other reasons it did not consider the prior WAGP contract parent guarantee to have continued application

In February 2009 WGHI received another letter from WAPC0 formally demanding that WGHI pay all sums

payable in consequence of the non-performance by WWAI with WAPCo and stating that quantification of

that amount would be provided sometime in the future when the work was ccimpleted In spite this letter

we continued to believe that the parent guarantee was not valid WAPCo disputes WGHIs positioh that it is

no longer bound by the terms of WGHIs prior parent guarantee of the WAGP contract and has rØsVed all

its rights in that regard

On February 15 2010 WGHI received letter from attorneys representing WAPCo seekingtorecover from

WGHI under its prior WAGP contract parent company guarantee for losses and damages allegedly incurred

by WAPCo in connection with the alleged non-performance of WWAI under the WAGP contract The letter

purports to be formal notice of claim for purposes of the Pre-Action Protocol for Construction and

Engineering Disputes under the rules of the High Court in London England The letteclaims damages in

the amount of $265 million At February 2007 when WGHI sold its Nigeria assets and operations to

Ascot the total WAGP contract value was $165 million and the WAGP project was estimated to be

approximately 82.0 percent complete The remaining costs to complete the project at that time were

estimated at slightly under $30 million We are seeking to understand the magnitude of the WAPCo claim

relative to the WAGP projects financial status three years earlier
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On August 2010 we received notice that WAPCo had filed suit against WGHI under English law in the

London High Court on July 30 2010 for sum of $273 million WGHI has several possible defenses to this

claim and is contesting the matter vigorously but we cannot provide any assurance as to the outcome We
expect the litigation process to be lengthy trial of the mailer is scheduled to commence in June of 2012

We currently have no employees working in Nigeria and have no intention of returning to Nigeria If

ultimately it is determined by an English Court that WGHI is liable in whole or in part for damages that

WAPCo may establish against WWAI for WWAIs alleged non-performance of the WAGP contract or if

WAPCo is able to establish liability against WGHI directly under the parent company guarantee and in

either case WGHI is unable to enforce its rights under the indemnity agreement entered into with Ascot and

Berkeley in connection with the WAGP contract WGHI may experience substantial losses which could have

material adverse effect on our financial condition and liquidity However at this time we cannot predict the

outcome of the London High Court litigation or be certain of the degree to which the indemnity agreement

given in WOHIs favor by Ascot and Berkeley will protect WGHI

We have not established reserve for potential losses in connection with the foregoing

Our management has conàluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 because of the existence of material weakness in our internal

control over financial reporting We have also had material weaknesses in our internal control over

financial reporting in prior fiscal years Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial

reporting could adversely affect our atiility to report our financial condition and results of.operations

accurately and on timely basis As result our business operating results and liquidity could be

harmed

We have identified material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31
2010 description of this material weakness is included in Item 9A Controls and Procedures in this

Form 10-K together with our remediation plan

As disclosed in our annual reports on Form 10-K for 2007 2006 2005 and 2004 managements
assessment of our internal control over financial reporting identified several material weaknesses These

material weaknesses led to the restatement of our previously issued consolidated financial statements for

fiscal years 2002 and 2003 and the first three quarters of 2004 We believe that all of these material

weaknesses have been successfully remediated Our management concluded that we maintained effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 and 2008

InfrastruX had material weakness in its reporting systems as well In connection with its fiscal 2008 audit

InfrastruX identified material weakness related to its entity-level processes for monitoring and assessing

financial reporting risks and ensuring that appropriate procedures and controls are implemented in response

to changes Specifically this material weakness arose from the combined effect of deficiencies related to

insufficient resources with the appropriate level of experience and training in the application of technical

accounting guidance and ii inadequate monitoring review and approval of the policies and procedures

implemented to address new or non-recurring accounting transactions including those designed to ensure

relevant sufficient and reliable data is accumulated to support assumptions and judgments This material

weakness resulted in errors in the reporting of goodwill and income taxes and required the restatement of

InfrastruXs 2006 and 2007 consolidated financial statements As of the date of our acquisition of InfrastruX

InfrastruX believed this material weakness had been successfully remediated

Our failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our ability to

report ou financial results on timely and accurate basis which could result in loss of investor cqnfidence

in our financial reports or have material adverse effect on our ability to operate our business or access

sources of liquidity Furthermore because of the inherent limitations of any system of internal control over

financial reporting including the possibility of human error the circumvention or overriding of controls and

fraud even effective internal controls may not prevent or detect all misstatements

Our international operations are subject to political and economic risks of developing countries

We have operations in the Middle East Oman and anticipate that portion of our contract revenue will be

derived from and portion of our long-lived assets will be located in developing countries

Conducting operations in developing countries presents significant commercial challenges for our business

disruption of activities dr loss of use of equipment or installations at any location in which we have

significant assets or operations could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
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operations Accordingly we are subject to.risks that ordinarily would not be expected to exist to the same

extent in the United States Canada Australia or Western Europe Some of these risks include

civil uprisings terrorism riots and war which can make it impractical to continue operations

adversely affect both budgets and schedules and expose us to losses

repatriating foreign currency received in excess of local currency requirements and converting it into

dollars or other tungible currency

exchange rate fluctuations which can reduce the purchasing power of local currencies and cause

our costs to exceed our budget reducing our operating margin in the affected country

expropriation of assets by either recognized or unrecognized foreign government which can

disrupt our business activities and create delays and corresponding losses

availability of suitable personnel and equipment which can be affected by government policy or

changes in policy which limit the importation of skilled craftsmen or specialized equipment in areas

where local resources are insufficient

governmental instability which can cause investment in capital projects by our potential customers

to be withdrawn or delayed reducing or eliminating the Viability of some markets for our services

decrees laws regulations interpretations and court decisions under legal systems which are not

always fully developed and which may be retroactively applied and cause us to incur unanticipated

and/or unrecoverable costs as well as delays which may result in real or opportunity costs and

restrictive governmental registration and licensing requirements which can limit the pursuit of

certain business activities

Our operations in developing countries may be adversely affected in the event any governmental agencies in

these countries interpret laws regulations or court decisions in manner which might be considered

inconsistent or inequitable in the United States Canada Australia or Western Europe We may be subject to

unanticipated taxes including income taxes excise duties import taxes export taxes sales taxes or other

governmental assessments which could have material adverse effect on our results of operations for any

quarter or year

These risks may result in material adverse effect on our results of operations

We may be adversely affected bya concentration of business in particular country

Due to limited number of major projects worldwide we expect to have substantial portion of our

resources dedicated to projects located in few countries Therefore our results of operations are

susceptible to adverse events beyond our control that may occur in particular country in which our

business may be concentrated at that time Economic downturns in such countries could also have an

adverse impact on our operations

Special risks associated with doing business in highly corrupt environments may adversely affect

our business

Our international business operations may include projects in countries where corruption is prevalent Since

the anti-bribery restrictions of the FCPA make it illegal for us to give anything of value to foreign officials in

order to obtain or retain any business or other advantage we may be subject to competitive disadvantages

to the extent that our competitors are able to secure business licenses or other preferential treatment by

making payments to government officials and others in positions of influence

Our backlog is subject to unexpected adjustments and cancellations and is therefore an uncertain

indicator of our future earnings

We cannot guarantee that therevenue projected in our backlog will be realized or profitable Projects may
remain in our backlog for an extended period of time In addition project cancellations terminations or

scope adjustments may occur from time to time with respect to contracts reflected in our backlog anJ could

reduce the dollar amount of our backlog and the revenue and profits that we actually earn Many of our

contracts have termination for convenience provisions in them in some cases without any provision for

penalties or lost profits Therefore project terminations suspensions or scope adjustments may occur from

time to time with respect to contracts in our backlog Finally poor project or contract performance could also

impact our backlog and profits
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Managing backlog in our Utility TD segment also has other challenges Backlog for anticipated projects in

this segment is determined based on recurring historical trends seasonal demand and projected customer

needs but the agreements in this segment rarely have minimum volume or spending obligations and many
of the contracts may be terminated by the customers on short notice Fbr projects in this segment on which

we have commenced work that are cancelled we may be reimbursed for certain costs but typically have no

contractual right to the total revenues included in our backlog

Federal and state legislative and regulatory developments that we believe should encourage electric

power transmission and natural gas pipeline infrastructure spending may fail to result in increased

demand for our Utility TD services

In recent years federal and state legislation has been passed and resulting regulations have been adopted

that could significantly increase spending on electric power transmission and natural gas pipeline

infrastructure including the Energy Act of 2005 the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

ARRA and state Renewable Portfolio Standard RPS programs However much fiscal regulatory and

other uncertainty remains as to the impact this legislation and regulation will ultimately have on the demand

for our Utility TD services For instance regulations implementing provisions of the Energy Act of 2005 that

may affect demand for our Utility TD services remain in some cases subject to review in various federal

courts In one such case decided in February 2009 federal court of appeals vacated FERCs

interpretation of the scope of its backstop transmission line siting authority for electric power transmission

projects Accordingly the effect of these regulations once finally implemented is uncertain and may not

result in increased spending on the electric power transmission infrastructure Continued uncertainty

regarding the implementation of the Energy Act of 2005 and ARRA may result in slower growth in demand

for our Utility TD services

Renewable energy initiatives including Texas CREZ plan other RPS initiatives and ARRA may not lead to

increased demand for our Utility TD services while 29 states and Washington D.C have mandatory RPS

programs that require certain percentages of power to be generated from renewable sources the RPS

programs adopted in many states became law during periods of substantially higher oil and natural gas

prices As result or for budgetary or other reasons states may reduce those mandates or make them

optional or extend deadlines which could reduce delay or eliminate renewable energy development in the

affected states In addition states may limit delay or otherwise alter existing RPS programs in anticipation of

potential federal renewable energy standard Furthermore renewable energy is generally more expensive

to produce and may require additional power generation sources as backup Funding for RPS programs may
not be available or may be further constrained as result of the significant declines in government budgets

and subsidies and in the availability of credit to finance the significant capital expenditures necessary to build

renewable generation capacity These factors could lead 1o fewer projects resulting from RPS programs than

anticipated or delay in the timing of these projects and the related infrastructure which would negatively

affect the demand for our Utility TD services Moreover even if the RPS programs are fully developed and

funded we cannot be certain that we will be awarded any resulting contracts In addition we cannot predict

when programs under ARRA will be implemented or the timing and scope of any investments to be made
under these programs particularly in light of capital constraints on potential developers of these projects

Infrastructure projects such as those envisioned by CREZ and RPS initiatives are also subject to delays or

cancellation due to local factors such as siting disputes protests and litigation Before we will receive

revenues from infrastructure buildouts associated with any of these projects substantial advance

preparations are required such as engineering procurement and acquisition and clearance of rights-of-way

all of which are beyond our control Investments for renewable energy and electric power infrastructure

under ARRA may not occur may be less than anticipated or may be delayed may be concentrated in

locations where we do not have significant capabilities and any resulting contracts may not be awarded to

us any of which could negatively impact demand for our Utility TD services

In addition the increase in long-term demand for natural gas that we believe will benefit from anticipated

U.S greenhouse gas regulations such as cap-and-trade program or carbon taxes may be delayed or may
not occur For example we cannot predict whether or in what form cap-and-trade provisions and renewable

energy standards such as those in the bill passed by the U.S House of Representatives in 2009 will become

law especially in light of Senate Majority Leader Reids 2010 decision to advance an energy bill which does

not include cap-and-trade provisions It is difficult to accurately predict the timing and scope of any potential

greenhouse gas regulations that may ultimately be adopted or the extent to which demand for natural gas
will increase as result of any such regulations

Our failure to recover adequately on claims against project owners for payment could have

material adverse effect on us
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We occasionally bring claims against project owners for additional costs exceeding the contract price or for

amounts not included in the original contract price These types of claims occur due to mailers such as

owner-caused delays or changes from the initial project scope which result in additional costs both direct

and indirect These claims can be the subject of lengthy arbitration or litigation proceedings and it is often

difficult to accurately predict when these claims will be fully resolved When these types of events occur and

unresolved claims are pending we may invest significant working capital in projects to cover cost overruns

pending the resolution of the relevant claims failure to promptly recover on these types of claims could

have material adverse impact on our liquidity and financial condition

Our failure to resolve matters related to facility construction project termination could have

material adverse impact on us

On January 13 2010 TransCanada Pipelines Ltd TCPL notified us that we were in breach of contract

and were being terminated for cause immediately on cost reimbursable plus fixed fee construction contract

for seven pump station in Nebraska and Kansas that was awarded to us in September 2008 At the time of

termination wehad completed approximately 96.0 percent of our scope of work

We have disputed the validity of the termination for cause and have challenged the contractual procedure

followed by TCPL for termination for cause which allows for 30-day notification period during which time

we are supposed to have an opportunity to remedy the alleged default Despite not being granted this time

we agreed in good faith to cooperate with TCPL in an orderly demobilization and handover of the remaining

work As of December 31 2010 we have outstanding receivables related to this project of $71.2 million and

unapproved change orders for additional work of $4.2 million which have not been billed Additionally there

are claims for additional fees totaling $16.4 million It is our policy not to recognize revenue or income on

unapproved change orders or claims until they have been approved Accordingly the $4.2 million in pending

change orders and the $16.4 million of claims have been excluded from our revenue recognition The

preceding balances are partially offset by an unissued billing credit of $2.0 million related to TCPL

mobilization prepayment

If the termination for cause is determined to be valid and enforceable we could be held liable for damages

resulting from the alleged breach of contract including but not limited to costs incurred by TCPL to hire

replacement contractor to complete the remainder of the work less the cost that we would have incurred to

perform the same scope of work Although we do not believe we are in breach of contract and intend to

pursue our contractual and legal remedies including having commenced arbitration and filed liens on

constructed facilities the resolution of this mailer could have material adverse effect on our financial

condition or results of operations TCPLs response to the notice of arbitration included counterclaim for

damages of $23.1 million for the alleged breach of contract inclusive of the unissued billing credit of $2.0

million for mobilization prepayment TCPL has also disclaimed responsibility for payment of the current

receivable balance outstanding at December 31 2010 the unapproved change orders and claims for

additional fee TransCanada has removed us from TransCanadas bid list

Our business is dependent on limited number of key clients

We operate primarily in the oil and gas refinery petrochemical and electric power industries providing

services to limited number of clients Much of our success depends on developing and maintaining

relationships with our major clients and obtaining share of contracts from these clients The loss of any of

our major clients could have material adverse effect on our operations One client is responsible for 14.8

percent of our 12 month backlog and 36.6 percent of our total backlog at December 31 2010

Our use of fixed price contracts could adversely affect our operating results

significant portion of our revenues are currently generated by fixed price contracts Under fixed price

contract we agree on the price that we will receive for the entire project based upon defined scope which

includes specific assumptions and project criteria If our estimates of our own costs to complete the project

are below the actual costs that we may incur our margins will decrease and we may incur loss The

revenue cost and gross profit realized on fixed price contract will often vary from the estimated amounts

because of unforeseen conditions or changes in job conditions and variations in labor and equipment

productivity over the term of the contract If we are unsuccessful in mitigating these risks we may realize

gross profits that are different from those originally estimated and incur reduced profitability or losses on

projects Depending on the size of project these variations from estimated contract performance could

have significant effect on our operating results for any quarter or year In general turnkey contracts to be

performed on fixed price basis involve an increased risk of significant variations This is result of the

long-term nature of tirese contracts and the inherent difficulties in estimating costs and of the
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interrelationship of the integrated services to be provided under these contracts whereby unanticipated

costs or delays in performing part of the contract can have compounding effects by increasing costs of

performing other parts of the contract

In addition our Utility TD segment also generates substantial revenue under unit price contracts under

which we have agreed to perform identified units of work for an agreed price which have similar associated

risks unit can be as small as the installation of single bolt or foot of cable or as large as

transmission tower or foundation The resulting profitability of particular unit is primarily dependent upon

the labor and equipment hours expended to complete the task that comprises the unit Failure to accurately

estimate the costs of completing particular project could result in reduced profits or losses

Percentage-of-completion method of accounting for contract revenue may result in material

adjustments that would adversely affect our operating results

We recognize contract revenue using the percentage-of-completion method on long-term fixed price

contracts Under this method estimated contract revenue is accrued based generally on the percentage that

costs to date bear to total estimated costs taking into consideration physical completion Estimated contract

losses are recognized in full when determined Accordingly contract revenue and total cost estimates are

reviewed and revised periodically as the work progresses and as change orders are approved and

adjustments based upon the percentage-of-completion are reflected in contract revenue in the period when

these estimates are revised These estimates are based on managements reasonable assumptions and our

historical experience and are only estimates Variation of actual results from these assumptions or our

historical experience could be material To the extent that these adjustments result in an increase

reduction or an elimination of previously reported contract revenue we would recognize credit or charge

against current earnings which could be material

Terrorist attacks and war or risk of war may adversely affect our results of operations our ability to

raise capital or secure insurance or our future growth

The continued threat of terrorism and the impact of military and other action will likely lead to continued

volatility in prices for crude oil and natural gas and could affect the markets for our operations In addition

future acts of terrorism could be directed against companies operating both outside and inside the United

States Further the U.S government has issued public warnings that indicate that pipelines and other

energy assets might be specific targets of terrorist organizations These developments may subject our

operations to increased risks and depending on their ultimate magnitude could have material adverse

effect on our business

Our.operations are subject to number of operational risks

Our business operations include pipeline construction fabrication pipeline rehabilitation services and

construction and turnaround and maintenance services to refiners and petrochemical facilities These

operations involve high degree of operational risk Natural disasters adverse weather conditions collisions

and operator error could cause personal injury or loss of life severe damage to and destruction of property

equipment and the environment and suspension of operations In locations where we perform work with

equipment that is owned by others our continued use of the equipment can be subject to unexpected or

arbitrary interruption or termination The occurrence of any of these events could result in work stoppage
loss of revenue casualty loss increased costs and significant liability to third parties

The insurance protection we maintain may not be sufficient or effective under all circumstances or against all

hazards to which we may be subject An epforceable claim for which we are not fully insured could have

material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations Moreover we may not be able to

maintain adequate insurance in the future at rates that we consider reasonable

Our goodwill may become impaired

We have substantial amount of goodwill following our acquisitions of InfrastruX Integrated Service

Company Midwest Management 1987 Ltd and Wink Companies LLC At least annually we evaluate our

goodwill for impairment based on the fair value of each operating unit This estimated fair value could

change if there were future changes in our capital structure cost of debt interest rates capital expenditure

levels or ability to perform at levels that were forecasted These changes could result in an impairment that

would require material non-cash charge to our results of operations significant decrease in expected

cash flows or changes in market conditions may indicate potential impairment of recorded goodwill We
have continued to experience sustained adverse market conditions primarily in our downstream market

space During the thiFd quarter of 2010 in connection with the completion of the preliminary forecast for
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2011 it became evident that goodwill impairment at Downstream Oil Gas was probable As result

preliminary step one analysis for that segment was performed Using preliminary discounted cash flow

analysis supported by comparative market multiples to determine the fair value of the segment versus its

carrying value an estimated range of likely impairment was determined and an impairment charge of

$12000 was recorded during the third quarter of 2010 During the fourth quarter of 2010 we completed our

annual evaluation of goodwill which resulted in an additional non-cash pre-tax charge of $48000 We will

continue to monitor the carrying value of our goodwill

We may become liable for the obligations of our joint ventures and our subcontractors

Some of our projects are performed through joint ventures with other parties In addition to the Usual liability

of contractors for the completion of contracts and the warranty of our work where work is performed through

joint venture we also have potential liability for the work performed by our joint ventures In these projects

even if we satisfactorily complete our project responsibilities within budget we may incur additional

unforeseen costs due to the failure of our joint ventures to perform or complete work in accordance with

contract specifications

We act as prime contraptor on majority of the construction projects we undertake In our capacity as prime

contractor and when acting as subcontractor we perform most of the work on our projects with our own

resources and typically subcontract only such specialized activities as hazardous waste removal
nondestructive inspection and catering and security However with respect to EPC and other contracts

including those in our Utility TD segment we may choose to subcontract portion or substantial portion of

the project In the construction industr the prime contractor is normally responsible for the jerformance of

the entire contract including subcontract work Thus when acting as prime contractor we are subject to

the risk associated with the failure of one or more subcontractors to perform as anticipated

Governmental regulations could adversely affect our business

Many aspects of our operations are subject to governmental regulations in the countries in which we

operate including those relating to currency conversion and repatriation taxation of our earnings and

earnings of our personnel the increasing requirement in some countries to make greater use of local

employees and suppliers including in some jurisdictions mandates that provide for greater local

participation in the ownership and control of certain local business assets In addition we depend on the

demand for our services from the oil and gas refinery petrochemical and electric power industries and
therefore our business is affected by changing taxes price controls and laws and regulations relating to

these industries generally The adoption of laws and regulations by the countries or the states in which we

operate that are intended to curtail
exploration

and development drilling for oil and gas or the development of

electric power generation facilities for economic and other policy reasons could adversely affect our

operations by limiting demand for our services

Our operations are also subject to the risk of changes in laws and policies which may impose restrictions on

our business including trade restrictions which could have material adverse effect on our operations

Other types of governmental regulation which could if enacted or implemented adversely affect our

operations include

expropriation or nationalization decrees

confiscatory tax systems

primary or secondary boycotts directed at specific countries or companies

embargoes

extensive import restrictions or other trade barriers

mandatory sourcing and local participation rules

stringent local registration or ownership requirements

oil gas or electric power price regulation

unrealistically high labor rate and fuel price regulation and

registration and licensing requirements
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Our future operations and earnings may be adversely affected by new legislation new regulations or

changes in or new interpretations of existing regulations and the impact of these changes could be

material

Our strategic plan relies in part on acquisitions to sustain our growth Acquisitions of other

companies present certain risks and uncertainties

Our strategic plan involves growth through among other things the acquisition of other companies Such

growth involves number of risks including

inhecent difficulties relating to combining previously separate businesses

diversion of managements attention from ongoing day-to-day operations

the assumption of liabilities of an acquired business including both foreseen and unforeseen

liabilities

failure to realize anticipated benefits such as cost savings and revenue enhancements

potentially substantial transaction costs associated with business combinations

difficulties relating to assimilating the personnel services and systems of an acquired business and

to integrating marketing contracting commercial and other operational disciplines

difficulties in applying and integrating our system of internal control to an acquired business and

failure to retain key or essential employees or customers of or any government contracts held by
an acquired business

In addition we can provide no assurance that we will continue to locate suitable acquisitioa targets or that

we will be able to consummate any such transactions on terms and conditions acceptable to us Acquisitions

may bring us into businesses we have noLpreviously conducted and expose us to additional business risks

that are different than those we have traditionaly experienced

We may not be able to successfully integrate our acquisition of InfrastruX which could cause our

business to suffer

Our acquisition of InfrastruX is significant InfrastruX total assets account for approximately 55.9 percent of

our total assets as December 31 2019 We may not be able to successfully combine the operations

personnel and tpchnology of InfrastruX with our operations Because of the size and qpmlexity of

InfrastruXs business if integration is not managed successfully by our management we may experience

interruptions in our business activities decrease in the quality of our services deterioration in our

employee and customer relationships increased costs of integration and harm to our repitation all of which

could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations We
entered new lines of business when we acquired InfrastruX that we do not have experience managing such

as the electrical transmission business Particularly because we will have to learn how to manage new lines

of business the integration of InfrastruX with our operations will require significant attention from

management which may decrease the time management will have to serve existing customers attract new

customers and develop new services and strategies We may also experience difficulties in combining

corporate cultures maintaining employee morale and retaining key employees The integration with

InfrastruX may also impose substantial demands on our operations or other projects We will have to actively

strive to demonstrate to our existing customers that the acquisition will not result ih adverse changes in our

standards or business focus The integration of InfrastruX also involved significant capital commitment
and the return that we achieve on any capital invested may be less than the return achieved on our other

projects or investments There will be challenges in consolidating and rationalizing information technology

platforms and administrative infrastructures In addition any delays or increased costs of combining the

companies could adversely affect our operations financial results and liquidity

We may not realize the growth opportunities and cost synergies that are anticipated from our

acquisition of InfrastruX

The benefits we expect to achieve as result of our acquisition of InfrastruX will depend inpart on our

ability to realize anticipated growth opportunities and cost synergies Our success in realizing these growth

opportunities and cost synergies and the timing of this realization depends on the successful integration of

InfrastruXs business and operations with our business and operations Even if we are able to integrate our

business with InfrastruXs business successfully this integration may not result in the realization of the full
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benefits of the growth opportunities and cost synergies we currently expect from this integration within the

anticipated time frame or at all For example we may be unable to eliminate duplicative costs Moreover we

anticipate that we will incur substantial expenses in connection with the integration of our business with

InfrastruXs business While we anticipate that certain expenses will be incurred such expenses are difficult

to estimate accurately and may exceed current estimates Accordingly the benefits from the proposed

acquisition may be offset by costs incurred or delays in integrating the companies which could cause our

revenue assumptions to be inaccurate

The acquisition of lnfrastruX may expose us to unindemnified liabilities

As result of the recent acquisition we acquired InfrastruX subject to all of its liabilities including contingent

liabilities If there are unknown InfrastruX obligations our business could be materially and adversely

affected We may learn additional information about InfrastruXs business that adversely affects us such as

unknown liabilities issues that could affect our ability to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or issues that

could affect our ability to comply with other applicable laws As result we can provide no assurance that

the acquisition of lnfrastruX will be successful or will not in fact harm our business Among other things if

InfrastruXs liabilities are greater than expected pr if there are material obligations of which we were not

aware until after the time of completion of the acquisition our business could be materially and adversely

affected If we become responsible for liabilities not covered by indemnification rights or substantially in

excess of amounts covered through any indemnification rights we could suffer severe consequences that

would substantially reduce our revenues earnings and cash flows Further given the amount of

indebtedness that we incurred to fund the acquisition we may not be able to obtain additional financing

required for any significant expenditures on favorable terms or at all

We are self-insured against many potential liabilities

Although we maintain insurance policies with respect to automobile liability general liability workers

compensation and employee group health claims many of those policies are subject to substantial

deductibles and we are self-insured up to the amount of the deductible Since most claims against us do not

exceed the deductibles under our insurance policies we are effectively self-insured for substantially all

claims We actuarially determine any liabilities for unpaid claims and associated expenses including

incurred but not reported losses and reflect those liabilities in our balance sheet as other current and

noncurrent liabilities The determination of such claims and expenses and the appropriateness of the liability

is reviewed and updated quarterly However insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to

many relevant factors the effects of which are often unknown including the severity of an injury the

determination of our liability in proportion to other parties the number of incidents not reported and the

effectiveness of our safety program If our insurance claims increase or costs exceed our estimates of

insurance liabilities we could experience decline in profitability and liquidity See Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsCritical Accounting Policies

Insurance

Our hiŁtorical and pro forma combined financial information may not be representative of our results

as combined company

The pro forma combined financial information that we file with the SEC is constructed from the separate

financial statements of Willbros Group Inc and InfrastruX and does not purport to be indicative of the

financial information that will result from operations of the combined companies In addition the pro forma

combined financial information that we file with the SEC is based in part on certain assumptions regarding

the acquisition that we believe are reasonable We cannot assure you that our assumptions will prove to be

accurate over time Accordingly the historical and pro forma combined financial information that we file with

the SEC does not purport to be indicative of what our results of operations and financial condition would

have been had we been combined entity during the periods presented or what our results of ojerations

and financial condition will be in the future The àhallenge of integrating previously ihd9pendent businesses

makes evaluating our business and our future financial prospects difficult Our potential for future business

sucbess and operating profitability must be considered in light of the risks uncertainties expenses and

difficulties typically encountered by recently combined companies

Our operations expose us to potential environmental liabilities

Our U.S and Canadian operations are subject to numerous environmental protection laws and regulations

which are complex and stringent We regularly perform work in and around sensitive environmental areas
such as rivers lakes and wetlands Part of the business in our Utility TD segment is done in the

southwestern U.S where there is greater risk of fines work stoppages or other sahctions for disturbing
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Native American artifacts and archeological sites Significant fines penalties and other sanctions may be

imposed for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations and some environmental laws provide

for joint and several strict liabilities for remediation of releases of hazardous substances rendering person

liable for environmental damage without regard to negligence or fault on the part of such person In addition

to potential liabilities that may be incurred in satisfying these requirements we may be subject to claims

alleging personal injury or property damage as result of alleged exposure to hazardous substances These

laws and regulations may expose us to liability arising out of the conduct of operations or conditions caused

by others or for our acts which were in compliance with all applicable laws at the time these acts were

performed

We own and operate several properties in the United States and Canada that have been used for number

of years for the storage and maintenance of equipment and Upon which hydrocarbons or other wastes may
have been disposed or released Any release ofsubstances by us or by third parties who previously

operated on these properties may be subject to the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation

and Liability Act CERCLA the Resource Compensation and Recovery Act RCRA and/or analogous

state provincial or local laws CERCLA imposes joint and several liabilities without regard to fault or the

legality of the original conduct on certain classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for the

release of hazardous substances into the environment while RCRA governs the generation storage

transfer and disposal of hazardous wastes Under these or similar laws we could be required to remove or

remediate previously disposed wastes and clean up contaminated property This could have significant

impact on our future results

Our operations outØide of the United States and Canada are oftentimes potentially subject to similar

governmental or provincial controls and rettrictions relating to the environment

We are unable to predict how legislation or new regulations that may be adopted to address

greenhouse gas emissions would impact our business segments

Recent scientific studies have suggested that emissions of certain gases commonly referred to as

greenhouse gases may be contributing to warming of the earths atmosphere As result there have been

variety of regulatory developments proposals or requirements and legislative initiatives that have been

introduced and/or issued in the United States as well as other parts of the world that are focused on

restricting the emission of carbon dioxide methane and other greenhouse gases Although it is difficult to

accurately predict how such legislation or regulations including those introduced or adopted in the future

would impact our business and operations it is possible that such laws and regulations could result in

greater compliance costs or operating restrictions for us and/or our customers and could adversely affect the

demand for some of our services

Our industry is highly competitive which could impede Our growth

We operate in highly competitive environment substantial number of the major projects that we pursue

are awarded based on bid proposals We compete for these projects against government-owned or

supported companies and other companies that have substantially greater financial and other resources

than we do In some markets there is competition from national and regional firms against which we may not

be able to compete on price Our growth may be impacted to the extent that we are unable to successfully

bid against these companies The global recession has intensified competition in the industries in which we
operate as our competitors in these industries pursue reduced work volumes Our competitors may have

lower overhead cost structures greater resources or other advantages and therefore may be able to

provide their services at lower rates than ours or elect to place bids on projects that drive down margins to

lower levels than we would.accept

We also face competition in new Senas resulting from our acquisition of InfrastruX For.example in recent

years our cable restoration business in our Utility TD segment has begun to face increasing competition

froth alternative technologies Our CäbIeCURE product sales may be adversely affected by technological

improvements by one or more of our competitors and/or the expiration of our exclusive intellectual property

rights in such technology If we are unable to keep pace with current or future technological advances in

cable restoration our business financial condition and results of operations could suffer

Our operating results could be adversely affected if our non-U.S operations became taxable in the

United States

If any income earned before our change of domibile in March 2Ô09 by Willbros Group Inc or its non
U.S subsidiaries front operations outside the United States constituted income effectively connected with
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U.S trade or business and as result became taxable in the United States our consolidated operating

results could be materially and adversely affected

We are dependent upon the services of our executive management

Our success depends heavily on the continued services of our executive management Our management
team is the nexus of our operational experience and customer relationships Our ability to manage business

risk and satisfy the expectations of our clients stockholders and other stakeholders is dependent upon the

collective experience and relationships of our management team The lnfrastruX acquisition will further test

our management team as we continue to absorb significant new business without significantly expanding

the size of our management team We also may not be able to retain InfrastruXs operating unit managers

project managers and field supervisors who are personnel that are critical to the continued growth of

InfrastruXs business We do not maintain key man life insurance for these individuals The loss or

interruption of services provided by one or more of our senior officers could adversely affect our results of

operations

Our storm restoration revenues are highly volatile and unpredictable which could result in

substantial variations in and uncertainties regarding our results of operations generated by our

Utility TD business

Revenues derived from our storm restoration services are highly volatile and uncertain due to the

unpredictable nature of weather-related events InfrastruXs annual storm restoration revenues have been as

high as $67.0 million in 2008 when InfrastruX experienced the largest storm restoration revenues in its

history as several significant hurricanes impacted the Gulf Coast and Florida and ice storms affected the

Northeast but storm restoration revenues were substantially lower in 2009 Therefore InfrastruXs storm

restoration revenues for 2008 are not indicative of the revenues that this business typically generates in any

period or can be expected to generate in any future period Our Utility TD segments revenues and

operating income will likely continue to be subject to significant variations and uncertainties due to the

volatility of our storm restoration volume We may not be able to generate incremental revenues from storm

activities to the extent that we do not receive permission from our regular customers including Oncor to

divert resources to the restoration work for customers with which we do not have ongoing MSA relationships

somthimes referred to in this Form 10-K as off-system work In addition our storm restoration revenues are

offset in part by declines in our transmission and distribution TD services because we staff storm

restoration mobilizations by diverting resources from our TD services

Seasonal variations and inclement weather may cause fluctuations in our operating results

profitability cash flow and working capital needs related to our Utility TD segment

We have not historically considered seasonality significant risk but because significant portion of our

business in our Utility TD segment is performed outdoors our results of operations are exposed to

seasonal variations and inclement weather Our Utility TD segment performs less work in the winter

months and work is hindered during other inclement weather events Our Utility TD segment revenue and

profitability often decrease during the winter months and during severe weather conditions because work

performed during these periods is more costly to complete During periods of peak electric power demand in

the summer utilities generally are unable to remove their electric power TD equipment from service

decreasing the demand for our maintenance services during such periods The seasonality of this segments
business also causes our working capital needs to fluctuate Because this segments operating cash flow is

usually lower during and immediately following the winter months we typically experience need to finance

portion of this segments working capital during the spring and summer

We depend on our ability to protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights in our cable

restoration and testing businesses and we cannot be certain of their confidentiality and protection

Our success in the cable restoration and testing markets depends in part on our ability to protect our

proprietary products and services If we are unable to protect our proprietary products and services our

cable restoration and testing business may be adversely affected To protect our proprietary technology we

rely primarily on trade secrets and confidentiality restrictions in contracts with employees customers and

other third parties We also have license to the patents Dow Corning Corporation holds from the

U.S Patent and Trademark Office relating to our CabIeCURE product In addition we hold number of

U.S and international patents most of which relate to certain materials used in treating cables with

CabIeCURE We also hold the patent and trademark to CabIeWISE If we fail to protect our intellectual

property rights adequately our competitors may gain access to that technology and our cable restoration

business may be harmed Any of our intellectual property rights may be challenged by others or invalidated
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through administrative processes or litigation proceedings Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary

technology unauthorized persons may be able to copy reverse engineer or otherwise use some of our

proprietary technology Furthermore existing laws may afford only limited protection and the laws of certain

countries in which we operate do not protect proprietary technology as well as established law ih the

U.S For these reasons we may have difficulty protecting our proprietary technology against unauthorized

copying or use or maintaining our market share with respect to our proprietary technology offerings In

addition litigation may be necessary to protect our proprietary technology This type of litigation is often

costly and time consuming with no assurance of success

We contribute to multi-employer plans that could result in liabilities to us if those plans are

terminated or we withdraw from those plans

We contribute to several multi-employer pension plans for employees covered by collective bargaining

agreements These plans are not administered by us and contributions are determined in accordance with

provisions of negotiated labor contracts The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as

amended by the Multi-employer Pension Plan Amendments Act of 1980 imposes certain liabilities upon

employers who are contributors to multi-employer plan in the event of the employers withdrawal from or

upon termination of such plan We do not routinely review information on the net assets and actuSrial

present value of the multi-employer pension plans unfunded vested benefits allocable to us if any and we
are not presently aware of the amounts if any for which we may be contingently liable if we were to
withdraw from any of these plans In addition if the funding of any of these multi-employer plans becomes jn

critical status under the Pension Protection Act of 2006 we could be required to make significant additional

contributions to those plans

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK

Our common stock which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange has from time to time

experienced significant price and volume fluctuations These fluctuations are likely to continue in

the future and you may not be able to resell your shares of common stock at or above the purchase

price paid by you

The market price of our common stock may change significantly in response to various factors and events

beyond our control including the following

the risk factors described in this Item IA

shortfall in operating revenue or net income from that expected by securities analysts and

investors

changes in securities analysts estimates of our financial performance or the financial

performance of our competitors or companies in our industries generally

general conditions in our customersindustries and

general conditions in the securities markets

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may inhibit takeover which may adversely affect the

performance of our stock

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals or make it more

difficult for third party to acquire us which mayadversely affect the price that investors might be willing to

pay for our common stock For example our certificate of incorporation and bylaws

provide for classified board of directors which allows only one-third of our directors to be

elected each year

deny stockholders the ability to take action by written consent

establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our Board of Directors and

business to be brought by stockholders before any meeting of the stockholders

provide that special meetings of stockholders may be called only by our Board of Directors

Chairman Chief Executive Officer or President and

authorize our Board of Directors to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred

stock
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Future sales of our common stock may depress our stock price

Sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market or otherwise either by us

member of management or major stockholder or the perception that these sales could occur may

depress the market price of our common stock and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of

additional equity securities

In the event we issue stock as consideration for certain acquisitions or to fund our corporate

activities we may dilute share ownership

We rbw our business organically as well as through acquisitions One method ef acquiring companies or

otherwiset funding our corporate activities is through the issuance of additional equity secüritie If we do

issue additional equity securities such issuances may have the effect of diluting our earnings per share as

well as our existing stockholders individual ownership percentages in our company

Ourprior sale of common stock warrants and convertible notes and our outstanding warrants and

convertible notes may lead further dilution of our issued and outstanding stock

In November 2007 we completed an underwritten public offering of 7906250 shares of our common stock

In October 2006 we sold 3722360 shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase an additidna

558354 shares of which warrants to purchase 536925 shares of common stock remained outstanding at

December 31 2010 The issuance of warrants and the prior issuance of $70.0 million in aggregate principal

amount of our 2.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2024 the 2.75% Notes and $84.5 million of our 6.5%

Senior Convertible Notes due 2012 the 6.5% Notes may cause significant increase in the number of

shares of common stock currently outstanding In May 2007 we induced the conversion of approximately

$52.5 million in aggregate principal amount of our outstanding 6.5% Notes into total of 2987582 shares of

our common stock. In addition certain holders have exercised their right to convert the 2.75% Notes

converting approximately $10.6 million in aggregate principal amount of the 2.75% Notes into 546633

shares of our common stock as of December 31 2010 As of December 31 2010 3048642 shares of

common stock are issuable upon conversion of approximately $59.4.million in aggregate principal amount of

the 2.75% Notes and 1825587 shares of common stock are issuable upon conversion of approximately

$32.1 million in aggregate principal amount of the 6.5% Notes If we elect to induce the conversion of

additional convertible notes or holders elect to convert additional convertible notes there may be

significant increase in the number of shares of our common stock outstanding

Our authorized shares of common stock consist of 70 million shares The issuance of additional common
stock or securities convertible into our common stock would result in further dilution of the ownership interest

in us held by existing stockholders We are authorized to issue without stockholder approval one million

shares of preferred stock which may give other stockholders dividend converSion voting and liquidation

rights among other rights which may be superior to the rights of holders of our common stock While our

Board of Directors has no present intention of issuing any such preferred stock other than pursuant to any

earnout payments that may be made in connebtion with our acquisitiOn of InfrastruX it reserves the right to

do so in the future
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Legal Proceedings

For information regarding legal proceedings see the discussion under the captions Contingencies

Facility Construction Project Termination in Note 16 Contingencies Commitments and Other

Circumstances and Nigeria Assets and Nigeria-Based Operations Share Purchase Agreement in Note

21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement of our Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements in Item of Part II of this Form 10-K which information from Notes 16

and 21 is incorporated by reference herein

We are party to number of other legal proceedings We believe that the nature and number of these

other proceedings are typical for company of our size engaged in our type of business and that none of

these other proceedings will result in material adverse effecton our business results of operations or

financial condition

Item Reserved

Item 4A Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers Officers are elected annually

by and serve at the discretion ofthe Board of Directors

Name Positions

Robert Harl 60 Director President and Chief Executive Officer

Van Welch 56 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

James Gibson 60 Chief Operating Officer

Peter Arbour 62 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Robert Berra 43 Executive Vice President Sales Marketing

Jerrit Coward 42 Senior Vice President Upstream Oil Gas

Richard CelIon 54 Senior Vice President Downstream Oil Gas

Robert Han was elected to the Board of Directors and President and Chief Operating Officer of

Willbros Group Inc in January 2006 and as Chief Executive Officer in January 2007 Mr Harl has over 30

years experience working with Kellogg Brown Root global engineering construction and services

company KBR and its subsidiaries in variety of officer capacities serving as President of several of

KBRs business units Mr Harls experience includes executive management responsibilities for units

serving both upstream and downstream oil and gas sectors as well as power governmental and

infrastructure sectors He was President and Chief Executive Officer of KBR from March 2001 until July

2004 when he was appointed Chairman position he held until January 2005 KBR filed for reorganization

under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code in December 2003 in order to discharge certain asbestos and

silica personal injury claims The order confirming KBRs plan of reorganization became final in December

2004 and the plan of reorganization became effective in January 2005 Mr Harl was engaged as

consultant to Willbros from August 2005 until he became an executive officer and member of the Board of

Directors of Willbros in January 2006 In October 2010 Mr HarI resigned from the office of Chief Operating

Officer prior to Mr Gibsons election to that office

Van Welch joined Willbros in 2006 as Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of

Willbros Group Inc he served as Treasurer until September 2007 Mr Welch has over 28 years

experience in project controls administrative and finance positions with KBR global engineering

construction and services company and its subsidiaries serving in his last position as Vice President

Finance and Investor Relations and as member of KBRs executive leadership team From 1998 to 2006
Mr Welch held various other positions with KBR including Vice President Accounting and Finance of the

Engineering and Construction Division Vice President Accounting and Finance of Onshore Operations and

Senior Vice President of Shared Services Mr Welch is Certified Public Accountant

James Gibsonwas named Chief Operating Officer of Willbros in October 2010 Mr Gibson joined

Willbros in March 2008 He was named President Willbros Canada in July 2008 and appointed President
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Downstream Oil Gas in February 2010 Mr Gibson brings more than 39 years of diversified construction

experience in managing all aspects of project performance including cost schedules quality safety

budget regulatory requirements and subcontracting Prior to joining Willbros he was employed by KBR for

the majority of his career beginning in 1972 He held number of positions at KBR in project management
services performing work in refineries and chemical plants He has managed projects for Syncrude Canada

Limited in Alberta and other projects in the oil sands industry in the Fort McMurray area Mr Gibson holds

several contractor certifications and licenses and graduated from the University of Texas with Bachelor of

Science in Engineering

Peter Arbourjoined Willbros in May 2010 as Senior Vice President General Counsel and Corporate

Secretary Before joining Willbros he served in senior legal positions with the Expro International Group
from August 2006 to April 2010 Power Well Services from August 2004 to July 2006 and KBR where he

managed worldwide Law Department for over 10 years KBR filed for reorganization under chapter 11 of

the U.S Backruptcy code in December 2003 in order to discharge certain asbestos and silica personal injury

claims The order confirming KBRs plan of reorganization became final in December 2004 and the plan of

reorganization became effective in January 2005 Mr Arbours legal experience includes work with mergers

and acquisitions engineering and construction contracts construction claims litigation management and

compliance matters He has extensive experience in overseas projects particularly in the Middle East Asia

Pacific and Latin America Mr Arbour is member of the state bar associations of Texas and Louisiana

and holds undergraduate and Juris Doctorate degrees from Louisiana State University Mr Arbour resigned

from the office of Corporate Secretary in December 2010

Robert Berra joined Willbros in February 2011 as Executive Vice President Sales Marketing Mr
Berra has over 20 years experience in the energy industry including the oil and gas refining

petrochemicals LNG offshore government and technology sectors and has worked in capacities ranging

from engineering construction program management business development operations and executive

management Prior to joining Willbros from December 2008 to February 2011 Mr Berta served as Senior

Vice President Commercial Operations for Foster Wheeler USA Corporation global engineering and

construction contractor where he was responsible for sales marketing proposals and estimating and

executive oversight of its heavy oil technology portfolio and chemicals business line During his tenure with

ConocoPhillips from August 2006 to December 2008 Mr Berra served in senior management positions in

the Project Development function where he was responsible for global EPC contracting and led the portfolio

management for major pipeline projects Mr Berra has also served in senior leadership positions with

engineering and construction contractors The Shaw Group from November 2004 to August 2006 and KBR

from May 1990 to October 2004 Mr Berra graduated from The University of Texas at Austin with Bachelor

of Science in Mechanical Engineering and is licensed professional engineer in the State of Texas He is

member of the executive board of the Engineering Construction and Contracting ECC Association and

served as chairman of this organization in 2010

Jerrit Coward joined Willbros in 2002 as Project Manager and assumed full operations

responsibility for our Nigerian operations in 2005 overseeing the discontinuation and sale of our Nigerian

interests He was promoted to President of our Upstream Oil Gas segment in January 2008 and also

currently serves as Senior Vice President of the Company Prior to joining Willbros he worked for Global

Industries as Project Manager Operations Manager and Commercial Manager He has held foreign

assignments in Nigeria and Mexico as well as executing international projects in various other countries He

has worked his entire professional career in the oil and gas construction industry Mr Coward is graduate

of Texas AM University at Galveston with Bachelor of Science in Maritime Systems Engineering

Richard Ce/Ion wØs named President Downstream Oil Gas and Senior Vice President of the

Company in October 2010 Mr Cellon joined Willbros in January 2010 and was named as President

Government Services He was named President Government Tank Construction Tank Services within

the Downstream Oil Gas segment in July 2010 Prior to joining Willbros Mr Cellon had more than 30

years of federal government leadership experience with the United States Navy in facilities management

construction and acquisition as well as contingency operations His breadth of experience includes strategic

planning financial management and operations management of multi-year construction programs including

global leadership of the Naval Construction Force of 16000 Seabees Mr Cellon holds degrees from the

U.S Naval Academy the Naval War College the University of Florida and completed the Advanced

Management Program at the Wharton School University of Pennsylvania He retired from the U.S Navy as

Rear Admiral in 2009
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock commenced trading on the New York Stock Exchange on August 15 1996 under

the symbol WG The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock

as reported by the New York Stock Exchange for the periods indicated

High Low

For the year ended December 31 2010

FirstQuarter 18.51 11.57

Second Quarter 13.76 8.93

Third Quarter 9.75 6.80

Fourth Quarter 10.02 6.84

For the year ended December 31 2009

FirstQuarter 11.64 5.85

Second Quarter 17.01 9.21

Third Quarter 15.58 10.78

Fourth Quarter 18.11 12.59

Substantially all of our stockholders maintain their shares in street name accounts and are not

individually stockholders of record As of March 10 2011 our common stock was held by 123 holders of

record and an estimated 7400 beneficial owners

Dividend Policy

Since 1991 we have not paid any cash dividends on our capital stock except dividends in 1996 on our

outstanding shares of preferred stock which were converted into shares of common stock on July 15 1996

We anticipate that we will retain earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development

of our business Therefore we do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future Our 2010

Credit Facility prohibits us from paying cash dividends on our common stock

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about purchases of our common stock by us during the fourth

quarter of 2010

Maximum
Total Number Number or

of Shares Approximate

Purchased as Dollar Value of

Part of Shares That May
Publicly Yet Be

Total Number Average Announced Purchased

of Shares Price Paid Plans or Under the Plans

Purchased Per Share Programs or Programs

October 12010October 31 2010 950 9.46

November 2010 November 30 2010 12780 7.09

December 12010 December31 2010 681 9.82

Total 14411 7.38

Represents shares of common stock acquired from certain of our officers and key employees under the share withholding

provisions of our 1996 stock Plan and 2010 Stock and Incentive compensation Plan for the payment of taxes associated with

the vesting of shares of restricted stock granted under such plans

The price paid per common share represents the closing sales price of share of our common stock as reported by the New

York Stock Exchange on the day that the stock was acquired by us
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Item Selected Financial Data

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

1192412 1259773

2007 2006

1080391

9724

118427

60000

45340

1115224

6515

82345

1912704 947691 543259

3771 12694

10055 2499

845743 496271

794

68071 58054

22000

11083 11066
6055 11820
3477 569

15375

3824 22317

14503 2308

28327 24625
21414 83402

Statement of Operations Data

contract revenue

Operating expenses

Contract

Amortization of intangibles

General and Łdministrative

Goodwill impairment

Changes in fair value of

contingent earn-out liability

Other charges

Acquisition costs

Government fines

Operating income loss

Interest expense net

Other income expense

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations net of

provision for income taxes

Net income loss

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Wilibros Group

Reconciliation of net income attributable to Wilibros

Group Inc

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss attributable to Wilibros Group
Inn

Basic income loss per share attributable to

Company shareholders

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income loss

Diluted income loss per share attributable to

Company shareholders

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income loss

cash Flow Data

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes

Balance Sheet Data at period end
Cash and cash equivalents

Working capital

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total debt

Stockholders equity

1650156

10420

118027

62295

71806

9032
7891

70665

25942

44723

745

45468

1836
43632

42887

745

43632

1.12

0.02

114

1.10

0.02

1.12

191646

11725

60044
5001

207762

280441

787344

343209

120514

444135

44616

27565
5474

66707

36150

30557

5272

35829

1207
37036

31764

5272

37036

0.74

0.12

086

0.74

0.12

0.86

53446

404651
291220

2402

141101

269500

1285802

762262

387933

523540

40496

8328
819

32987

8734

24253

4613

19640

1817
17823

22436

4613

17823

0.58

0.12

046

0.58

0.12

0.46

53879

34036
35056

6135

198684

297736

728378

240383

104037

487995

49741

2210
51951

30537

21414

51951

1.04

0.73

177

1.04

0.73

1.77

15793

150601
219340

2297

92886

202296

778391

375666

141578

402725

108027

1036
109063

25661

83402

109063

1.14

3.72

486

1.14

3.72

4.86

102587

33373

50785

139

37643

171616

580654

478830

149697

101824
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946315 389350 655494 1305441 602272

18300 13107 53048 74548 23481

75816 80358 185059 10696 897

7271 3714 6512 5475 4156

Historically we have shown depreciation and amortization as separate line item on our Consolidated Statements of Operations

Effective for the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 depreciation and amortization related to operating activities is included in

Contract and depreciation and amortization related to general and administrative activities is included General and Administrative

GA This change in presentation was made to bring our presentation of financial results in line with our peers and provide

greater comparability of our results within the industry

Backlog is anticipated contract revenue from uncompleted portions of existing contracts and contracts whose award is reasonably

assured

EBITDA from continuing operations represents earnings from continuing operations before net interest income taxes

depreciation and amortization and impairment of intangible assets EBITDA from continuing operations is not intended to

represent cash flows for the respective period nor hasit been presented an alternative to operating income from continuing

operations as an indicator of operating performance It should not be considered in isolation or as substitute for measures of

performance prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States See our Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows in our Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K EBITDA from

continuing operations is included in this Form 10-K because it is one of the measures through which we assess our financial

performance EBITDA from continuing operations as presented may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures used by

other companies reconciliation of EBITDA from continuing operations to GAAP financial information is provided in the table

below

Goodwill impairment

Other Financial Data excluding

discontinued operations

12 Month Backlog at period end2
Capital expenditures excluding acquisitions

EBITDA

Number of employees at period end

Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measure
Income loss from continuing operations

attributable to Willbros Grouo Inc

Interest expense net

Provision benefit for income taxes

Depreciation and amortization

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

31764 22436 42887 30537 25661

EBITDA from continuing operations

27565 8328 9032 6055 11820

36150 8734 25942 145Q3 2308

56165 40860 44903 20675 12430

60000 62295

75816 80358 $185059 10696 897
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations In

thousands except share and per share amounts or unless otherwise noted

The following discussion and analysis should be read in cor3jupction with our ponsolidated financial

statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K Additional sections in this Form 10-

which should be helpful to the reading of our discussion and analysis include the following description

of our services provided by segment found in Items and Business and PropertiesServices Provided

ii description of our business strategy found in Items and Business and PropertiesOurStrategy

and iii description of risk factors affecting us and our business found in Item 1A Risk Factors

Inasmuch as the discussion below and the other sections to which we have referred you pertain to

managements comments on financial resources capital spending our business strategy and the outlook for

our business such discussions contain forward-looking statements These forward-loojcing statements

reflect the expectations beliefs plans and objectives of management about future financial performance and

assumptions underlying managements judgment concerning the matters discussed and accordingly

involve estimates assumptions judgments and upcertainties Our actual results could differ materially from

those discussed in the forward-looking statements Factors that could cause or contribute to any differences

include but are not limited to those disÆussed below and elsewhere in this Form 19-K particularly in Item

IA Risk Factors and in Forward-Looking Statements

OVERVIEW

Willbros is global provider of engineering and construction services to the oil gas refinery

petrochemical and power industries with focUs on infrastructure such as oil gas pipeline systems electric

transmission and distribution TD services and refinery downstream markets Our offerings include

engineering procurement and construction either individually or as an integrated EPC service offering

turnarounds maintenance and other specialty services

2010 Year in Review

During 2010 revenue decreased $67361 5.3 percent to $1192412 from $1259773 in 2009

Operating income excluding Special Items decreased $79902 197.3 percent to an operating loss of

$39406 from operating income of $40496 in 2009 and operating margin decreased 6.5 percentage points

to negative 3.3 percent in 2010 from an operating margin of 3.2 percent in 2009 Refer to the Financial

Summary section included in this MDA for further discussion and detail of our fourth quarter and full year

operating results and for details on Special Items

Although market conditions started to improve during the year we continued to be challenged by weaker

demand for our services which was compounded by poor visibility for the timing Of both committed projects

as well as anticipated projects As result we found ourselves maintaining our operations at resource

levels sufficient to initiate and complete these projects This situation rSulted in misalignment of our fixed

costs as result of the uncertain timing of revenues

We also incurred upfront costs to invest in the future of the Company by diversifying our end market

exposure through the InfrastruX acquisition and expanding our service offerings through opening new offices

in the gas shale play areas to increase our presence in our customers work areas We believe these

investments advance our strategy to diversify oUr end market exposure and to increase our revenue stream

from recurring services Growing our revenue stream associated with more redurring services will provide

improved stability and predictability. Strategically we are in the midst of transformation We have

successfully refocused our business model on North America expanded our addressable markets to include

significant exposure to the second largest hydrocarbon reserves in the world the oil sands in Canada the

massive unconventional shale play developments in the U.S the industrial process and refining market and

the expansion and improvement of the North American electric utility grid We believe each of these markets

carries with it significant recurring services opportunities

Our acquisition of InfrastruX came with more costly debt than originally expected and substantial

overhead and indirect costs The delays which we discussed in our third quarter earnings call also

contributed to our loss position and reduced our financial flexibility For the projects that we have been

awarded in our upstream and downstream businesses the market remains highly competitive and we bid

most of these projects with tighter margins and results in Canada were negatively impacted by delays and

cost overruns on certain projects
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On the positive side we had many successes We had good results on our major project execution in

the United States which can be highlighted by our superior performance executing the Fayetteville Express

Pipeline FEP project which we completed under budget and on schedule Additionally our Upstream Oil

Gas engineering unit exceeded its plan nd our Downstream Oil Gas segment improved its performance

to better than breakeven in the second half of the year as we anticipated

Looking Forward to 2011

As we move into 2011 our number one riority is restoring our financial strength Our manaement
team is focused on four priority objectives

Reduce debt by approximately $50 tp $100 million to significantly reduce interest expense and

provide better financial flexibility This àhould translate more of our EBITDA into earnings

Maintain our focus on North America Our presence in the Canadian oil sands and the U.S electric

transmission markets present the best growth opportunities for us This is where our key markets

and resources come together to offer the best risk adjusted returns Currently weare not planning

to pursue large international projects like we did in 2010

Continue to emphasize and improve our project management tools and capabilities We have large

projects in backlog that can make significant impact on our bottom line and

Remain focused on Safety Our objective for the year is to reduce injuries by 50 percent We
differentiate Willbros on this value both as an employer and as provider of services

These objectives overarch actions already underway including

Fully integrating lnfrastruX into Willbros

Adapting our Upstream business to meet changing market conditions and execute the newly

awarded and currently underway Acadian project to the same standards as FEP

Reducing operating costs and creating efficiencies that will enhance our competitiveness and

improve our bottom line and

Continue moving our model to an operating company structure while fostering common set of

values and culture

Our primary financial objective is reducing our leverage position by paying down debt This requireŁ Os

to modify some of our 2010 Credit Agreement covenants On March 2011 we reached an agreement with

our lenders to amend our 2010 Credit Agreement which will allow us to sell equipment real estate and

business units and in most cases proceeds from these divestitures would be required to pay down the

Term Loan We are also continuing to evaluate under-utilized and non-strategic assets with the aim of

monetizing assets to pay down debt In 2010 we sold under-utilized equipment with net book value of

$12226 and to date in 2011 we have identified additional properties and equipment having net book value

of $18867 As part of this debt reduction process we have study underway to assist us in determining the

strategic fit and potential future contributions of various business units The outcome of this study is

expected to yield targets for divestment which will contribute to our overall debt reduction objective

We are focused on executing our 2011 plan while concurrently identifying opportunities to reduce

operating costs and create efficiencies that will enhance our competitiveness and improve our bottom line

Our overhead and indirect costs are too high to sustain our desired financial performance level in weak

market Accordingly we are in the process of identifying additional cost reduction opportunities We
continue to audit our costs in all our segments and we are encouraged that the new cost structure ip our

Downstream Oil Gas has aided its return to profitability

During 2011 we expect to see continued improvement from each of our businesses

Our Strategy

As expanded upon in detail in Items and Business and Properties of this Form 10-K our vision is

to be leading provider to the global infrastructure and government services markets of diversified

professional construction and maintenance solutions addressing the entire asset lifecycle Adherence to our

values of safety honesty and integrity our people our customers superior financial performance vision and

innovation and effective communication will guide us in the execution of our strategy which.consists of the

following
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Stabilizing our revenue stream with recurring services

Focusing on managing risk

Leveraging our industry position and reputation into broader service offering

Maintaining financial flexibility and

Leveraging our core service expertise into additional full EPC contracts

Successfully executing our strategy will ensure that we are not only well positioned to address the

challenges of 2011 but also are positioned for success and to drive shareholder value for years to come

Significant Developments

Fayetteville Express Project FEP On April 2010 we commenced work on the construction

contract for spreads three and four of the FEP project The approximately 185-mile natural gas pipeline

originates in Conway County Arkansas continues eastward through White County Arkansas and

terminates at an interconnection with Trunkline Gs Company in Ianola County Mississippi FEP parallels

existing utility corridors where possible to minimize the impact to the environment communities and

landqwners FEP is joint venture between Energy Transfer Partners L.P and Kinder Morgan Energy

Partners L.P Our scope of work included 120 miles of 42-inch pipeline beginning near Bald Knob
Arkansas and ending at the Trunkline interconnection This project concluded in the fourth quarter of 2010

Williams Energy Canada Boreal Pipeline In June 201 our Canadian business was awarded

construction of the Williams Energy Canada Boreal Pipeline The new 12-inch diameter pipeline will

transport high vapor pressure liquids approximately 420 km from William Liquid Extraction Planf north of

Fort McMurray to their Redwater Olefins Facility northeast of Edmonton Alberta Construction will be

completed in three construction seasons commencing in the fall of 2010 with final completion in the spring of

2012 This project commenced in the third quarter of 201

InfrastruXAcquisition On July 2010 we completed the acquisition of 100 percent of the outstanding

stock of InfrastruX for purchase price of approximately $486000 before final working capital and other

transaction adjustments This acquisition significantly diversifies our capabilities and end markets In addition

to providing meaningful access to the attractive electric transmission and distribution market the acquisition

also expands the breadth of our natural gas capabilities and better positions us in targeted markets such as

the Marcellus shale play lnfrastruX and its results of operations in the electric transmission and distribution

end markets are included in newly established segment Utility TD Any goodill recognized through this

transaction will be allocated to this segment which will also be the reporting unit Goodwill associated with

this transaction is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes

The acquisition of InfrastruX diversifies our end-market exposure while expanding ourcapabilities into

attractive geographies including the Marcellus shale region where we are already expanding our presence

and are providing services to major alliance partner and more liquidsoriented plays such as the Eagle

Ford and Bakken shales The combination creates higher component of recurring services and is expected

to provide additional stability through the many master service agreements MSA lnfrastruX has in place

with longstanding client relationships some as long as 50 years In addition we believe this acquisitiod will

alloW us to offer the complementary pipeline services of larger InfrastruX subsidiary that is focused on

smaller diameter distribution and pipe-related field services We believe the market for pipeline systems

construction services will be characterized by more projects of smaller scope and scale and that the

combination of our large diameter pipeline construction project management and engineering expertise with

the Infrastrux model will better meet client needs and expectations going forward We also recognize

market fundamentals which lead us to believe the national transmission grid in the United States will

undergo significant expansion to meet reliability goals and link new renewable generation with distant end

markets Our new Utility TD segment should benefit from our established and proven project management

systems as we apply them to major electric transmission line construction opportunities

Finally .this transaction significantly adds to our scale We believe customers today are favoring players

with the capabilities to provide broader and more integrated set of services With the larger geographic

footprint complementary service offerings and client bases the InfrastruX acquisition broadens our

prospects with additional cross-selling and integrated EPC opportunities

Pembina Pump Stations In August 2010 Pembina Pipeline Corporation awarded our Canadian

business project for the constructiOn of six pump stations for the Nipisi Heavy Crude Pipeline Project The

scope of work includessite grading at select sites piling pipe rack process pipe installation of process
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pumps underground drain tanks concrete work and site fencing The project began in August 2010 and is

scheduled for completion in the first quarter of 2011

NAVFAC Task Orders In August 2010 the Naval Facilities Engineering Command NAVFAC awarded

our government services business five separate task orders under its global $350 million multiple-award

indefinite delivery-indefinite quantity IDIO construction and construction services contract for Petroleum Oil

and Lubricant POL fuel systems The task orders include various inspections construction and repair at

Eielson Air Force Base AK Misawa Air Force Base Japan Naval Air Station Oceana Virginia Beach VA
Npval Support Activity Panama City FL and Naval Air Weapons Station China Lake CA The work began

in August and is scheduled for completion in early 2011

Nipisi Pipeline Project In September 2010 our Canadian business executed contract to perform

construction of Spread for Pembina Pipeline Corporations Nipisi Mitsue Pipeline Projects We will

construct approximately 90 km of dual 20 inch and inch pipeline near Slave Lake Alberta Construction

began in November and the pipeline is expected to be in service in mid-201 The two pipelines will expand
Pembinas operating system in the.vicinity of Whitecourt Swan Hills Slave Lake and north to the existing

Nipisi Terminal

Oxy Elk Hills Jn September 2010 CBl selected our Upstream Oil Gas segment to provide EPC of 45
miles of export pipelines associated with new gas processing plant to be owned and operated by

Occidental of Elk Hills Inc CBl has been awarded the engineering procurementand construction of the

new processing plant at the Elk HillŁ oil and gas field in central California Our portion of the total project is

valued in excess of $40 million

Mckee Flare Gas Recovery Diamond Shamrock Refining Company selected our Downstream Oil

Gas segment to provide EPC of the new Flare Gas Recovery Facilities at the Valero McKee Refinery located

in Sunray Texas The project is valued at ap5roximateIy $14 million

Defense Logistics In September 2010 our government services business was awarded contract for

approximately $28 million by the Defense Logistics Agency-Energy DLA-Energy to design build own and

operate six automated fuel dispensing facililies at Camp Pendleton California The five-year contract

includes options for three additional five-year periods The facility will provide petroleum products and

services for government operations

BP Solar Project In November 2010 BP Solar International awarded the Hawkeye unit of our Utility

TD segment contract to construct an approximately 37 MW direct current solar photovoltaic project to

be located in the Town of Brookhaven on Long Island New York The project commenced construction in

November 2010 and is expected tote complete during the second half of 2011

Central Maine Power In December 2010 Central Maine Power Company awarded our Utility TD
business unit Hawkeye LLC contract to construct two regions of the Maine Power Reliability Program

comprising total of approximately 60 miles of new single circuit 345 kV transmission lines and the rebuild of

certain existing transmission lines in southern Maine The work is expected to commence in spring 2011

and to be complete in early 2014

Bangor HydroProject In December 2010 Bangor Hydro Electric Company awarded the Hawkeye unit

of our Utility TD segment contract to rebuild Bangor Hydros existing 115kV Line 64 transmission ine
which originates in Bangor Maine and extends north to Chester Maine for total of approximately 44 miles

Line 64 Project The Line 64 Project is comprised of two segments the Northern Segmen which

extends from the Enfield Substation to the Keene Road Substation for distance of approximately 12 miles

and the Southern Segment which extends from the Enfield Substation to the Gorham Substation for

distance of approximately 32 miles The wok commenced in December 2010 and is expected to be

complete in December 2011

Haynesville Extension Acadian Pipeline In January 2011 Enterprise Products Partners awarded our

U.S Construction Segment of the Haynesville Extension Project which includes approximately 106 miles

of 42-inch pipeline Segment originates in the northwest portion of Red River Parish LA and terminates

near Boyce LA The work began in February 2011 and is expected to be complete in August 2011

Financial Summary

During 2010 we generated revenue from continuing operations of $1192412 and an operating loss of

$44616 resulting in net loss of $31764 or $0.74 per diluted share There are two large non-cash

transactions reflected -in these results In .the third quarter operating income was improved by $45340

$45340 after tax as result of reducing our 2011 contingent earnout liability related to the March 11 2010
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agreement to purchase InfrastruX Also in the third quarter an initial $12000 $7200 after tax estimate was

recorded as minimum Downstream Oil Gas segment goodwill impairment The fourth quarter annual

impairment testing resulted in final $60000 $36000 after tax goodwill impairment the additional $48000

$28800 after tax was charged to operating income in the fourth quarter Excluding the impact of the

contingent earnout adjustment and the goodwill impairment collectively referred to as Special Items the

fourth quarter and full year results were as follows

Change in

Fair Value

of Before

Contingent Goodwill Special

Three Months Ended December 31 2010 As Reported Earnout Impairment Items

Operating income loss 87406 48000 39406
Net income loss from continuing

operations 66302 28800 37502

Diluted income loss per share from

continuing operations 1.41 0.61 0.80

Fully diluted shares as reported 47099756 47099756 47099756 47099756

Year Ended December 31 2010

Operating income loss 44616 45340 60000 29956
Net income loss from continuing

operations 31764 45340 36000 41104

Diluted income loss per share from

continuing operations 0.74 1.05 0.83 0.96

Fully diluted shares as reported 43013934 43013934 43013934 43013934

Operating income loss before Special Items Net income loss from continuing operations before

Special Items and Diluted income loss per share from continuing operations before Special Items non
GAAP financial measures exclude items that management believes affect the comparison of results for

the periods discussed below Management also believes results excluding these items are more

comparable to estimates provided by securities analysts and therefore are useful in evaluating

operational trends of the Company and its performance relative to other engineering and construction

companies There were no Special Items during 2009

Full Year 2010 Results

During 2010 revenue decreased $67361 5.3 percent to $1192412 from $1259773 in 2009 This

decrease is primarily due to reduction of large diameter pipeline projects in our Upstream Oil Gas

segment exacerbated by delays in execution schedules on pipeline and facilities work in our Canadian

business offset by $317512 contributed by our newly acquired Utility TD segment

Operating income excluding Special Items decreased $79902 197.3 percent to an operating loss of

$39406 from operating income of $40496 in 2009 and operating margin decreased 6.5 percentage points

to negative 3.3 percent in 2010 from an operating margin of 3.2 percent in 2009 The legacy segments

Upstream Qil Gas and Downstream Oil Gas both experienced substantial year-over-year reductions to

their operating results Upstream Oil Gas decreased $28283 or 70.7 percent to $1 1714 and Downstream

Oil Gas decreased $15714 to loss of $15215 as compared to operating income of $499 in 2009 These

unfavorable variances reflect full year of very difficult economic cycle for the engineering and

construction industry as compared to only partial year in 2009 compounded by significant project losses in

our Upstream Oil Gas Canadian business previously discussed Work carried forward from 2008 buffered

the reduction to operating income in the first half of 2009 Almost two thirds of 2009s revenue of $1259773
occurred in the first six months of the year

Also contributing to the successive year operating loss was $26455 in operating loss contributed by

Utility TD representing six months of results for our new segment acquired July 2010 The loss is

attributable to combination of weak electric distribution business and large electric construction projects

being delayed from 201.0 into 2011 In addition during 2010 we incurred acquisitions costh of $10055 an

increase of $7556 from 2009 primarily from the pursuit and acquisition of InfrastruX
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Interest net expense increased $19237 231.0 percent to $27565 from $8328 in 2009 The increase in

net expense is direct result of the $300000 Term Loan used to acquire InfrastruX on July 2010

Other net income increased $4655 568.4 percent to $5474 from $819 in 2009 This change was

primarily drivep by approximately $3300 in gains recognized on the sale of assets and $2200 in certain

goods and services tax GST refunds obtained in our Canadian business We had $1539 in gains on

asset sales recognized offset by $720 in other net expense during 2009

The provision for income taxes for 2010 decreased $44884 to tax benefit of $36150 on losses from

continuing operations before income taxes of $66707 as compared to provision for income taxes of

$8734 on income from continuing operations before income taxes of $32987 in 2009 The decrease in the

provision for income taxes is primarily due to the decrease in operating income recognized during 2010 and

no tax expense recognized in connection with the release of $45340 of the contingent earnout liability

associated with the acquisition of InfrastruX

Refer to the Results of Operations section for further discussion and detail of the operating results for

each of our segments

Fourth Quarter 2010 Results

In the fourth quarter of 2010 we incurred net loss of $66302 or $1.41 per basic and diluted share from

continuing operations revenue of $398496 as compared to net income of $36698 from continuing

operations revenue of $408792 for the third quarter of 2010 Excluding the fourth quarter Special Item of

$48000 or $28800 after-tax the fourth quarter loss is reduced to $37502 See the table above for

reconciliation of operating income and net income excluding Special Items

The fourth quarter of 2010s sequential quarter revenue was fairly consistent with the previous quarter

The revenue decrease of $10296 2.5 percent is primarily attributable to the mechanical completion of

large U.S pipeline project during the third quarter and the lack of U.S pipeline and power construction

activity during the fourth quarter as this work returns to more seasonal pattern of execution concentrated

from early spring to late fall drier months These factors were offset by the commencement of two large

pipeline projects and one facilities project during the fourth quarter of 2010 in our Canadian business which

had minimal project revenue in the third quarter of 2010 and follows seasonal pattern from late fall to early

spring

The corresponding sequential quarter decrease in operating income was $132814 292.5 percent The

fourth quarter of 2010 had an operating loss of $87406 versus operating income of $45408 in the third

quarter of 2010 Excluding the Special Items the sequential quarter decrease is $51474 and is primarily the

result of limited work by the higher margin U.S Pipeline operations Although the U.S Pipeline revenue

reduction was partially made up by Canada pipeline and facilities projects Canada actually recognized

substantial project losses related to unexpected winter conditions Two Canada projects reverted to loss

projects in the fourth quarter because of schedule and adverse weather delays The operating margins

excluding Special Items fcir the fourth quarter and third quarter of 2010 were negative 6.8 percent and

positive 3.0 percent respectively

Other Financial Measures

Backlog

In our industry backlog is considered an indicator of potential future performance as it represents

portion of the future revenue stream Our strategy is focused on capturing quality backlog with margins

commensurate with the risks associated with given project and for the past several years we have put

processes and procedures in place to identify contractual and execution risks in new work opportunities and

believe we have instilled in the organization the discipline to price accept and book only work which meets

stringent criteria for commercial success and profitability

We believe the backlog figures are firm subject only to the cancellation and modification provisions

contained in various contracts Additionally due to the short duration of many jobs revenue associated with

jobs performed within reporting period will not be reflected in quarterly backlog reports We generate

revenue from numerous sources including contracts of long or short duration entered into during year as

well as from various contractual processes including change orders extra work and variations in the scope

of work These revenue sources re not added to backlog until realization is assured

Backlog broadly consists of anticipated revenue from the uncompleted portions of existing contracts and

contracts whose award is reasonably assured Historically our backlog has only included estimated work
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under MSAs for period of 12 months or the remaining term of the contract whichever is less However

with the July 2010 acquisition of InfrastruX we gained significant alliance agreement with Oncor and other

customers with work defined by MSAs Under the Oncor MSA we are the preferred contractor for the

construction of Oncors portion of the Competitive Renewable Energy Zone CREZ work that is scheduled

to be completed in 2013 We expect this assignment to generate over $500 million in construction revenue

for our Utility TD segment over the next three years With this as the primary catalyst we have updated our

backlog presentation to reflect not only the 12 month MSA work estimate but also the full-term value of the

contract as we believe that this information is helpful in providing additional long-term visibility We determine

the amount of backlog for work under ongoing MSA maintenance and construction contracts by using

recurring historical trends inherent in the MSAs factoring in seasonal demand and projecting customer

needs based upon ongoing communications with the customer We also include in backlog our share of

work to be performed under contracts signed by joint ventures in which we have an ownership inteest

At December 31 2010 12 month backlog from continuing operations increased $556965 143.0

percent.to $946315 frem $389350 at December 31 2009 driven primarily by an additional $527912 of 12

month backlog contributed by the newly acquired Utility TD segment The Upstream Oil Gas segment
with 12 month backlog of $311326 also contributed to the overall rise in backlog by increasing $68132
or 28% from the 2009 12 month backlog level These increases were offset by decrease in the

Downstream Oil Gas segment 12 month backlog of $39079 or 27%

In our Upstream Oil Gas segment 12 month backlog increased $68132 from 2009 driven primarily by

our Canadian and engineering businesses which experienced year oVer year increases of $199545 and

$48299 respectively This was offset however by decrease of $179712 in all other business units

primarily due to the completion of our largest 2010 pipeline construction project FEP not replaced with

equivalently sized work in the latter part of 2010 Our pipeline construction services contracting has

experienced return to historical North America contracting model that is characterized by competitive

fixed price bids and short time periods from project bid to execution except for large EPC contracts that can

span more than one year With the return to historical contracting patterns we expect to experience lower

backlog numbers partially as result of eliminating the much longer lead times between the award of and

the execution of projects

The Downstream Oil Gas segment continued to experience slower than expected return to business

levels realized in 2008 During 2010 turnaround work continued to be completed faster than new work was

added

In our Utility TD segment six customer relationships are expected to contribute $209400 in revenue

during 2011 As previously discussed significant portion of the Utility TD backlog is associated with

recurring services on MSA contracts that extend beyond 2011

When factoring in the backlog beyond the current 12 months an additional $1229712 in revenue is

anticipated MSA agreements account for $1178191 of this amount The remaining $51521 is attributable

to current lump sum projects in the Upstream Oil Gas and Utility TD segments The Utility TD segment

currently accounts for $854367 of the reported MSA backlog beyond 12 months and is derived from

agreements extending until July of 2017 The remaining $323824 is associated with Upstream Oil Gas

segment MSA work and is primarily comprised of work from single Canada MSA extending through 2017

and valued at $303000

Backlog fpr discontinued operations was $0 at December 31 2010 and $2392 at December 31 2009

The following table shows our backlog by operating segment as of December 31 2010 and 2009

As of December 31

2010 2009

12 Month Percent Total Percent 12 Month Percent Total Percent

Upstream Oil Gas 311326 32.9% 653671 30.0% $243194 62.5% $283130 66.0%

Downstream Oil Gas 107077 11.3% 107077 5.0% 146156 37.5% 146156 34.0%

Utility TD 527912 55.8% 1415279 65.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total Backlog 946315 100.0% $2176027 100.0% 389350 100.0% $429286 100.0%
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from Continuing Operations

We use EBITDA earnings before net interest income taxes depreciation and amortization as part of

our overall assessment of financial performance by comparing EBITDA between accounting periods We
believe that EBITDA is used by the financial community as method of measuring our performance and of

evaluating the market value of companies considered to be in businesses similar to ours

EBITDA from continuing operations for 2010 decreased $4542 5.6 percent to $75816 from $80358 in

2009 The decrease in EBITDA during 2010 is primarily result of the $45340 change in fair value of the

contingent earnout liability recognized in the third quarter of 2010 and an overall decrease in restructuring

costs of $8923 offsetby decreased contract income of $23113 excluding depreciation and an increase in

GA of $35646 excluding depreciation

In addition to EBITDA management uses Adjusted EBITDA for

Comparing normalized operating results with corresponding historical periods and with the

operational performance of other companies in our industry and

Presentations made to analysts investment banks and other members of the financial

community who use this information in order to make investment decisions about us

Adjustments to EBITDA broadly consist of items which management does not consider representative of

the ongoing operations of the Company These generally include costs or benefits that are unusual non-

cash or one-time in nature These adjustments are included in various performance metrics under our credit

facilities and other financing arrangements The EBITDA adjustments to determine Adjusted EBITDA are

itemized in the following table You are encouraged to evaluate these adjustments and the reasons we
consider them appropriate for supplemental analysis In evaluating Adjusted EBITDA you should be aware

that in the future we may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustment in this

presentation Our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an inference that our future

results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not financial measurements recognized under U.S generally

accepted accounting principles or U.S GAAP and when analyzing our operating performance investors

should use EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in addition to and not as an alternative for net income operating

income or any other performance measure derived in accordance with U.S GAAP or as an alternative to

cash flow from operating activities as measure of our liquidity Because all companies do not use identical

calculations our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may be different from similarly titled

meathrŁs of other companies

reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations to U.S GAAP financial

information follows

Year Ended December 31

Net income from continuing operations attributable to Willbros

Group Inc

Interest net

Provision benefit for income taxes

Depreciation and amortization

Goodwill impairment __________ ___________ ___________

EBITDA _________ _________ _________

2582

9549

12694

2499

1082 7081

_________ 1817 1836

_________
108417 191996

2010 2009

22436

8328
8734

40860

80358

Changes in fair value of contingent earnout liability

DOJ monitor cost

Stock based compensation

Restructuring and reorganization costs

Acquisition related costs

Gains on sales of equipment

Noncontrolling interest

Adjusted EBITDA

2008

42887

9032
25942

P44903

62295

185059

530

11652

31764
27565

36150
56165

60000

75816

45340
4002

7957

3771

10055

3538
1207

53930
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Discontinued Operations

For the year ended December 31 2010 loss from discontinued operations was $5272 or $0.12 per

share This compares to loss from discontinued operations of $4613 or $0.12 per share for the year ended

December 31 2009 The 2010 loss from discontinued operations is primarily due to the classification of our

Libyan operations as discontinued operations as of December 31 2010 Our investment in establishing

presence in Libya while resulting in contract awards has not yielded any notice to proceed on subject

awards and we have therefore exited this market due to the delays and identification of other more

attractive opportunities

Transition Services Agreement TSA

The TSA expired on February 2009 -which ended our obligation to provide any further support or

other services to Ascot in West Africa or otherwise Although the Transition Services Agreement expired we
continue to incur legal fees related to the West African Gas Pipeline Company Limited WAPC0 parent

company guarantee assertions as further discussed in Note 21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset

Disposals andTransition Services Agreement These legal fees are expected to escalate and continue over

tha next several years At this time we are unable to estimate the likely total legal costs

Parent Company Guarantees

Although the Nigeria letters of credit and the ISA have expired we continue to have potential financial

exposure from parent company performance guarantees related to several projedts in Nigeria that were

contracted by our subsidiary Willbros West Africa Inc WWAI at the time of our February 2007 sale of

WWAI to Ascot On ebruary 15 2010 we received letter from attorneys representing WAPCo advising us

that we were liable for approximately $265000 of damages allegedly incurred by WAPCo to complete the

remaining portion of the scope of work portion of the West Africa Gas Pipeline project or WAGP
originally contracted by WWAI After WWAI was sold to Ascot on February 27 2008 WAPCo provided

WWAI with notice of termination of the WAGP contract We intend to contest this claim for damages

vigorously At this time no estimate can be made on the likely outcome of what is expected to be

prolonged period of litigation

Additional financial disclosures and information on discontinued operations and the February 15 2010

WAPCo letter are provided in Note 21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition

Services Agreement included in Item and in Item 1A Risk Factors of this Form 10-K

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our contract revenue and contract costs are significantly impacted by the capital budgets of our clients

and the timing and location of development projects in the oil and gas refinery petrochemical and power
industries worldwide Contract revenue and cost vary by country from year-to-year as the result of entering

and exiting work countries the execution of new contract awards the completion of contracts and the

overall level of demand for our services

Our ability to be successful in obtaining and executing contracts can be affected by the relative strength

or weakness df the U.S dollar compared to the currencies of our competitors our clients and our work

locations

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2009

Contract Revenue

Contract revenue decreased $67361 5.3 percent to $1192412 from $1259773 year-to-year

comparison of revenue is as follows

Year Ended December 31

Increase Percent

2010 2009 Decrease Change

Upstkeam Oil Gas 573796 982523 408727 41 .6%
Downstream Oil Gas 301104 277250 23854 8.6%

Utility TD 317512 N/A 317512 100.0%

Total 1192412 $1259773 67361 5.3%
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Upstream Oil Gas revenue decreased $408727 41.6 percent to $573796 from $982523 in 2009 We
believe the decrease in revenue was the result of our customers reduction in capital and maintenance

spending in 2010 as continued reaction to the overall global economic recession This was evidenced by an

overall decrease in large diameter pipeline projects available for bid Further projects that were initially being

bid for 2010 completion were postponed oç cancelled As result of these conditions the segment began to

pursue midstream pipeline projects which opened new market in one of the major regional shale plays This

market generated $41518 in revenue for us in 010 The engineering business also contributed higher than

expected revenues of $66206 as result of developing alliances Overall our North American Upstream Oil

Gas business units experienced revenue decreases from 9.4 percent to 56.7 percent The sole business unit

to grow revenue year-over-year was in Oman where revenue grew 12.6 percent driven by maintenance

services The majority of our 2010 revenue 57.5 percent was awarded and executed in 2010 with the largest

exception being the FEP project that was awarded for approximately $195000 in 2009 anci executed in 2010

This marks return to the business environment where we expect short lead-times between award and

execution for our construction projects in the United States

Our U.S business units revenues decreased $341009 51.4 percent to $321791 from $662800 in 2009

This was primaily due to reduced utilizatiàn of lârge-diametŁr crOss-bountry pipeline construction assets of

$264927 and reduction of pipeline facility construction work of $98711 We believe the reduction of pipeline

construction revenue was directly linked to the reduced capital budgets approved and executed by our core

customer base in 2010 We believe the reduction of facility construction revenue was also impacted by

significantly reduced capital budgets for our core customers These decreaes- were partially offset by

increased revenue from our regional pipeline construction activity of $41518 and increased rvenue from our

engineering services of $4321 We believe the increased demand for our engineering services while modest

at 10.1 percent demonstrates turning point in the market for front-end design work for gas and liquid

transportation systems which is the precursor to construction of these systems

Our Canada business unit revenue decreased $75935 29.9 percent to $178418 from $254353 in 20d9

The decrease was primarily due to reduced capital budgets of the oil-sand producers and pipeline companies
driven by uncertain crude pricing Revenue from our pipeline construction group decreased $35355 revenue

from our field services group declined $22698 and revenue from our facility construction group declined

$18277 Our Oman business unit revenue increased $8221 12.6 percent to $73589 from $65368 in 2009

This increase was largely attributable to increased work order activity from our largest customers for which we

provide both capital construction and maintenance services

Downstream Oil Gas revenue increased primarily as result of increased maintenance and

turnaround activity and development of downstream services in Canada We experienced revenue increases

of 17.5 percent to 78.8 percent in several of our business units and revenue decreases from 35.5 percent to

75.2 percent in our other business units Revenue increased quarter-over-quarter throughout 2010 as we
worked off existing backlog from 2009 and filled in the year with new contract awards

--

Our Construction Services business unit revenue decreased $25193 75.2 percent to $8290 from

$33484 in 2009 While this business unit has maintained consistent level of consulting services for our

customers long-term capital expansion projects our involvement in the physical construction of these

projects has decreased from six projects in 2009 to one project in 2010 Our consulting services

arrangements were largely negotiated in prior years for projects that are still ongoing New capital project

activity and construction opportunities relating to our consulting services have decreased since the latter part

of 2008

Our Manufacturing Services business unit revenue decreased $13478 35.5 percent to $24514 from

$37992 in 2009 primarily due to 62.0 percent decrease in revenue from fabrication of process heaters As

capital spending by our customers decreased throughout 2009 we worked off edsting backlog but were

unable to replace that work in 2010 As our customers capital budgets increase we fully expect that the

demand for process heaters will increase Partially offsetting the revenue decline from fabrication of process

heaters was 221.4 percent increase in revenue from fabrication of replacement transfer lines which

represents maintenance expenditures for our customers

Our Tank Services business unit revenue increased $16322 64.5 percent to $41620 from $25298 in

2009 Our 2009 and 2010 investments in expanding tank services into Canada resulted in our first contract

award in 2010 We realized revenue of $15355 from this contract in 2010 and are actively pursuing

additional contract awards in Canada Services provided in the U.S consisted of less new tank construction

than in previous years as result of decreased capital spending by our customers in 2009 and early 2010

We were able to win additional tank inspection and repair work in 2010 to offset the decrease in new tank

construction awards Proposal requests from our customers for new tank construction projects increased
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during the latter half of 2010 resulting in several multiple-tank construction contract awards that began in

late 2010

Our Maintenance and Turnaround business unit revenue increased $25804 7.5 percent to $172980

from $147176 in 2009 We bedefited in 2010 from our position as contractor of choice for our customers

maintenance and turnaround needs the impact of delayed maintenance activities in 2009 and our

investments in equipment to provide exchanger tube bundle extraction services

Our Engineering business unit revenue increased $17634 59.2 percent to $47428 from $29794 in

2009 We experienced $19958 increase in revenue resulting from full year of activity for Downstream

Engineering acquired in July 2009 Engineering revenue declined during the latter half of 2010 as several

significant contracts were completed Bid activity on new capital work remains high However we continue to

experience customer-imposed delays on awarded contracts The decline in engineering revenue during the

latter half of 2010 was partially offset by the award of an EPC contract from an existing customer in Texas

This project began late in the third quarter of 2010 We continue to market our EPC service offering to new

and existing customers

Our Government Services business unit revehue increased $7765 78.8 percent to $6272 from $3507

in 2009 This resulted primarily from the reclassification of Government Services from the Upstream Oil

Gas segment to the Downstream Oil Gas segment in July 2009 We were successful in winning nine task

orders from the U.S Navy under the Engineering Service Centers lDlQ contract six of which commenced

during the second half of 2010 and will continue into 2011 We continue to bid on task orders under this

contract as they are released

Utility TD new segment resulting from the acquisition of InfrastruX contributed revenue of $317512

as result of revenues derived from broad range of transmission and distribution construction and

maintenance services from July 2010 through.December 31 2010 This segment includes the business

units of Hawkeye Chapman Construction and Willbros TD which accounted for $75778 $57143 and

$40873 respectively or 54.7% of the segments total revenue Hawkeyes contract revenue is driven

primarily by MSA contracts related to overhead and underground transmission distribution and

tØlecomrrunication systems The business generated revenue of $61880 for the six months ended

December 31 .2010 as direct result of established MSAs These agreements vary in length from one

month to three years Chapman generated $44948 or 78.6% of the business units revenue through an

alliance agreement with Oncor providing turn key transmission and substation construction and maintenance

solutions Willbros TD produced $28289 or 72.1% of that business units revenue through an alliance

agreement With Oncbr to provide overhead and underground utility construction services

Operating Income

Operating income decreased $130452 322.1 percent to loss of $89956 from income of $40496 in

2009 year-to-year comparison of operating income is as follows

Operating Operating Percent

201 01 Margin 2009 Margin Change Change

Upstream Oi/ Gas 11714 2.0% 39997 4.1% 28283 70.7%
Downstream Oil Gas 75215 25.0% 499 0.2% 75714 15173.1%

Utility TD 26455 8.3% N/A N/A 26455 100.0%

Total 89956 7.5% 40496 3.2% 130452 322.%

This table does not reflect change in fair value of contingent earnout consideration of $45340 in 2010 which is included in operating

results The change in fair value of contingent earnout consideration was characterized as corporate change in estimate and is

not allocated to the reporting segments

Upstream Oil Gas operating income decreased $28283 70.7 percent to $11714 from $39997 in

2009 The decrease was caused by reduced revenue across the segment as noted above Our operating

margin was consistent year-over-year primarily due to improved project margins in the United States partially

offset by reduced margins in Canada as well as increased general and administrative GA expense as

percent of revenue across the segment The increased GA was primarily attributed to increased proposal

activity as well as growth initiatives expanding our regional service delivery capabilities

Operating income for our United States business units decreased $468 1.8 percent to $25741 from

$26209 in 2009 Our operating income remained constant in-spite of significant revenue declines of 51.4%

for these businesses Our construction business suffered the most from revenue decline but our focus on

execution of the available work allowed us to improve our contract margins and still deliver strong operating
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income at significantly smaller volume This continued profitability came as we saw the market shift back

fully to lump-sum contracting terms marking the end of the cost-reimbursable work that we completed in

2009 for large diameter cross-country pipeline construction Our engineering business experienced much

more modest revenue decline but had significant improvement in profitability In 2009 our engineering

business had significant operating losses which were reversed in 2010 to sinificant operating income due

to stronger market demand for our services and active cost management

Operating income for our Canada business unit decreased $29826 371.4 percent to loss of $21796

from income of $8030 in 2009 This.decrease was primarily caused by loss projects in our pipeline and

facility construction groups compounded by the reduction of recurring oil-sands maintenanbe contracts in

northern Alberta The-four lump-sum projepts that were in loss position as of year-end accounted for

approximately $19000 of contract losses In 2010 we were awarded mUltiple year extension for our

maintenance work for Syncrude in Canada Operating income for our Oman business unit increased $749

7.7 percent to $10509 from $9760 in 2009 The increase in operating incomºis primarily attributable to

revenue increase which we feel is driven by our long-term recurrihg service contracts with key customers in

Oman These recurring services helped to insulate this business unit from the constraints of capital spending

that we experienced in other parts of our business in 2010 Operating losses for our other international

business units decreased $550 18.0 percent to loss of $2502 from loss of $3052 in 2009 These

costs are primarily related to international new business development and pursuing new opportunities as

well as the proposal costs associated with submitting multiple qualified international bids in places like Libya

and Australia in 2010

Downstream Oil Gas operating income decreased primarily as result of the $60000 goodwill

impairment charge taken in the third and fourth quarters of 2010 and the previously discussed decreases in

revenue from our Manufacturing Services and Construction Services business units as well as operating

losses contributed by our Engineering business unit $6148 and Tank Services business unit $4537 Our

Maintenance and Turnaround business unit contributed an operating loss for the year that was driven largely

by loss on fixed price contract early in the year

Contract margins declined in each business unit during 2010 These declines were caused by continued

pricing pressure from our cystomers and more comp9titive bidding environment As result our fixed price

bids and our rates on cost reimbursable projects subsequently awarded and performed during 2010 reflebted

lower margins These lower bid margins combined with losses experienced on several contracts resulted in

contract margin decreases of 12.8 percent in Tapk Services 13.4 percent in Manufacturing Services and

2.9 percent in Maintenance and Turnaround Services Conttact margins for the Downstream Oil Gas

segment decreased 5.9 percent driven primarily by thØØe three business units

As part of our continuing effort to decrease costs in this segment and remain competitive in our market

we successfully reduced indirect contract costs and GA costs by $12750 and $7095 respectively

compared to 2009 Included in operating costs is $536 in costs associated with headcount reductions

The Utility TD segment generated an operating loss of $26455 The segment incurred costs totaling

$26309 of which non-recurring acquisition costs of $9814 and restructuring fees of $2638 associated with

the Seattle office closure were recorded for the six months ended December 31 2010 Other significant

costs charged to the segment were labor of $2889 and depreciation of $1267

The Willbros TD business experienced an operating loss of $3597 as result of lower volumes and

shift in the mix in transmission construction revenues assoŁiated with the Oncor work in Texas resulting in

heavier mix of lower margin work In addition these lowet volumes and delays created an underutilization of

equipment For the six months ended December 31 2010 Willbros TD-incurred equipment rental expense

of $2994 and depreciation expense of $2144 associated with an underutilized fleet

Hawkeye reported an operating loss of $3280 primarily due to the project delays experienced in the

Northeast both of which are currently underway and in general weaker market for electric and gas

distribution work In addition depreciation costs on an underutilized fleet were $3310

Partially offsetting the operating losses were UtilX with operating income of $5379 and Chapman with

operating income of $3661 Utilxs international operations performed well due to Cablewise projects in

Europe and increased royalty revenue Chapman provided operating income despite shift in the mix of

transmission construction revenue associated with the CREZ build out
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Non-Operating Items

Interest net expense increased $19237 231.0 percent to $27565 from $8328 in 2009 The increase in

net expense is primarily result of increased interest expense of $16106 related to the new Term Loan debt

issuance cost amortization of $1994 related to the 2010 Credit Agreement and reduction in interest income

of $1211 due to lower levels of and rates of return on invested cash

Other net income increased $4655 568.4 percent to net income of$5474 from net income of $819

in 2009 The increase in income is attributed to increased gains on the sale of assets of $1748 in 2010 as

compared to 2009 reduction in expense of $1210 related to asset write-downs taken in 2009 $879 in

income recorded in the second quarter of 2010 as result of refund of GST based on certain deductions

made in 2010 and reduction in foreign exchange losses of $235 on U.S dollar to Canadian dollar

transactions

Provision for income taxes decreased $44884 513.9 percent to benefit of $36150 from provision

of $8734 in 2009 During 2010 we recognized tax benefit of $36150 on loss from continuing operations

before income taxes of $66707 as compared to income tax expense of $8734 on income from continuing

operations before income taxes of $32987 in 2009 The decrease in the provision for income taxes is due to

the decrease in operating income recognized during 2010 and no tax expense incurred in connection with

the release of the contingent earnput liability in the amount of $45340 associated with the acquisition of

nfrastruX

Income Loss from Discontinued Operations Net of Taxes

Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes increased $659 14.3 percent to loss of

$5272 from loss of $4613 in 2009 As of December 31 2010 weclassified our Libyan operations as

discontinued operations for all periods presented Our investment in establishing presence in Libya while

resulting in contract awards has not yielded any notice to proceed on subject awards and we have

therefore exited this market due to the delays and identification of other more attractive opportunities Our

loss from discontinued operations related to Libya was $3179 for the year ended December 31 2010 and

$3116 for the year ended December 31 2009 The loss during the twelve months ended December 31
2010 is also related to the legal fees incurred in connection with the previously discussed WAPCo parent

company guarantee assertions The legal fees are expected to escalate and continue over the next several

years At this time we are unable to estimate the likely total legal fees The chane is also related to

$1750 charge taken during the second quarter of 2d09 to write-off the net book value of the note related to

the Venezuela sale as management determined it unlikely to collect due to the nationalization of various oil

contractors within the country

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2008

Contract Revenue

Contract revenue decreased $652931 34.1 percent to $1259773 from $1912704 primarily due to

decreased Upstream Oil Gas revenue although Downstream Oil Gas did incur significant percentage

decrease in revenue year-to-year comparison of revenue is as follows

Year Ended December 31

Percent

2009 2008 Decrease Change

Upstream Oil Gas 982523 $1545629 563106 36.4%
Downstream Oil Gas 277250 367075 89825 24.5%

Total 1259773 $1912704 $652931 34.1%

Upstream Oil Gas revenue decreased $563106 36.4 percent to $982523 from $1545629 in 2008

We believe the decrease in revenue was the result of our customers reduction in capital and maintenance

spending in 2009 as reaction to the overall global economic recession At each of our Upstream Oil Gas

business units we experienced revenue decreases from 23.0 percent to nearly 70.0 percent The majority of

our 2009 revenue 67.6 percent was earned in the first six-months of 2009 as we worked off existing backlog

from 2008

Our U.S Construction business unit revenue decreased $253305 30.0 percent to $589736 from

$843041 in 2008 This was primarily due to reduced utilization of large-diameter cross-country pipeline
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construction assets of $156263 and reduction of pipeline construction EPC work of $126754 We believe

both of these reductions were directly linked to the reduced capital budgets of our primary client base for this

business These decreases were partially offset by increased revenue from our facility construction group of

$21985 and increased revenue from our Manage Maintain group of $6825 The facility construction revenue

was primarily attributable to one large project that included the construction of seven pump stations

Our Canada business unit revenue decreased $133143 34.4 percent to $254355 from $387498 in

2008 The decrease was primarily due to reduced capital budgets of the oil-sand producers and pipeline

companies driven by the decline in crude oil prices year-over-year and the production costs associated with

the oil-sands Revenue from our pipeline construction group decreased $109602 Additionally our long-term

contracts for recurring .maintenance at the oil-sand production facilities generated $24782 less in revenue in

2009

Our U.S Engineering business unit revenue decreased $159495 68.6 percent to $73064 from $232559

in 2008 Revenue from core engineering services declined $95403 reflecting the significant drop-off in market

demand for front-end design work for gas and liquid transportation systems The EPC component of our

offering which declined $68748 was affected by reduced capital expenditure budgets combined with owners

increasing their risk tolerance associated with managing multiple aspects of these large projects

Our Oman business unit revenue decreased $19599 23.1 percent to $6568 from $84967 in 2008This

decrease was largely due to reduced work order activity of $21124 from our primary client to whom we

provide both capital construction and maintenance services This reduction was partially offset by an increase

of $3331 in our rig moving services

Downstream Oil Gas revenue decreased $89825 24.5 percent to $277250 from $367075 in 2008

primarily as the result of declining construction revenue from capital projects The decline in refining profit

margins slowed the release of capital projects by our customers As result while we continued to complete

capital contracts awarded in 2008 and early 2009 we were not able to replace them to the same extent as in

the prior year

Construction services revenue decreased $72616 68.4 percent to $33484 primarily due to the

completion of major EFC project early in 2009 which was significant source of construction services

revenue in 2008 Tank construction revenue decreased $31963 55.8 percent to $25298 The slow

release of capital projects has increased competition and impacted the volume of contract awards that we
have been able to obtain in both of these business units in 2009

The decline in profit margins in 2009 in the refining industry also resulted in the delay of several

maintenance and turnaround projects from 2009 into 2010 This caused maintenance and turnaround

revenue to decrease $6695 4.4 percent to $147176

Downstream engineering revenue increased $21856 275.4 percent to $29794 primarily the result of

our acquisition of Wink in July 2009

Operating Income

Operating income decreased $31310 43.6 percent to $40496 from $71806 in 2008 year-to-year

comparison of operating income is as follows

Year Ended December 31

Operating Operating Percent

2009 Margin 2008 Margin Change Change

Upstream Oll Gas 39997 4.1% $110885 7.2% $70888 63.9%
Downstream Oil Gas 499 0.2% 39079 10.6% 39578 101.3%

Total 40496 3.2% 71806 3.8% $31310 43.6%

Upstream Oil Gas operating income decreased $70888 63.9 percent to $39997 from $110885 in

2008 The decrease was caused by reduced revenue across the segment as noted above combined with

increased margin pressure for most of our service offerings With fewer prospects available in 2009 the

competition for each project grew forcing us to reduce margin expectations across the segment Our

contract margins for 2009 were lower than 2008 at three of our four primary business units suffering

declines from 2.6 percentage points to 13.0 percentage points The only business unit that improved contract

income year-over-year was our U.S Construction group which improved 0.9 percentage points In 2009

we focused on reducing our overhead expenses to remain competitive in market with fewer opportunities

These efforts resulted in reduction of our total GA costs of $14527 in 2009 As percent of segment
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revenue GA costs represented 7.0 percent although this was an increase as compared to the equivalent

5.3 percent in 2008 GA costs reductions lagged behind the 36.4 percent revenue decline in 2009

Operating income for our U.S Construction business unit decreased $11419 25.9 percent to $32702

from $44121 in 2008 While operating income was down operating margin was steady year-over-year

increasing 0.3 percentage point to 5.5 percent from 5.2 percent in 2008 In the face of increased competition

and an overall weaker economy this performance helped support the Upstream Oil Gas segment While

this business unit was able to improve contract margin year-over-year this improvement did not offset the

impact to operating income associated with the revenue decline of 30.0 percent Contract margin

improvement was largely driven by two key factors the completion of the Midcontinent Express Pipeline

project large multi-spread cost reimbursable pipeline project and the successful transition to and

completion of TIPS lump-sum two-spread pipeline construction project TIPS performance exceeded

expectations and contributed to the slight year-over-year margin improvement By comparison our 2008

contract margin was largely attributable to two large multi-spread pipeline construction projects with cost

reimbursable terms Southeast Supply Header SESH and MEP The cost reimbursable nature of these

jobs ensured our profitability but negatively impacted margin as the size of the projects increased revenue

while our profit opportunity remained fixed These projects were also offset by smaller lump-sum pipeline

construction projects that did not perform to the as-hid expectations We reduced our U.S Construction GA
costs by $7645 in 2009

Operating income for our Canada business unit decreased $19356 74.4 percent to $6656 from

$26012 in 2008 This decrease was primarily caused by the reduction of revenue associated with our

pipeline construction group in Canada Pipeline construction revenue decreased 60.2 percent year-over-

year In 2008 our two largest pipeline construction projects generated $181688 of revenue compared to

our two largest projects in 2009 which generated $71204 This significant decrease was representative of

the overall reduction of oil-sands related pipeline construction projects in Canada Our maintenance and

fabrication services were relatively constant year-over-year providing some insulation from the cyclical

pipeline construction market We reduced our Canada GA costs by $3976 in 2009

Operating income for our U.S Engineering business unit decreased $31803 125.5 percent to loss of

$6470 from income of $25333 in 2008 continuing reduction of our Work load resulted in reduced

utilization of resources throughout the year and in response we initiated several reductions of force to match

the resource base to the available work We began the year with approximately 450 engineering and support

staff and we ended the year with approximately 250 In addition to these reductions we continued to

evaluate and make corresponding reductions in other support In 2009 we reduced our U.S Engineering

GA costs by $4199

Operating income for our Oman business unit decreased $5780 37.2 percent to $9760 from $15540

in 2008 The decrease in operating income is primarily attributable to reduced revenue in 2009 as noted

previously Our contract margins decreased 3.3 percent year-over-year negatively impacting operating

income These reductions were the result of fewer work-orders and qualified prospects compounded by

more competitive bidding environment These decreases were partially offset by reduction of overall

business unit GA costs of $4287

Operating income for our other international business units decreased $1494 94.7 percent to loss of

$3072 from loss of $1 578 in 2008 These costs are primarily related to international new business

development and pursuing new opportunities as well as the proposal costs associated with submitting

multiple qualified bids

Downstream Oil Gas operating income increased $39578 101.3 percent to $499 from loss of

$39079 in 2008 primarily from the $62295 impairment charge taken in 2008 This increase is partially

offset by an operating income decrease of $22717 caused primarily by the previously discussed revenue

variances as well as declining margins across most business units

Construction services operating income decreased $2907 78.8 percent to $782 primarilyas result of

the slow release of capital work Tank services operating income decreased $7606 95.0 percent to $403
due to the slow release of capital work and fewer fixed price contract awards which traditionally result in

higher margins in 2009 as compared to 2008 The reduction in fixed price work was caused by pricing

pressures from our customers and also contributed to the $5793 77.3 percent reduction in maintenance

and turnaround operating income

Downstream engineering operating income decreased $6694 to loss of $5476 as result of our

acquisition of Wink in July 2009
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Downstream Oil- Gas incurred $3141 in other charges in 2009 of which $1963 occurred in the

engineering business unit almost entirely related to lease impairment charges taken on Winks leased office

space

Non-Operating Items

Interest net expense decreased $704 7.8 percent to $8328 from $9032 in 2008 The decrease in net

expense is the result of decrease in interest expense of $2285 primarily due to decreased capital lease

obligations as result of buy-outs during the second quarter of 2009 offset by $1581 of decreased interest

income earned on cash and cash equivalents due to declining interest rates throughout 2009

Other net income decreased $7072 89.6 percent to net income of $819 from net income of $7891

in 2008 The decrease was primarily result of selling one of our fabrication facilities located in Edmonton

Alberta Canada hich resulted in gain on sale of $7694 during 2008

Provision for income taxes decreased $17208 66.3 percent to $8734 from $25942 in 2008 During

2009 we recognized $8734 of income tax expense on income from continuing operations before income

taxes of $32987 as compared to income tax expense of $25942 on income from continuing operations

before income taxes of $70665 in 2008 The decrease in the provision for income taxes is due to the

decrease in operating income recognized during 2009 and decrease in effective tax rate primarily due to

the reversal of uncertain tax positions

Income Loss from Disdontinued Operations Net of Taxes

Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes decreased $5358 719.2 percent to loss of

$4613 from income of $745 in 2008 During 2009 $1750 charOe to write off the net book value of note

receivable related to the sale of our Venezuela assets and operations was recorded Mahagement

determined the collection of this outstanding commitment was highly unlikely due to nationalization of

various oil-field service contractors within the country The income recognized during the same period in

2008 was the result of two pre-Nigeria sale insurance claim recoveries totaling $3004 for events of loss we

suffered prior to the sale of pur Nigeria operations Additionally as of December 31 2010 we classifipd our

Libyan operations as discontinued operations We recognized loss from discontinued operations related to

Libya of $3116 and $2012 respectively for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our financing objective is to maintain financial flexibility to meet the material equipment and personnel

needs to support our project commitments and pursue our expansion and diversification objectives while

reducing debt As of December 31 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $141101 Our cash and

casli equivalent balahces held in the United States and foreign countries were $59437 and $81664

respectively We have analyzed our operations in all jurisdictions and while our current operating strategy is

to reinvest any earnings of operations internationally rather than to distribute dividends to the U.S parent or

its U.S affiliates we are continually evaluating the use of cash available in our foreign subsidiaries for use to

pre-pay debt No dividends were paid from foreign operations to Willbros Group Inc or its domestic

subsidiaries during 2010 At this time there are other avenues available to management to consider for pre-

payrnentof debt and the likelihood that cash would be repatriated from foreign operations is low

We are also able td -secure funds from three year revolving credit facility of $175000 that was

established primarily to provide letters of credit As of December 31 2010 we had no outstanding

borrowings and $25678 of letters of credit outstanding under our 2010 Credit Facility leaving remaining

capacity of $149322 Our ability to use the 2010 Credit Facility for revolving loans however has been

rstricted as result of the amendment to the 2010 Credit Facility in March of.201 as discussed below

During 2010 our working capital position for continuing operations decreased by $27811 9.4 percent

to $269584 from $297395 at December 31 2009 This was primarily the result of significant reduction in

income from continuing operations due to reduction of large diameter pipeline projects in our Upstream Oil

Gas segment amplified by delays in execution schedules on pipeline and facilities work in our Canadian

business offset by additionpl working capital associated with our new Utility TD segment in the second half

of 20W

Our overall cash balance has been negatively impacted by an ongoing contract dispute with

TransCanada See Note 16 in the accompanying financial statements for additional background information

As of December 31 2010 we have $71159 of unpaid TransCanada receivables We have submitted this

dispute to arbitration fof resolution however final resolution may not occur for year or more We have not
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established collectability reserve and we believe adequate financial reserves are available during the

interim period prior to receiving payment

Additional Sources and Uses of Capital

2010 Credit Facility

Concurrent with our acquisition of lnfrastruX we entered into the 2010 Credit Agreement dated June 30

2010 that consists of four year $300000 Term Loan maturing in July2014 and.a three year revolving

credit facility of $175000 maturing in July 2013 and replaced our existing three year $150000 senior

secured credit facility which was scheduled to expire irrNovember 2010 The proceeds from the Term Loan

were used to pay part of the cash portion of the merger consideration payable in connection with our

acquisition of InfrastruX See Note 10 Long-term Debt in Item of this Form 10-K for further discussion of

the 2010 Credit Facility

Our 2010 Credit Agreement and the 6.5% Senjor Convertible Notes or debt incurrence test only

contain various provisions that require us to amon other things comply with the following requirements in

which we were in compliance as of December 312010

minimum interest coverage ratio

maximum total leverage ratio

minimum tangible net worth

debt incurrence test

minimum consolidated EBITDA and minimum cash balance during the Interim Period

limitations on capital expenditures during the Interim Period $60000 and the greater of $70000 or

25% of EBTIDA thereafter

JO limitations on indebtedness

limitations on liens

limitations on certain asset sales and dispositions and

limitations on certain acquisitions and asset purchases if certain liquidty levels are not maintained

Our 2010 Credit Agreement 2.75% Conyertible Seniqr Notes and 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes

contain default and cross-default provisioni An Event of Default under the 2010 Credit Agreement would

permit Credit Agricole and the lenders to terminate their commitment fo make cash adances or issue letters

of credit require the immediate repayment of any outstanding cash advances with interest and require the

cash collateralization of outstandihg- letter of credit obligations An Event of QefÆult under the 2.75%

Convertible Senior Notes and 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes would require an accelerated pajrnent of such

notes before the scheduled date of maturity Events of Default in the 2010 Credit Agreement 2.75%

Convertible Senior Notes or-the 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes may trigger cross-default provisions under

these debt instruments

Events of Default under the 2010 Credit Agreement 2.75% Convertible Senior Nàtes and 6.5% Senior

Convertible Notes may include but are not limited to covenant breaches that are not waived pr cured

failure to make scheduled payments of interest or principal of any debt obligation greater than certain

amount change in control of the Company or certain insolency proceecings

Our 2010 Credit Agreement was amended on March 2011 the Amendment The Amendment

allows us to make certain dispositions of equipment real Østae and buŁiness units In mostcases proceeds

from these dispositiônswould be rØquirØd to pay down the existing Term Loan made pursuant to the 2010

Credit Agreement Financial covenants and associated definitions such as Consolidated EBITDA were

also amended to permit us to carry out our business plan nd to clarify the treatment of certain items We
have agreed to limit our revolver borrowings under the 2010 Credit Agreement to $25000 with the

exception of proceeds from revolving borrowings used to make any payments in respect of the Convertible

Senior Notes until our total leverage ratio is 3.0 to 1.0 or less However the Amendment does not change
the limit on obtaining letters of credit The Amendment also modifies the definition of Excess Cash Flow to

include proceeds fromthe TransCanada Pipeline Arbitration which would require Us to use all or portion of-

such proceeds further Spay down the existing Term Loan in the following fiscal year of receipt For

prepayments made with Net Debt Proceeds or Equity Issuance Proceeds as those terms are defined in the
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2010 Credit Agreement the Amendment requires prepayment premium of 4% of the principal amount of

the Term Loans prepaid before December 31 2011 and 1% of the principal amount of the Term Loans

prepaid on and after December 31 2011 but before December 31 2012 Premiums for prepayments made

with proceeds other than Net Debt Proceeds or Equity Issuance Proceeds remain the same as set forth

under the 2010 Credit Agreement

In connection with the Amendment we incurred fees of $4743 and $376 related to lender fees and third

party legal costs respectively in the first quarter of 2011 Based on the Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB accounting standard on debt modifications we have capitalized lender fees and will

amortize them over the three and four-year terms of the revolving credit facility and Term Loan respectively

Based on the same standard the third party legal fees were expensed as incurred during the first quarter of

2011

Cash Flows

Statements of cash flows for entities with international operations that use the local currency as the

functional currency exclude the effects of the changes in foreign currency exchange rates that occur during

any given period as these are non-cash charges As result changes reflected in certain accounts on the

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows may not reflect the changes in corresponding accounts on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $141101 working capital excluding

discontinued operations of $269584 and long-term obligations of $304470 net of current maturities These

long-term obligations consist of $272420 on the Term Loan and $32050 related to the 6.5% Notes which

have an aggregate principal amount of $316300

Operating Activities

Cash flow from operations is primarily influenced by demand for our services peratipg margins and the

type of services we provide but can also be influenced by working capital needs such as the timing of

collection of receivables and the settlement of payables and other obligations Working capital needslare

generally higher during the summer and fall months when the majority of our capital intensive projects are

executed Conversely working capital assets are typically converted to cash during the winter months

Operating activities from continuing operations provided net cash to us of $58293 during 2010 as compared
to $57425 during 2009 and $190556 during 2008 The slight increase in operating cash flows in 2010 as

compared to 2009 is due primarily to

an increase in cash flow provided by working capital accounts of $57032 This increase was driven

primarily by improvement of our cash collection efforts during the fourth quarter of 2010 as

evidenced by our reduction in days sales outstanding from 91 days at December 31 2009 to 83

days at December 31 2010 This increase can also be attributed to greater focus on our overall

working cbpital management by aIiAing payments on bIigations with current dontractual

arrangements This was almost entirely offset by

an increase in the cash consumed by continuing operations of $56164 net of non-cash effects

which includes $60000 goodwill impairment charge and $45340 reduction in the contingent

earnout liability

Investing Activities

Iuring 2010 we used net cash in investing activities of $404651 as compared to $34036 and

$11725 used in investing activities in 2009 and 2008 respectively Investing activities in 2010 included

$18300 used for capital expenditures offset by $18331 of proceeds from the sale of under-utilized

equipment.The newly acquired Utility TD segment contributed capital expendituresof $6437

$421182 of net cash used for the third cuarter acquisition of InfrastruX

$16500 in net cash provided from the maturities of short-term investments during 2O10

During 2009 and 2008 we used $13107 and $35185 respectively for capital expenditures offset by

$9585 and $21212 of proceeds from the sale of equipment The decrease in capital expenditures of

$22078 in 2009 compared to 2008 is related primarily to significant purchase of large construction

equipment made during 2008 We monitor our real estate fleet and equipment size and utilization and to

the extent both financially and operationally beneficial we actively seek potential buyers or renters of such

equipment in order to limit ourfinancial exposure resulting from their under-utilization In 2010 we began
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process of analyzing all under-utilized property and equipment and adopted plan to dispose of such

assets In December 2010 we completed the sale of equipment having net book value of $12226

receiving proceeds of $15103 In addition we have committed to plan of disposal of additional properties

and equipment having carrying value of $18867 These assets are expected to be sold in 2011 and have

been separately presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the caption Assets held for sale

Financing Activities

In 2010 financing activities provided net cash of $291220 as compared to $35056 and $60044 used

by financing activities in 2009 and 2008 respectively Net cash provided by financing activities in 2010

resulted primarily from

$282000 in net proceeds after the $18000 original issue discount provided from the Term Loan

issued in connection with the funding of the InfrastruX acquisition and

$58078 in proceeds received from the issuance of common stock which was used to fund the

purchase of InfrastruX offset by additional debt issuance costs of $16238 for the new 2010 Credit

Facility and Term Loan completed concurrently with our acquisition of InfrastruX

Net cash used by financing activities in 2009 and 2008 resulted primarily from payments made on capital

leases as well as government fines of $22097 and $6575 for 2009 and $31402 and $12575 for 2008

respectively

Discontinued Operations

Net cash from discontinued operations used $4847 in 2010 as compared to $3546 used in 2009 This

resulted primarily from additional GA costs incurred related to our Libyan operations in 2010 as compared
to 2009 as well as additional legal fees incurred related to our ongoing WAPCo parent company guarantee

assertions In 2008 our net cash from discontinued operations provided cash to us of $1090 which was

primarily the result of two pre-Nigeria sale insurance claim recoveries of $3004 that more than offset the

Ios% incurred related to our Libyan operations in the same period

Capital Requirements

During 2010 $58293 of cash was provided by our continuing operations activities Capital expenditures

by segment amounted to $9586 spent by Upstream Oil Gas $951 for Downsfream Oil Gas $6437 for

Utility TD and $1326 by Corporate for total of $18300 Approved capital spending of $960 has been

carried forward to 2011

We believe that our financial results combined with our current liquidity financial management and the

2010 Credit Facility as amended and previously discussed will ensure sufficient cash to meet our capital

requirements for continuing operations As such we are focused on the following significant capital

recjuirements

providing working capital for projects in process and those scheduled to begin in 2011

fundin of our 2011 capital budget of approximately $29700 inclusive of $960 of carry-forward from

2010

redeeming of $59357 of our 2.75% Notes see Contractual Obligations below and

making the final installment payment to the government related to fines and profit disgorgement

We believe that we will be able to support our ongoing working capital needs through our cash on hand

operating cash flows sales of idle and under-utilized equipment and potentially the previously discussed

2010 Credit Facility
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Contractual Obligations

As of December 31 2010 we had $299250 of outstanding debt related to our Term Loan and $91407

of outstanding debt related to the convertible notes In addition we have various capital leases of

construction equipment and property resulting in aggregate capital lease obligations of $15262 at December

31 2010

Payments Due By Period

Less than 1-3 4-5 More than

Total year years years years

Term Loan 299250 15000 30000 254250

Convertible notes 91407 59357 32050

Capital lease obligations 15262 8743 6470 49

Operating lease obligations 143175 39581 54372 22620 26602

Equipment financing obligations 2118 1343

Contingent earnout 10000 10000

Government obligations 6575 6575

Uncertain tax liabilities 4866

Total 572653 130599 133667 $276919 26602

The holders of the 6.5% Notes had the right to require us to purchase the 6.5% Notes for cash including

unpaid interest on December 15 2010 None of th6.5% Notes were surrendered for purchase pursuant to

this putoptioh Accordingly the 6.5% Notes remain outstanding as of December 31 201 and continue to

be subjedt to the terms and conditions of the Indenture governing the 6.5% Notes Following the expiration of

the put Option an aggregate principal amount of $32050 remains outstanding net of $0 discount and has

been classified as long-term and included within Long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance SheØtat

December 31 2010

Based on information received from BOKF NA dba Bank of Texas as paying agent for the 2.75%

Notes we announced on March 14 2011 that all of the 2.75% Notes with an aggregate principal amount of

$59357 were validly surrendered and not withdrawn pursuant to the option of the holders of the 2.75%

Notes to require us to purchase on March 15 2011 all or portion of such holders 2.75% Notes We will

use our revolving credit facility to fund the purchase of the 2.75% Notes and the remaining unamortized

discount of $682 will be expensed during the first quarter of 2011

lb connection with the acquisition of Infrastru on July 2010 InfrastruX shareholders are eligible to

receive earnout payments of up to $125000 if certain EBITDA targets are met During the third quarter of

2010 we recorded $45340 adjustment to the estimated fair value of the contingent earnout liability This

change in estimated contingent earnout liability fo the former InfrastruX shareholders was due to third

quarter decrease in the probability-wçighted estimated achievement of EBITDA targets as set forth in the

merger agreement Accordingly $10000 in contingent earnout liability is presented as long tern liability

on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 2010

At December 31 2010 we had uncertain tax positions which ultimately could result in tax payment As

the amount of the ultimate tax payment is contingent on the tax authorities assessment it is notpractical to

present annual payment information

As of December 31 2010 there were no borrowings upder the 2010 Credit Facility and there were

$25678 in outstanding letters of credit All outstanding letters of credit relate to continuing operations

We have unsecured credit facilities with banks in certain countries outside the United States Borrowings

under these lines in the form of short-term notes and overdrafts are made at competitive local interest

rates Generally each line is available only for borrowings related to operations in specific country Credit

available under these facilities is approximately $6541 at December 31 2010 There were no outstanding

borrowings at December 31 2010 or 2009

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Commercial Commitments

From time to time we enter into commercial commitments usually in the form of commercial and

standby letters of credtt surety bonds and financial guarantees Contracts with our customers may require

us to provide letters of credit or surety bonds with regard to our performance of contracted services In such
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cases the commitments can be called upon in the event of our failure to perform contracted services

Likewise contracts may allow us to issue letters of credit or surety bonds in lieu of contract retention

provisions in which the client withholds percentage of the contract value until project completion or

expiration of warranty period

The letters of credit represent the maximum amount of payments we could be required to make if these

letters of credit are drawn upon Additionally we issue surety bonds customarily required by commercial

terms on construction projects U.S surety bonds represent the bond penalty amount of future payments we
could be required to make if we fail to perform our obligations under such contracts The surety bonds do not

have stated expiration date rather each is released when the contract is accepted by the owner Our

maximum exposure as it relates to the value of the bonds outstanding is lowered on each bonded project as

the cost to complete is reduced As of December 31 2010 no liability has been recognized for letters of

credit or surety bonds

summary of our off-balance sheet commercial commitments for both continuing and Discontinued

Operations as of December 31 2010 is as follows

Expiration Per Period

Total Less than More Than

Commitment year 1-2 Years Years

Letters of credit

US performance 23023 23023

Canada performance 2657 2657

Other performance and retention 124 124

Total letters of credit 25804 25804

U.S surety bonds primarily performance 530152 485788 44364

Totl commercial commitments 555956 511592 44364

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP In many cases the

accounting treatment of particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP and does not require

managements judgment in pplication There ace also areas which require managements judgment in

selecting among available GAAP alternatives We are requireçi to make certain estimates judgments and

assumptions that we believe are reasonable based upon the information available These estimates and

assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the fnancial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented Actual results may differ

from our estimates and to the extent there are material differences between these estimates judgments or

assumptions and actual results our financial statements will be affected We believe the following

accounting estimates are the most critical in understanding and evaluating our reported financial results We
have reviewed these critical accounting estimates and related disclosures with our Audit Committee

The following discussion of our critical accounting estimates shbuld be read in conjunction with Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this

Form 10-K

Revenue

number of fabtors relating to our business affect the redognition of contract revenue We typically

structure contrabts as unit-price time and materials fixed-price or cost plus fixed fee We believe that our

operating results should be evaluàtØd over time horizon during which major contracts in progress are

completed and change orders extra work variations in the scope of work cost recoveries and other claims

are negotiated and realized Revenue from unit-price and time and materials bbntracts is recognized as

earned

Revenue for fixed-price and cost plus fixed fee contracts is recognized using the percentage-of-

completion method Under this method estimated contract income and resultin revenue is generally

accrued based on costs incurred to date as percentage of total estimated costs taking into consideration

physioal completion Total estimated costs and thus contract income are impacted by changes in

productivity scheduling unit cost of labor subcontracts materials and equipment Additionally external

factors such as weather client needs client delays in providing permits and approvals labor availability

governmental regulation and politics may affect the progress of projects completion and thus the timing of
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revenue recognition Certain fixed-price and cost plus fixed fee contracts include or are amended to include

incentive bonus amounts contingent on accomplishing stated milestone Revenue attributable to incentive

bonus amounts is recognized when the risk and uncertainty surrounding the achievement of the milestone

have been removed We do not recognize income on fixed-price contract until the contract is

approximately five to ten percent complete depending upon the nature of the contract If current estimate

of total contract cost indicates loss on contract the projected loss is recognized in full when determined

We consider unapproved change orders to be contract variations on which we have customer approval

for scope change but not for price associated with that scope change Costs associated with unapproved

change orders are included in the estimated cost to complete the contracts and are expensed as incurred

We recognize revenue equal to cost incurred on unapproved changed orders when realization of price

approval is probable and the estimated amount is equal to or greater than the cost related to the unapproved

change order Revenue recognized on unapproved change orders is included in contract costs and

recognized income not yet billed on the balance sheet Revenue recognized on unapproved change orders

is subject to adjustment in subsequent periods to reflect the changes in estimates or final agreements with

customers

We consider claims to be amounts that we seek or will seek to collect from customers or others for

customer-caused changes in contract specifications or design or other customer-related causes of

unanticipated additional contract costs on which there is no agreement with customers on both scope and

price changes Revenue from claims is recognized when agreement is reached with customers as to the

value of the claims which in some instances may not occur until after completion of work under the contract

Costs associated with claims are included in the estimated costs to complete the contracts and are

expensed when incurred

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We utilize the purchase accounting method for business combinations and record intangible assets

separate from goodwill The FASB standard on goodwill stipulates non-amortization approach to acqount

for purchased goodwill and certain intangible assets with indefinite useful lives Goodwill represents tbe

excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired We do not have any other intangible assets

with indefinite useful lives We do have other intangible assets with finite lives These other intangible assets

consist of customer relationships and backlog recorded in connection with the acquisition of lnServ in

November 2007 customer relationships trademarks and non-compete agreements recorded in connection

with the acquisition of the engineering business of Wink in July 2009 and customer relationshis

tradenames and technology recorded in connection with the acquisition of InfrastruX in 2010 The value of

existing customer relationships from the lnServ Wink and lnfrastuX acquisitions was recorded at the

estimated fair value determined by using discounted cash flow method Such acquired customer

relationships have finite useful life and are therefore being amortized over the estimated useful life of the

relationships Additionally we were able to assign values to the trademarks and non-compete agreements

purchased in the Wink acquisition The trademarks and non-compete agreements were recorded at their fair

value and are being amortized over the useful life of the contracts

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Intangible Assets with Finite Lives

Whenever indicators of impairment exist we evaluate the carrying values of our long-lived assets for

possible impairment This evaluation is based upon our projections of anticipated future cash flows

undiscounted and without interest charges from the assets being evaluated If the sum of the anticipated

future cash flows over the expected useful life of the assets is less than the assets carrying value then

permanent non-cash write-down equal to the difference between the assets carrying value and the assets

fair value is required to be charged to earnings In estimating future cash flows we generally use

probability weighted average expected cash flow method with assumptions based on those used for internal

budgets The determination of future cash flows and if required fair value of long-lived asset is by its

nature highly subjective judgment Significant assumptions are required in the forecast of future operating

results used in the preparation of the long-term estimated cash flows Changes in these estimates could

have material effect on the evaluation of our long-lived assets

Impairment of Goodwill

We estimate the fair value of goodwill using the discounted cash flows methodology and an analysis of

comparable companies The principal factors used in the discounted cash flow analysis requiring judgment

are the projected resu of operations weighted average cost of capital WACC and termiriaI value

assumptions This analysis requires the input of several critical assumptions including future growth rates
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cash flow projections WACC operating cost escalation rates rate of return terminal value assumptions and

long-term earnings and merger multiples for comparable companies in both the upstream and downstream

markets The WACC takes into account the relative weights of each component of the Companys
consolidated capital structure equity and debt and represents the expected cost of new capital adjusted as

appropriate to consider lower risk profiles associated with longer term contracts and barriers to market entry

The terminal value assumptions are applied to the final year of the discounted cash flow model

According to accounting standards for goodwill goodwill and other intangibles are required to be

evaluated whenever indicators of impairment exist and at least annually During the third quarter of 2010 in

connection with the completion of our preliminary forecasts for 2011 it became evident that goodwill

impairment associated with the Downstream Oil Gas segment was probable Due to time restrictions with

the filing of our third quarter Form 10-Q we were unable to fully complete our two step impairment test

According to the accounting standards for goodwill if the second step Step Two of the goodwill

impairment test is not complete before the financial statements are issued or are available to be issued and

goodwill impairment loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated the best estimate of that loss shall

be recognized Using preliminary discounted cash flow analysis supported by comparative market

multiples to determine the fair value of the segment versus its carrying value an estimated range of likely

impairment was determined and an impairment charge of $12000 was recorded during the third quarter of

2010

During the fourth quarter of 2010 we performed our required annual test for goodwill impairment The

results ofthe first step Step One are as follows

Step One Summary Excess Associated Implied

Reporting Unit Fair Value Carrying Value Deficit GoodwilP2 Impairment

Downstream Oil Gas 87000 146846 59846 61754 Yes

U7istreamOilGas 21g700 191958 27742 13177 No

Utility TDt N/A N/A N/A 184822 No

Under GAAP company has up to one year subsequent to closing an acquisition to perform its annual testing for goodwill

impairment unless indicators of an impairment exist we closed on the acquisition of lnfrastruX or Utility TD during the third

quarter of 2010 No indicators of impairment including the events that led to the reduction in the contingent earnout liability for the

Utility TD segment were identified by management during the fourth quarter of 2010 Accordingly we have excluded them from our

2010 annual assessment of goodwill we will perform impairment testing for this segment during the second quarter of 2011 or

earlier should we identify any indicators of impairment

Represents goodwill prior to fourth quarter write-downs

If an impairment is indicated in Step One of the assessment the Step Two is necessary and measures

the amount of the impairment Step Two is performed by comparing the implied fair value of our reporting

units goodwill with the carrying value of the reporting units goodwill For this purpose the implied fair

value of goodwill for each reporting unit that had goodwill associated with its operations was determined in

the same manner as the amount of goodwill is determined in business combination Step Two was

performed for the Downstream Oil Gas segments as its carrying value did not exceed fair value This

assessment resulted in further write-down of goodwill of $48000 during the fourth quarter of 2010 As the

Step One fair value exceeded the carrying value for the Upstream Oil Gas by 15% no impairment was

taken

Additionally we treated the write-down of goodwill as triggering event for all long-lived assets with

finite lives within the Downstream Oil Gas segment As such we reviewed these assets for impairment

Based on our review at December 2010 the effective date of our annual goodwill impairment testing

estimated future cash flows over the expected useful life for these assets exceeded their carrying value by

approximately $112000 Accordingly no impairment was taken

At December 31 2010 we have $211753 in goodwill of which $184822 relates to our Utility TD
segment $13754 relates to our Downstream Oil Gas segment and $13177 relates to our Upstream Oil

Gas segment
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Leases

We have entered into operating lease agreements some of which contain provisions for future rent

increases rent free periods or periods in which rent payments are reduced abated Consistent with the

FASBs standard on leases the total amount of rental payments due over the lease term is being charged to

rent expense on the straight-line method over the term of the lease The difference between rent expense
recorded and the amount paid is credited or charged to deferred rent obligation which is included in

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Interest Rate Contracts

We have designated certain interest rate contracts as cash flow hedges. No components of the hedging

instruments are excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness All changes in fair value of

outstanding derivatives in cash flow hedges except any ineffective portion are recorded in other

comprehensive income until earnings are impacted by the hedged transaction Classification of the gain or

loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations upon release from comprehensive income is the same as

that of the underlying exposure

When we discontinue hedge accounting because it is no longer probable that an anticipated transaction

will occur in the originally expected period or within an additional two-month period thereafter changes to

fair value accumulated in other comprehensive income are recognized immediately in earnings

See Note 17 Fair Value Measurements of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this

Form 10-K for further discussion of our derivative financial instruments

Insurance

We are insured for workers compensation employers liability and general liability claims subject to

deductible of $750 per occurrence We are also insured for auto liability claims subject to deductible of

$500 per occurrence Additionally our largest non-union employee-related health care benefit plan is subject

to deductible of $250 per claimant per year

Losses are accrued based upon our estimates of the ultimate liability for claims incurred including an

estimate of claims incurred but not reported with assistance from third-party actuaries For these claims to

the extent we have insurance coverage above the deductible amounts we have recorded receivable

reflected in Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets These insurance liabilities are difficult to

assess and estimate due to unknown factors including the severity of an injury the determination of our

liability in proportion to other parties and the number of incidents not reported The accruals are based upon

known facts and historical trends

Income Taxes

The FASB standard for income taxes takes into account the differences between financial statement

treatment and tax treatment of certain transactions Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the

expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are measured using enaOted tax rates expected to apply tO taxable income in the years in which thoºe

temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect of change in tax rates is

recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date At December 31 2010 we
had deferred tax assets of $27574 of which $7303 is related to state net operating losses with valuation

allowance of $7170 against it and deferred tax liabilities of $79174 Additionally in 2010 we wrote off

$3865 of deferred tax assets related to equity based compensation We evaluate the realizability of our

deferred tax assets in determination of our valuation allowance and adjust the amqunt of such allowance if

necessary The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization are our forecast of future taxable income

and available .tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets

Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income in the applicable taxing jurisdictions could affect the ultimate

realization of deferred tax assets and could result in an increase in our effective tax rate on future earnings

The provision or benefit for income taxes and the annual effective tax rate are impacted by income taxes in

certain countries being computed based on deemed profit rather than on taxable income and tax holidays

on certain international projects
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AccouNTlNq PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recently Adopted

Effective January 2009 we adopted the accounting standard That establishes the principles and

requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial sttements the identifiable assets

acquired the liabilities assumed any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired The

guidance also establishes disclosure requirements that will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial

effects of business combinations This standard requires that income tax benefits related to business

combinations that are not recorded at the date of acquisition are recorded as an income tax benefit in the

statement of operations when subsequently recognized Previously unrecognized income tax benefits

related to business combinations were recorded as an adjustment to the purchase price allocation when

recognized Beginning in 2009 all acquisitions have been recorded based on this standard

In January 2010 the FASB issued guidance which expanded the required disclosuresabout fair value

measurements In particular this guidance requires separate disclosure of the amounts of significant

transfers in and out of Level and Level fair value measurements along with the reaSons for such

transfers ii information about purchases sales issuances and Łettlements to be presented separately in

the reconciliation for Level fair value measurements iii expanded fair value measurement disclosures for

each class of assets and liabilities and iv disclpsures about the valuation techniques and inputs.used to

measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements that fall in either Level or

Level This guidance iseffective for annual reporting periods beginnin after December 15 2009 except

for ii above which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 The adoption of this

standard did not have material impact on our consolidated results of operatioriŁ financial position or cash

flows However appropriate disclosures have been made See Note 17 Fair Value Measurements of our

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K.

In June 2009 the FASB issued new accounting standard which provides amendments to previous

guidance on the consolidation of variable interest entities VIE This standard clarifies the chaFacteristics

that identify VIE and changes how reporting entity idØhtifies primar beneficiary that would consolidate

the VIE from quantitative risk and rewards calculation to qualitative approach based on which variable

interest holder has controlling financial interest and the ability to direct the most signifibant activities that

impact the VIEs economic peormance.This statement requires the primary beneficiary assessmØntto be

performed on continuousbasis It also requires additional disclosures about an entitys inyolvement with

VIE restrictions on the VIEs assets and liabilities that are included in the reporting entitys consolidØted

balance sheet significant risk exposures due to the entitys involvement with the VIE and how its

involvement with VIE impacts the reporting entitys consolidated financial statements The standardwas

effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 The adoption ofthe standard did not have any

impact on our consolidated financial statements

On December 17 2010 the FASB issued an update to its standard on gdpdwill impairment whidh

does not change the prescribed method of calculating the carrying valUe of repdrting unit in the

performance of Step One of the goodwill impairment test and requires entitiS with zero or negative

carrying value to assess considering qualitative factors such as the impairment indicators listed in FASBs

standard on goodwill whether it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exists If an entity

concludes that it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exists the entity must perform Step Two
of the goodwill impairment test The update is effective for impairment tests performed during entities fiscal

years and interim periods within those years that begin after December 15 2010 The adoption of this

update is not expected to have any impact on our consolidated financial statements

Recently Proposed

In August 2010 the FASB issued proposed accounting standard update on lease accounting that

would require entities to recognize assets and liabilities arising from lease contracts on the balance sheet

The proposed accounting standard update states that lessees and lessors should apply right-of-use

model in accounting for all leases Under the proposed model lessees would recognize an asset for the

right to use the leased asset and liability for the obligation to make rental payments over the lease term

The lease term is defined as the longest possible term that is more likely than not to occur The accounting

by lessor would reflect its retained exposure to the risks or benefits of the underlying leased asset lessor

would recognize an asset representing its right to receive lease payments based on the expected term of the

lease Comments on this exposure draft were due December 15 2010 and the final standard is expected to

be issued sometime in -2011 While we believe that the proposed standard as currently drafted will likely
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have material impact on our reported financial position and reported results of operations it will not have

material impact on our liquidity however until the proposed standard is finalized such evaluation cannot be

completed

EFFECTS OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

Our operations are affected by increases in prices whether caused by inflation government mandates

or other economic factors in the countries in which we operate We attempt to recover anticipated increases

in the cost of labor equipment fuel and materials through price escalation provisions in certain major

contracts or by considering the estimated effect of such increases when bidding or pricing new work

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Out primary market risk is our exposure to changes in non-U.S primarily Canada currency exchange
rates We attempt to negotiate contracts which provide for payment in U.S dollars but we may be required

to take all or portion of payment under qontract in another currency To mitigate non-U.S currency

exchange risk we seek to match anticipated non-U.S currency revenue with expense in the same currency

whenever possible To the extent we are unable to match non-U.S currency revenue with expense in the

same currency we may use forward contracts dptions or other dommon hedging techniques in the same

non-U.S currencies We had no forward contracts or options at December 31 2010 and 2009

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents accountC receivable notes payable and accounts

payable and accrued liabilities shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value at

December 31 2010 due to the generally short maturities of these items At December 31 2010 we invested

primarily in short-term dollar denominated bank deposits We have the ability and expect to hold our

investments to maturity

Under the 2010 Credit Agreement we are subject to hedging arrangements to fix or ptherwise limit the

interest cost of the Term Loan Therefore in September 2010 we entered into two 18month forward

interest rate swap agreements for total notional amount of $150000 in order to hedge changes in the

variable rate interest expense of half of the $300000 Term Loan maturing on June 30 2014 Under the

swap agreement we receive interest at floating rate of three-month LIBOR conditional on three-month

LIBOR exceeding percent to mirror variable rate interest provisions of the underlying hedged debt and

pays interest at fixed rate of 2.685 percent effective March 28 2012 through June 30 2014 The swap
agreement is designated and qualifies as cash flow hedging instrument and is deemed to be highly

effective hedge The fair value of the swap agreement at December 31 2010 was $104 and was based on

using model with Level inputs including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and

maturity dates

We also entered into two interest rate cap agreements for notional amounts of $75000 each in order to

limit exposure to an increase of the interest rate above percent effective September 28 2010 through

March 28 2012 The cap agreements are designated and qualify as cash flow hedging instruments and are

deemed to be highly effective hedges The fair value of the interest rate caps was $12 and was based on

using model with Level inputs including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and

maturity dates
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Willbros Group Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Willbros Group Inc Delaware

corporation formerly Panama corporation as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related

consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 201.0 These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform- the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In oUr opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Willbros Group Inc as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Willbros Group Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2G10

based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated March 14 2011

expressed an adverse opinion and exclusion of Utility TD segment

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Houston Texas

March 142011

76



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Willbros Group Inc

We have audited Willbros Group Inc.s Delaware corporation formerly Panama corporation internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissiofl

COSO Willbros Group Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting included in Item 9A

Managements Report Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Willbros Group Inc.s internal control

over financial reporting based on our audit Our audit of and opinion on Willbros Group Inc.s internal

control over financial reporting does not include internal control over financial reporting of InfrastruXGroup

Inc wholly owned subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets and revenues constituting

54.4 and 26.6 percent respectively of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the

year ended December 31 2010 As indicated in Managements Report lnfrastruX Group Inc was acquired

during 2010 and therefore managements assessment of the effectiveness of Willbros Group Inc.s internal

control over financial reporting excluded internal Oontrol over financial reporting of InfrastruX Group Inc

Utility TD segment

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

asssing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

material weakness is deficiency or combination of control deficiencies in internal control over financial

reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the companys annual or

interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis The following material

weakness has been identified and included in managements assessment

The Company identified material weakness related to compliance with the established estimation process

at its subsidiary in Canada Management determined that project cost estimations were not prepared in

sufficient detail to properly analyze job margin and management review was not thorough and did not

include follow through on issues from prior month estimates These operating deficiencies resulted in the

failure to identify four loss contracts at the Canadian subsidiary in timely manner
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In our opinion because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the

objectives of the control criteria Willbros Group Inc has not maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Willbros Group Inc.s consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and

the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and comprehensive income and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 The material weakness

identified above was considered in determining the nature timing and extent of audit tests applied in our

audit of the 2010 financial statements and this report does not affect our report dated March 14 2011 which

expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Houston Texas

March 14 2011
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

December 31

ASSETS

141101

319874
35059

54831

10108

11004
240

18867
591.084

229179

211753
195457

16570

41759

1285802

214062

16470
5371

71594
6575

2356

4832

324

321584

305227

5741

10000

4866

76020
38824

762262

2427
674173

161824

10045
17938

522669
871

523540

1285802

198684

16559

162414
45009

15416
4666

2875
692

446315
132.879

85775
36772

25034

1603

728378

81470

11336
5824

31450
6575

1605

9968

351

148579

56071

10692

6575
5512

11356
1598

240383

2005

607299

124788

9045
11725

487196
799

487995

728378

2010 2009

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Shortterm investments

Accounts receivable net

Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed

Prepaid expenses

Parts and supplies inventories

Deferred incoThe taxes

Assets of discontinued operations

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment net

Goodwill

Other intangible assets net

Deferred income taxes

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Contract billings in excess of cost and recognized income

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Notes payable and current portion of other long-term debt

Current portion of government obligations

Accrued income taxes

Other current liabilities

Liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Capital lease obligations

Contingent earnout

Long-term portion of government obligations

Long-term liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits

Deferred income taxes

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Contingencies and commitments Note 16
Stockholders equity

Preferred stock par value $.01 per share

1000000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock par value $05 per share 70000000 shares

authorized 70000000 at December 31 2009 and 48546817
shares issued at December 31 2010 40106498 at

December 31 2009
Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Treasury stock at cost 629320 shares at December 31 2010

510187 at December 31 2009
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Willbros Group Inc stockholders equity

Noncontrolling interest

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WILLBROS GROUP INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

Contract revenue

Operating expenses
Contract

Amortization of intangibles

General and administrative

Goodwill impairment

Changes in fair value of contingent earnout liability

Acquisition costs

Other charges

Operating
income loss

Other income expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Other net

Income loss from continuing operations

before income taxes

Provision benefit for income taxes

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations net of

provisions for income taxes

Net income loss

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Willbros

Group Inc

Reconciliation of net income attributable to Willbros

Group Inc

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss attributable to Willbros

Group Inc

Basic income loss per share attributable to Company
Shareholders

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss

Diluted inÆome loss per share attributable to Company
Shareholders

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net Income loss

Weighted average nUmber of common

shares outstanding

Basic

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

1192412 1259773 1912704

1080391

9724

118427

60000

45340
10055

3771
____________ ____________

1237028
____________ ____________

44616

755 1966 3547

28320 10294 12579
5474 819 7891

22091 7509 1141

66707 32987 70665

36150 8734 25942

30557 24253 44723

5272 4613 745

35829 19640 45468

1207 1817 1836

37036 17823 43632

0.74

0.12

0.58

0.12

1.12

0.02

0.86 0.46 1.14

0.74

0.12

0.58

0.12

1.11

0.02

0.86 0.46 1.13

43013934 38687594 38269248

43013934 38883077 38764167

1115224

6515

82345

2499

12694

1219277

40496

1650156

10420

118027

62295

1840898

71806

37036 17823 43632

31764 22436 42887

5272 4613 745

Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
In thousands except share and per share amounts

common Stock

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

Accumu
lated Treasury

Deficit Stock

Accumu

lated Total

Other Stock

Compre- holders

hensive Equity

Income Willbros

Loss Group Inc

Total

Non- Stock-

controlling holders

Interest Equity

Shares Par Value

Balance December31 2007 38276545 $1913 $571827 186243 3298 $17199 401398 1327 $402725

Net income

Foreign currency translation

adjustments

Total comprehensive income

Discount amortization of

convertible notes

Dividend distribution to

noncontrolling interest

Stock-based compensation

excluding tax benefit

Stock-based compensation tax

benefit

Deferred restricted stock rights

issuance

Restricted stock grants

Vesting of restricted stock rights

Additions to treasury stock

vesting and forfeitures of

restricted stock

Exercise of stock options

Expenses of public offering

Stock issued on conversion of

2.75% Convertible Senior

Notes

43632 43632 1836 45468

21635 21635 21635

1122

11652

2691

1122

2691

21997 1836 23833

1122

1584 1584

11652 11652

2691

225000 11 11
552159 28 28

23603

4717 4717 4717

53000 681 684 684

251 251 251

443913 22 7958 7980 7980

39574220 1978 595640 142611 8015 4436 442556 1579 444135

17823 17823 1817 19640

16161 16161 16161

33984 1817 35801

2597 2597

13231 13231 13231

1735 1735 1735

477079 24 24

37699

1030 1030 1030
17500 189 190 190

40106498 2005 607299 124788 9045 11725 487196 799 487995

Balance December31 2008

Net income

Foreign currency translation

adjustments

Total comprehensive income

Dividend distribution to

noncontrolling interest

Stock-based compensation

excluding tax benefit

Stock-based compensation tax

benefit deficiency

Restricted stock grants

Vesting of restricted stock rights

Additions to treasury stock

vesting and forfeitures of

restricted stock

Exercise of stock options

Balance December31 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
In thousands except share and per share amounts

Total comprehensive loss

Dividend declared and

distributed to noncontrolling

interest

Amortization of stock-based

compensation

Stock-based compensation tax

benefit

Stock issued under share-based

compensation plans

Stock issued in connection with

acquisition of InfrastruX

Additions to treasury stock

vesting and forfeitures of

restricted stock

Balance December 31 2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

common Stock

Shares Par Value

Balance December 31 2009

Net income loss

Foreign currency translation

adjustments net of tax

Derivatives net of tax

Accumu

lated

Other

compre
hensive

Income

Loss

11725

Total

Stock-

holders

Equity

Willbros

Group Inc

Total

Additional Accumu- Non- Stock-

Paid-in lated Treasury controlling holders

capital Deficit Stock
_________

Interest Equity

40106498 2005 607299 124788 9045 487196 799 487995

37036 37036 1207 35829

6194 6194 6194

19 19 19

30823 29616

1135 1135

8404 8404 8404

956 956 956

517011 26 1744 1770 1770

7923308 396 57682 58078 58078

1000 1000 1000

48546817 2427 674173 161824 10045 $17938 522669 871 $523540
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

Income loss from discontinued operations net

Depreciation and amortization

Goodwill impairment

Changes in fair value of contingent earnout liability

Stock-based compensation

Deferred income tax provision

Other non-cash

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts eceivable net

Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accrued income taxes

Contract billings in excess of cost and recognized income

Other liabilities

Cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations

Cash provided by used in operating activities of discontinued operations

Cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired and earnout

Proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Rebates from purchases of property plant and equipment

Maturities of short-term investments

Purchase of short-term investments

Cash used in investing activities of continuing operations

Cash provided by used in investing activities of discontinued operations

Cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from term loan issuance

Proceeds from stock issuance

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Stock-based compensation tax benefit deficiency

Additional costs of public offering

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

35829 19640 45468

333

21212

35185
1915

11725

11725

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Reconciliation of net income loss to net cash provided by used in operating

activities

5272 4613 745
56165 40860 44903

60000

45340
8404 13231

62295

11652

30669 1193 9546
8653 5669 3271

33396
7081

3755
35427

31
5072

13729

38947

27586

1618

84426
4536

8958
4374

48291

19571
7722

6975

610

4227

58293

4847
57425

3546
190556

1.090

53446 53879 191646

13955
9585

13107

16559

34036

34036

421182

18331

18300

16755

255

404651

404651

282000

58078

Payments on capital leases

Payments on notes payable

Payments to reacquire common stock

Payments on government fines

Dividend distributed to noncontrolling interest

Costs of debt issues

Cash provided by used in financing activities of continuing operations

Cash provided by used in financing activities of discontinued operations

Cash provided by used in financing activities

190 684

956 1735 2691

251

10600

12354

1000

6575

1135
16238

291220

22097

1062

1030

6575

2597
150

35056

31402

12724

4717

12575

1584
166

60044

291220 35056 60044
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest including discontinued operations

Cash paid for income taxes including discontinued operations

Supplemental non-cash investing and financing transactions

Initial contingent earnout liability

Prepaid insurance obtained by note payable

Equipment received through like-kind exchange

Equipment surrendered through like-kind exchange

Equipment and property obtained by capital leases

Common stock issued for conversion of 2.75% Convertible Senior Notes

Deposit applied to capital lease obligation

2402

57583
198684

141101

17863

7980

1432

nE

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents end of period

6135

9078
207762

198684

17042 5974

3947 19883

5001

114876

92886

207762

8355

40271

12754

55340

11687

3629

2735
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Company Willbros Group Inc WGI Delaware corporation and all of its majority-owned

subsidiaries the Company is provider of energy services to global end markets serving the oil and gas

refinery petrochemical and power industries The Companys principal markets for continuing operations

are the United States Canada and Oman The Company obtains its work through competitive bidding and

through negotiations with prospective clients Contract values may range from several thousand dollars to

several hundred million dollars and contract durations range from few weeks to more than year

The disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements relate to continuing operations

except as otherwise indicated

Discontinuance of Operations and Asset Disposals During 2006 the Compny chose to exit

Nigeria and Venezuela During 2010 the Company chose to exit the Libyan market These three businesses

are presented as discontinued operations in the Companys consolidated financial statements and

collectively are referred to as Discontinued Operations The net assets and net liabilities related to the

Discontinued Operations are shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Assets of discontinued

operations and Liabilities of discontinued opeatidns respectively The results of the Discontinued

Operations are shown on the Consolidated Statements of Operations as Income loss from discontinued

operations net of provisions for income taxes for all periods shown For further disbussion of Discontinued

Operations see Note 21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services

Agreement

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the

accounts of WGI all of its majority-owned subsidiaries and all of its wholly-controlled entities Inter-company

accounts and transactions are eliminated in consplidation The ownership interest of noncontrolling

participants in subsidiaries that are not wholly-owned principally in Oman is included as separate

component of equity The noncontrolling participants share of the net income is included as Income

attributable to noncontrolling interest on the Consolidated Statements of Operations Interests in the

Companys unconsolidated joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets

Use of Estimates The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles in the United States and include certain estimates and assumptions made by

management of the Company in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements These estimates

and assumptions relate to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the period Significant items

subject to such estimates and assumptions include revenue recognition under the percentage-of-completion

method of accounting including estimates of progress toward completion and estimates of gross profit or

loss accrual on contracts in progress tax accruals and certain other accru9d liabilities quantification of

amounts recorded for contingencies valuation allowances for accounts receivable and deferred income tax

assets and the carrying amount of parts and supplies property plant and equipment and goodwill The

Company bases its estimates on historical experience and other assumptions that it believes relevant under

the circumstances Actual results could differ from these estimates

Change in Estimate The Company performed review of the estimated useful lives bf certain fixed

assets at its Upstream Oil Gas segment during the first quarter of 2010 This evaluation indicated that

actual lives for the construction equipment were generally longer than the estimated useful lives used for

depreciation purposes in the Companys financial statements As result the Company adjusted the

estimated useful life on Upstream Oil Gas segments construction equipment from range of four to six

years to range of four to twelve years The effect of this change in estimate was to reduce depreciation

expense for the twelve months ended December 31 .2010 by $6032 and increase income fromcontinuing

operations by $3921 net of taxes or $0.09 per basic share

Consistency Effective January 2010 the Company has reclassified certain indirect overhead

expenseÆ to general and administrative expenses to apply consistent approach in the classification of

overhead across the Upstream Oil Gas and DàwnŁtream Oil Gas segments If the Company reclassified

these same costs in the twelve-month period ended December 31 2010 the reported general and

administrative costs would have increased accompanied by corresponding decrease to contract costs of
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

$5265 The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact if any that the treatment of these

costs would have on the Utility Transmissiqn Distribution Utility TD segment

Commitments and Contingencies Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims assessments

litigation fines penalties and other sources are recorded when management assessesthat it is probable

that liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Recoveries of costs from

third parties which management assesses as being probable of realizatiOn are separately recorded as

assets in Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Legal costs incurred in connection with

matters relating to contingencies are expensed in the period incurred See Note 16 Contingencies

Commitments and Other Circumstances for further discussion of the Companys commitments and

contingencies

Accounts Receivable Most of the accounts receivable and contract work in progress are from clients

in the oil and gas refinery petrochemical and power industries around the world Trade accounts receivable

are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest Most contracts require payments as the

projects progress or in certain cases advance payments The Company generally does not require

collateral but in most cases can place liens against the property planf or equipment constructed or

terminate the contract if material default occurs The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Companys
best estimate of the probable amount of credit losses in the Companys existing accounts receivable

considerable amount of judgment is requird in assessing the realization of receivables Relevant

assessment factors include the creditworthiness of the customer and prior collection history Balances over

90 days past due and over specified minimum amoUnt are reviewed individually for collectability Account

balances are charged off against the allowance after all reasonable rrieans of collection are exhausted and

the potential for recovery is considered remote The allowance requirements are based on the most current

facts available and are re-evaluated and adjusted on regular basis and as additionaF information is

received

Inventories Inventories consisting primarily of parts and supplies are stated at the lower of actual

cost or market Parts and supplies are evaluated at least annually and adjusted for excess and

obsolescence No excess or obsolescence allowances existed at December 31 2010 or 2009

Property Plant and Equipment Property plant and equipment is stated at cost Depreciation

including amortization of capital leases is provided on the straight-line method using estimated lives as

follows

Construction equipment 3-20 years

Furniture and equipment 3-12 years

Buildings 20 years

Transportation equipment 3-17 years

Aircraft and marine equipment 10 years

In connection with the acquisition of InfrastruX Group Inc InfrastruX the Company acquired

$156160 of property plant and e4uipment

Leasehold improvements are amortized on straight-line basis over the shorter of their eqqnomic lives

or .the lease term When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of the cost and related accumulated

Jepreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in Other net in

the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the period. Normal repair and maintenance costs are charged

to expense as incurred Significapt renewals and betterments are capitalized Long-lived assets are

evaluated for impairment annually and whenever events or changes ip circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable This evaluation is based upon the Companys

projections of anticipated future cash flows undiscounted and without interest charges froth the business

units which own the assets beihg evaluated If the sum of the anticipated futue cash flows ovef the expected

useful life of the assets is less than the assets carrying value then permanent write-down equal to the

difference between the assets carrying value and the assets fair value is required td be charged to

earnings
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

In estimating future cash flows we generally use probability .weighted average expected cash flow

method with assumptions based on those used for internal budgets The determinatiOn of future cash flows

and if required fair value of long-lived asset is by its nature highly subjective judgment Significant

assumptions are required in the forecast of future operating results used in the preparation of the long-term

estimated cash flows Changes in these estimates could have material effect on the evaluation of the

Companys long-lived assets

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The Company utilizes the purchase accounting method for

business combinations and records intangible assets separate from goodwill The Company also performs

an annual impairment test by applying fair-value-based test Intangible assets With finite lives continue to

be amortized over their useful lives The useful life of an intangible asset to an entity is the period over which

the asset is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of that entity

Goodwill Goodwill is originally recorded as the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets

acquired The Company pplies non-amortization approach to thdcount for purchased goodwill and

performs an annual test for impairmentduring the fourth quarterof each fiscal year and more frequently if an

event or circumstance indicates that iræpairment may have occurred The Company performs the required

annual impairment test for goodwill by determining the fair values of its reporting units using discounted

cash flow analysis supported by comparative market multiples

The fair values of each reporting unit are then compared to their book values When possible

impairment fora reporting unit is indicated by an excess of carrying value over fair value the implied fair

value of goodwill is calculated by deducting the fair value of net assets of the business excluding goodwill

from the total fair value of the business When the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value

an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the carrying value of goodwill to its implied value

Til

This analysis requires the input of several critical assumptions including

Long term earnings and cash flow projections based on the Companys strategic budgeting

process subject to future revenue growth rates and operating cost escalation rates

Merger multiples based on enterprise value and EBITDA for comparable companieS in both the

upstream and downstream markets Which are considered Level inputs For the definition of

Level inputs see Note 17 -Fair Value Measurements

Weighted average cost of capital which takes into account the relative weights of each

component of the Companys consolidated capital structure equity and debt and represents the

expectedcost of new capital adjusWdas appropriate to bdnsider lower riSk profiles associated

with longer term contracts and barriers to market entry

The U.S Treasury 20-year rate was used as the risk free interest rate

Terminal value assumptions are applied to the final year of the diOounted cash flow model

These critical assumptions require significant management judgment Due to the many variables

inherent in the estimation of businesss fair value and the relative size of the recQrded goodwill differences

in assumptions may have material effect on the results of the Companys impairment analysis

Other Intangible Assets The Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

other than goodwill The Company does have other intangible assets with finite lives These other intangible

assets consist of customer relationships and backlog recorded in connection with the acquisition of

Integrated Service Company LLC lnServ in November 2007ç customer relationships trademarks and

non-compete agreements recorded in connection with the acquisition of the engineering business of

Wink Companies LLC in July 2009 renamed Wink Engineering LLC Wink in February 2010 and

tradenames customer relationships and technology recorded in connection with thp acquisition pf InfrastruX

in July 2010 The value of existing customer relationships from thelnServ Wink and InfrastruX acquisitions

was recorded at the estimated fair value determined by Using discountecicash flow method Such acquired

customer relationships have finite useful life and are therefore being amortized over the Stimated useful

life of the relationships Additionally the Company was able to assign values to the trademarks tradenames

non-compete agreements and technology purchased in the Wink and InfrastruX acquisitions The being
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

amortized over the useful life of the intangibles For further discussion of Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets see Note Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Revenue number of factors relating to the Companys business affect the recognition of contract

revenue The Company typically structures contracts as unit-price time and materials fixed-price or cost

plus fixed fee The Company believes that its operating results should be evaluated over time horizon

during which major contracts in progress are completed and change orders extra work variations in the

scope of work and cost recoveries and other claims are negotiated and realized Revenue from unit-price

and time and materials contracts is recognized as earned

Revenue for fixed-price and cost plus fixed fee contracts is recognized using the percentage-of-

completion method Under this method estimated contract income and resulting revenue is generally

accrued based on costs incurred to date as percentage of total estimated costs taking into consideration

physical completion Total estimated costs and thus contract income are impacted by changes in

productivity scheduling the unit cost of labor subcôntracts materials and equipment Additionally external

factors such as weather client needs client delays in providing permits and approvals labor availability

governmental regulation and politics may affect the progress of projects completion and thus the

estimated amount and timing of revenue recbgnition Certain fixed-price and cost plus fixed fee contracts

include or are amended to include incentive bonus amounts contingent on accomplishing stated

milestone Revenue attributable to incentive bonus amounts is recognized when the risk and uncertainty

surrounding the achievement of the milestone have been removed The Company does not recognize

income on fixed-price contract until the contract is approximately five to ten percent .cmplete depending

upon the nature of the contract If current estimate of total contract cost indicates loss on contract the

projected loss is recognized in full when determined

The Company considers unapproved change orders to be contract variations on which the Company
has customer approval for scope change but not for price associated with that scope change Costs

associated with unapproved change Orders are included in the estimated cost to complete the contracts and

are expensed as incurred The Company recognizes revenue equal to cost incurred on unapproved change
orders when realization of price approval is probable and the estimated amount is equal to or greater than

the cost related to the unapproved change order Revenue recognized on unapproved change orders is

included in Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Revenue recognized on unapproved change orders is subject to adjustment in subsequent periods to reflect

the changes in estimates or final agreements with customers

The Company considers claims to be amounts that the Company seeks or will seek to collect from

customers or others for customer-caused changes in contract specifications or design or other customer-

related causes of unanticipated additional contract costs on which there is no agreement with customers on

both scope and price changes Revenue from claims is recognized when agreement is reached with

customers as to the value of the claims which in some instances may not occur until after completion of

work under the contract Costs associated with claims are included in the estimated costs to complete the

contracts and are expensed when incurred

Depreciation The Company depreciates assets based on their eflmated useful lives at the time of

acquisition using the straight-line method Depreciation and amortization related to operating activities is

included in contract costs and depreciation and amortization related to general and administrative activities

is included in General and administrative GA expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Contract costs and GA expenses are included within Operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements

of Operations Further amortization of assets under capital lease obligations is included in depreciation

expense

Insurance The Company isjnsured for workers dompensation employers liability and general liability

claims subject to deductible of $750 per occurrence The Company is also insured for auto liability claims

subject to deductible of $500 per occurrence Additionally the Companys largest non-union employee
related health care benefit plan is subject to deductible of $250 per claimant per year
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Losses are accrued based upon the Companys estimates of the ultimate liability for claims incurred

including an estimate of claims incurred but not reported with assistance from third-party actuaries For

these claims to the extent the Company has insurance coverage above the deductible amounts

receivable is recorded and reflected in Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets These insurance

liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors including the severity of ap injury the

determination of the Companys liability in proportion to other parties and the number of incidents not

reported The accruals are based upon known facts and historical trends

Income Taxes The Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB standard for income taxes takes

into account the differences between financial statement treatment and tax treatment of certain transactions

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities areS measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect

of change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date

The Company or one of its subsidiaries files income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various

state and foreign jurisdictions With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to U.S income tax

examination by tax authorities for years before 2007 and no longer subject to Canadian income tax for years

before 2001 or in Oman for years before 2006

Other Current Liabilities Included within other current liabilities is $3154 and $6072 of current

deferred tax liabilities for the years ended December31 2010 and 2009

Warranty Costs In connection with the acquisition of InfrastruX the Company warrants labor for new

installations and construction and servicing of existing infrastructure The anticipated costs are not

considered significant and no reserve has been provided One of the InfrastruX subsidiary companies

maintains warranty program which specifically covers its cable remediation services. warranty reserve of

$2530 for cable remediation services is recorded in Other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet as of December 31 2010 Prior to the acquisition of InfrastruX the Company has historically recorded

an immaterial amount related to warranty reserve

Retirement Plans and Benefits The Company has voluntary defined contribution retirement plan

for U.S based employees that is qualified and is contributory on the part of the employees and voluntary

savings plan for certain international employees that is non-qualified and is contributory on the part of the

employees Additionally the Company is subject to collective bargaining agreements with various unions As

result the Company participates with other companies in the unions multi-employer pension and other

postretirement benefit plans These plans cover all employees who are members of such unions

Stock-Based Compensation Compensation cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions

is recognized in the financial statements measured based on the grant-date fair value of the instrument

issued and is recognized over the vesti.ng period The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation method

to determine the fair value of stock options granted as of the grant date Share-based compensation related

to restricted stock and restricted stock rights also described collectively as restricted stock units RSUs is

recorded based on the Companys stock price as of the grant date Awards granted are expensed ratably

over the vesting period of the award Expense on awards granted prior to March 12 2009 is accelerated

upon reaching retirement age This provision does not exist for awards granted on or after March 12 2009

Foreign Currency Translation All significant monetary asset and liability accounts denominated in

currencies other than United States dollars are translated into United States dollars at current exchange
rates Translation adjustments are accumulated in other comprehensive income loss Non-monetary assets

and liabilities in highly inflationary economies are translated into United States dollars at historical exchange
rates Revenue and expense accounts are converted at prevailing rates throughout the year Gains or losses

on foreign currency transactions and translation adjustments in highly inflationary economies are recorded in

incQme in the period in which they are incurred

Concentration of Credit Risk The Company has concentration of customers in the oil and gas

refinery petrochemical and power industries which expose the Company to concentration of credit risk

within single industry The Company seeks to obtain advance and progress payments for contract work
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

performed on major contracts Receivables are generally not collateralized The allowance for doubtful

accounts was $4499 and $1936 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Income Loss per Common Share Basic income loss per share is calculated by dividing net

income loss less any preferred dividend requirements by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the year Diluted income loss per share is calculated by including the weighted-

average number of all potentially dilutive common shares with the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding Shares of common stock underlying the Companys convertible notes are included in

the calculation of diluted income per share using the if-converted method Therefore the numerator for

diluted income per share is calculated excluding the after-tax interest expense associated with the

convertible notes as long as the associated interest per weighted average convertible share does not exceed

basic earnings per share

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company may use derivative financial instruments such as

forward contracts options or other financial instruments as hedges to mitigate non-U.S currency exchange
risk when the Company is unable to match non-U.S currency revenue with

expense
in the same currency

In conjunction with the 2010 Credit Agreement the Company entered into as of June 30 2010 the

Company is subject to hedging arrangements to fix or otherwise limit the interest cost of the term loans The

Company is subject to interest rate risk on its debt and investment of cash and cash equivalents arising in

the normal course of business as the Company does not engage in speculative trading strategies In

September 2010 the Company entered into two forward interest rate swap agreements in order to hedge

changes in the variable rate interest expense Also in September 2010 the Company entered into two

interest rate cap agreements in order to limit its exposure to an increase of the interest rate above percent

The Company had no derivative financial instruments as of December 31 2009

Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of

three months or less to be cash equivalents

Short-term Investments The Company may invest portion of its cash in short-term time deposits

some of which may have early withdrawal penalties All of such deposits have maturity dates that exceed

three months There was $0 and $16559 of short-term investments outstanding as of December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards Effective January 2009 the Company adopted the

accounting standard that establishes the principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and

measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabjlities assumed any

noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired The guidance also establishes disclosure

requirements that will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of business combinations

This standard requires that income tax benefits related to business combinations that are not recorded at the

date of acquisition are recorded as an income tax benefit in the statement of operations when subsequently

recognized Previously unrecognized income tax benefits related to business combinations were recorded

as an adjustment to the purchase price allocation when recognized Beginning in 2Q09 all acquisitions have

been recorded based on this standard

In January 2010 the FASB issued guidance which expanded the required disclosures about fair value

measurements In particular this guidance requires iseparate disclosure of the amounts of significant

transfers in and out of Level and Level fair value measurements along with the reasons for such

transfers ii information about purchases sales issuances and settlements to be presented separately in

the reconciliation for Level fair value measurements iii expanded fair valuemeasurement disclosures for

each class of assets and liabilities and iv disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to

measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements that fall in either Level or

Level This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009 except

for ii above which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 The adoption of this

standard did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated results of operations financial

position or cash flows However appropriate disclosures have been made See Note 17 Fair Value

Measurements for further discussion of the Companys derivative financial instruments
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

In June 2009 the FASB issued new accounting standard which provides amendments to previous

guidance on the consolidation of variable interest entities VIE This standard clarifies the characteristics

that identify VIE and changes how reporting entity identifies primary beneficiary that would consolidate

the VIE from quantitative risk and rewards calculation to qualitative approach based on which variable

interest holder has controlling financial interest and the ability to direct the most significant activities that

impact the VIEs economic performance This statement requires the primary beneficiary assessment to be

performed on continuous basis It also requires additional disclosures about an entitys involvement with

VIE restrictions on the VIEs assets and liabilities that are included in the reporting entitys consolidated

balance sheet significant risk exposures due to the entitys involvement with the VIE and how its

involvement with VIE impacts the reporting entitys consolidated financial statements The standard was

effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 The adoption of the standard did not have any

impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

On December 17 2010 the FASB issued an update to its standard on goodwill impairment which

does not change the prescribed method of calculating the carrying value of reporting unit in the

performance of step one of the goodwill impairment test and requires entities with zero or negative

carrying value to assess considering qualitative factors such as the impairment indicators listed in FASBs
standard on goodwill whether it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exists If an entity

concludes that it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exists the entity must perform step two of

the goodwill impairment test The update is effective fof impairment tests performed during entities fiscal

years and interim periods within those years that begin after December 15 2010 Based on managements

review the adoption of this update is not expected to have any impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

Acquisitions

InfrastruX

On July 2010 the Company completed the acquisition of 100 percent of the outstanding stock of

InfrastruX for purchase price of $485800 before final working capital and other transaction adjustments

The Company paid $372382 in cash portion of which was used to retire InfrastruX indebtedness and pay

InfrastruX transaction expenses and issued approximately 7.9 million shares of the Companys common
stock to the shareholders of InfrastruX Cash paid was comprised of $72382 in cash from operations and

$300000 from new term loan facility The acquisition was completed pursuant to an Agreement and Plan

of Merger the Merger dated March 11 2010

Under the agreement InfrastruX shareholders areS eligible to receive earnout payments of up to

$125000 if certain EBITDA targets are met Refer to Note 17 Fair Value Measurements for further

discussion of the contingent earnout

InfrastruX was privately-held firm based in Seattle Washington and provides design construction

maintenance engineering and other infrastructure services to the utility industry across the U.S market

This acquisition provides the Company the opportunity to strengthen its presence in the infrastructure

markets within the utility industry
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Acquisitions continued

553402Contingent consideration
_________________

Total consideration 485800

Represents 7923308 shares issued which have been valued at the closing price bf Company stock on July 2010 the

acquisition date

Estimated as of acquisition announcement based on probability estimate of InfrastruXs EBITDKachievements during

the earnout period See Note 17 Fair Value Measurements

This transaction has been accounted for using the acquisition method of ccounting which requires that

among other things assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recorded at their fair values as of the

acquisition date The excess of the consideration transferred over those fair values is recorded aS goodwill

The preliminary allocation of purchase price to acquired assets and liabilities is as follows

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Other long-term assets

Liabilities assumed

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities

Capital lease obligations

Vendor related debt

Deferred income taxes and other tax liabilities

Other long-term liabilities
____________

Net assets acquired

Includes post-acquisition purchase price adjustments

The Company has consolidated InfrastruX in its financial results as the Utility TD segment from the

date of the acquisition Our purchase price allocation has not been finalized due to the ongoing negotiation

to determine working capital and other closing adjustments These are expected to be finalized during the

first quarter of 2011 However under U.S GAAP the acquisition measurement period can last up to one

year

Property plant and equipment PPE
step-up adjustment of $25077 was recorded to present the PPE acquired at its estimated fair value

The weighted average useful life used to calculate depreciation of the step up related to PPE is

approximately seven years

Consideration

Total consideration transferred in acquiring InfrastruX is summarized as follows

Proceeds from newly issued term loan facility

Cash provided from operations

Total cash consideration

Issuance of WG common stock

300000

72.382

372382

58078w

Assets acquired

9278

124856

4501

39565

156160

1684091

1848221

21924

97985
4977
2761

95902
22090

485.800
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Acquisitions continued

Intangible assets

The following table summarizes the fair value estimates recorded for the identifiable intangible assets

and their estimated useful lives

Estimated Fair Value Estimated Useful Life

Trade name 12779 10 years

Customer relationships 150130 15 years

Technology 5.500 10 years

Total identifiable intangible assets $168.409

The amortizable intangible assets have useful lives ranging between ten years and fifteen years and

weighted average useful life of 14.2 years Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair

value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired Goodwill associated with this transaction

is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes The goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition

is included in the Utility TD segment significant portion of the customer relationship intangible recorded

in this transaction relates to sinle customer

Deferred taxes

The Company provided deferred taxes and other tax liabilities as part of the acquisition accounting

related to the estimated fair market value adjustments for acquired intangible assets and PPE An

adjustment of $95902 was recorded to present the deferred taxes and other tax liabilities at fair value

Pro Forma Impact of the Acquisition

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma results present consolidated information as if the

acquisition had been completed as of January 2010 and January 2009 The pro forma results include

the amortization associated with an estimate of the acquired intangible assets ii interest expense
associated with debt used to fund portion of the acquisition and reduced interest income associated with

cash used to fund portion of the acquisition iii the impact of certain fair value adjustments such as

additional depreciation expense for adjustments to property plant and equipment and reduction to interest

expense for adjustments to debt and iv costs directly related to acquiring InfrastruX The pro forma results

do not include any potential synergies cost savings or other expected benefits of the acquisition

Accordingly the pro forma results should not be considered indicative of the results that would have

occurred if the acquisition and related borrowings had been consummated as of January 2009 or

January 2010 nor are they indicative of future results

Year Ended

December 31

2010 2009

Revenues 1500729 1858549
Net income loss attributable to

ComDanv shareholders 53089 20984
Basic net income loss per share 1.15 0.45
Diluted net income loss per share 1.15 0.45

Wink Companies LW
Effective July 2009 the Company acquired the engineering business of Wink privately-held firm

based in Baton Rouge Louisiana Wink serves primarily the U.S market from its regional offices in

Louisiana and Mississippi providing multi-disciplinary engineering services to clienth in the petroleum

refining chemicals and petrochemicals and oil and gas industries This acquisition provides the Company
the opportunity to offer fully integrated engineering procurement and construction EPC services to the

downstream hydrocarbon industries The total purchase price of $17431 was comprised of $6075 in cash

paid $10236 in debt assumed and $1120 related to the assumption of an unfavorable lease relative to

market value In addition the Company incurred transaction-related costs of approximately $600
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The Company has consolidated Wink in its financial results as part of its Downstream Oil Gas

segment from the date of acquisition The allocation of purchase price to acquired assets and liabilities is as

follows

Cash acquired 2356

Receivables net 5876

Other current assets acquired 7513

Property and equipment 6441

Other long-term assets 80

Amortizable intangible assets

Customer relationships 1101

Trademark Tradename 1300

Non-compete agreement 1100

Goodwill 38991

Libilities assumed 12235
Total purchase price 17431

Includes an approximate $300 post-acquisition reclassification from customer relationships to goodwill

The dmortizablŒ ihtangible assets have useful lives ranging between five years and ten years and

weighted average useful life of 8.3 years Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair

value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and is deductible for ta purposes The

goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is included in the Downstream Oil Gas segment

The results and operations for Wink have bQpn included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

since the completion of the acquisition on July 2009 This acquisition does not have material impact on

the Companys results of operations Accordingly pro forma disclosures have not been presented

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable net as of December 31 2010 and 2009 is comprised of the following

December31

20W 2009

Trade 260091 105812

Unbilled revenue 47652 18314

Contract retention 14905 38357

Other receivables 1725 1867

Total accounts receivable 324373 164350

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 4499 1936

Total accounts receivable net 319874 162414

The Company expects all accounts receivable to be collected within one year The provision for bad

debts included in General and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations was

$2887 $664 and $2403 for the years ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Contracts in Progress

Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed on uncompleted contracts arise when recorded

revenues for contract- exceed the amounts billed under the terms of-the contracts Contract billings in

excess of cost and recognized income arise when billed amounts exceed revepues recorded Amounts are

billable to customers upon various measures of performance including achievement of certain milestones

completion of specified units or completion of the contract Also included in contract cost and recognized

income not yet billed on uncompleted contracts are amounts the Company seeks to collect from customers
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Contracts in Progress continued

for change orders approved ip scope but not for price associated with that scope change unapproved

change orders Revenue for these amounts is recorded equal to the lesser of the expected revenue or cost

incurred when realization of price approval is probable Estimating revenues from unapproved change orders

involve the use of estimates and it is reasonably possible that revisions to the estimated recoverable

amounts of recorded unapproved change orders may be made in the near-term If the Company does not

successfully resolve these matters reduction in revenues may be required to amounts that have been

previously recorded

Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed and related amounts billed as of December 31 2010

and 2009 were as follows

December 31

2010 2009

896987 1113712
159628 161398

1056615

1038026 _______________

35059 45009

Contract billings in excess of cost and recognized income 16470 _________________

18589 33673

Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed includes $3216 and 551 at December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively on completed contracts

Property Plant arid Equipment

Property plant and equipment which are used to secure debt or are subject to lien at cost as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Construction equipment

Furniture and equipment

Land and buildings

Transportation equipment

Leasehold improvements

Aircraft

Marine equipment

Total property plant and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Total property plant and equipment net 229179

140157

44119

36278

32264

16221

7410
120

276569

143690
132879

Amounts above include $3698 and $4401 of construction in progress as of December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively Depreciation expense included in operating expense for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $46441 $34345 and $34483 respectively

In 2010 the Company began process of analyzing all under-utilized property and equipment and

adopted plan to dispose of such assets Pursuant to that plan in December 2010 the Company completed

the sale of equipment having net book value of $12226 receiving proceeds of $15103 The resulting gain

on sale of assets has been recorded within Other net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations In

addition the Company has committed to plan of disposal of additional properties and equipment which are

Assets Held For Sale

Cost incurred on contracts in progress

Recognized income

Progress billings and advance payments

Contract cost and recognized income not yet billed

18589

1275110

1241437
33673

11336

December 31
2010 2009

126896

50634

39401

151196

17748

7410
120

393405

164226
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Assets Held For Sale continued

expected to be sold in 2011 These assets have been separately presented in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets in the caption Assets held for sale and are no longer depreciated In connection with this plan of

disposal the Company determined that the carrying value of one facility within the Upstream Oil Gas

segment exceeded its fair ialue Consequently the Company recorded an impairment loss of $931 which

represents the excess of the carrying value over fair values less cost to sell The impairment loss is

recorded within Other net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Companys goodwill by segment as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was as follows

Impairment

Upstream Oil Gas _______________
Reserves _______________

Balance as of January 2009

Goodwill from acquisitions

Purchase price adjustments

Impairment losses

Translation adjustments and other ____________ __________________ ________________

Balance as of December 31 2009

Goodwill from acquisitions

Purchase price adjustments

Impairment losses

Translation adjustments and other
__________________ __________________ __________________

Balance as of December 31 2010 _________________ _________________ _________________

Downstream Oil Gas

Balance as of January 2009

Goodwill from acquisitions

Purchase price adjustments

Impairment losses

Translation adjustments and other

Balance as of December 31 2009

Goodwill from acquisitions

Purchase price adjustments

Impairment losses

Translation adjustments and other

Balance as of December 31 2010

Utility TD
Balance as of July 2010

Purchase price adjustments

Impairment losses

Translation adjustments and other

Balance as of December 31 2010 184822 184822

Goodwill and other purchased intangible assets are included in the identifiable assets of the segment to

which they have been assigned According to accounting standards for goodwill goodwill and other

intangibles are required to be evaluated whenever indicators of impairment exist and at least annually

During the third quarter of 2010 in connection with the completion of the Companys preliminary forecasts

for 2011 it became evident that goodwill impairment associated with the Downstream Oil Gas segment

was probable Due to time restrictions with the filing its third quarter Form 10-Q the Company was unable to

Goodwill

11142

1496

12638

Total Net

11142

1496

12638

539

13177

Impairment

Goodwill Reserves

131518 62295
3600

539

13177

Total Net

69223

3600

299

15

73137

299

15

135432 62295

617

60000
617

60000

136049 122295 13754

Goodwill

184376

446

Impairment

Reserves Total Net

184376

446
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

fully complete its two step impairment test According to the accounting standards for goodwill if the second

step of the goodwill impairment test is not complete before the financial statements are issued or are

available to be issued and goodwill impairment loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated the best

estimate of that loss shall be recognized Using preliminary discounted cash flow analysis supported by

comparative market multiples to determine the fair value of the segment versus its carrying value an

estimated range of likely impairment was determined and an impairment charge of $12000 was recorded

during the third quarter of 2010

During the fourth quarter of 2010 in connection with the completion of its required annual goodwill

impairment testing the Company completed its step two impairment testing which resulted in an additional

$48000 charge to the Downstream Oil Gas segment bringing the total to $60000 for 2010

Under GAAP Company has up to one year subsequent to closing an acquisition to perform its annual

testing for goodwill impairment unless indicators of an impairment exist The Company closed on the

acquisition of InfrastruX or Utility TD during the third quarter of 2010 No indicators of impairment for the

Utility TD segment were identified by management during the fourth quarter of 2010 Accordingly the

Company has excluded them from its 2010 annual assessment of goodwill The Company will perform

impairment testing for this segment during the second quarter of 2011 or whenever indicators of impairment

are identified

The Companys other intangible assets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Gross carrying amount

Adçlitions

Purchase price adjustments

Accumulated amortization

Other

Net carrying amount

Weighted average remaining

amortization period

Customer Trademarkl Non-compete

Relationships Tradename Agreements Technology

41600 1300 1100

152890 12700 5200

2760 300

15517 330 275830
79

176213 13249 770 5225

Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which range

from to 15 years

Amortization expense related to intangible assets other than goodwill included in operating expense for

the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was $9724 and $6515 respectively

December 31 2009

Customer Non-compete

Relationships Backlog Trademark Agreements

osscarryingamount 41900 10500 1300 1100

Purchase price adjustments 299
Accumulated amortization 7054 10500 65 110

Net carrying amount
34547 1235 990

Total

54800

299
17729
36772

December 31 2010

Total

44000

170790

2460
16952

79

195457

13.3 yrŒ 9.4yrs 3.Syrs 9.Syrs
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

Estimated amortization expense for each of the subsequent five years and thereafter is as follows

Fiscal year

2011 15636

2012 15636

2013 15636

2014 15526

2015 15416

Thereafter 117607

Total amortization 195457

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

December 31

2010 2009

Trade accounts payable 105023 47950

Payroll and payroll liabilities 41442 23037

Provision for loss on contracts 12376 1062

Self insurance accrual 27524

Other accrued liabilities 27697 9421

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities 214062 81470

Government Obligations

Government obligations represent amounts due to government entities specifically the United States

Department of Justice DOJ and the SEC in final settlement of the investigations involving violations of

the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act the FCPA and violations of the Securities Act of 1933 the Securities

Act and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act These investigations stem primarily

from the Companys former operations in Bolivia Ecuador and Nigeria In May 2008 the Company reached

final agreements with the DOJ and the SEC to settle their investigations As previously disclosed the

agreements provided for an aggregate payment of $32300 including $22000 in fines to the DOJ related to

the FCPA violations consisting of $10000 paid on signing and $4000 annually for three year thereafter

with no interest due on unpaid amounts and $10300 to the SEC consisting of $8900 of profit disgorgement

and $1400 of pre-judgment interest payable in four equal installments of $2575 with the first installment

paid on signing and annually for three years thereafter Post-judgment intereSt is payable on the outstanding

$7725

During the twelve months ended December 31 2008 $12575 of the aggregate obligation was paid

which consisted of the initial $10000 payment to the DOJ and the first installment of $2575 to the SEC
inclusive of all pre-judgment interest During the twelve months ended December 31 2009 and 2010 $6575

of the aggregate obligation was paid each year which consisted of the $4000 annual installment to the DOJ
and the $2575 annual installment to the SEC inclusive of all pre-judgment interest

The remaining aggregate obligation of $6575 has been classified on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

as Current portion of government obligations This amount is based on payment terms that provide for one

remaining installment of $2575 and $4000 to the SEC and DOJ respectively in 2011
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10 Long-term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31 2010 and 2009 was as follows

December 31

2010 2009

Term loan net of unamortized discount of $16126 283124

2.75% convertible senior notes net 58675 56071

6.5% senior convertible notes net 32050 31450

Capital lease obligations 11112 16516

Other obligations 2015

Total long-term debt 386976 104037

Less current portion 76008 37274

Long-term debt net 310968 66763

2010 Credit Facility

The Company entered into new credit agreement dated June 30 2010 the 2010 Credit Agreement
among Willbros United States Holdings Inc WUSH subsidiary of the Company formerly known as

Willbros USA Inc as borrower the Company and certain of its subsidiaries as Guarantors the lenders

from time to time party thereto the Lenders Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank Credit

Agricole as Administrative Agent Collateral Agent Issuing Bank Revolving Credit Facility Sole Lead

Arranger Sole Bookrunner and participating Lender UBS Securities LLC UBS as Syndication Agent

Natixis The Bank of Nova Scotia and Capital One N.A as Co-Documentation Agents and Credit Agricole

and UBS as Term Loan Facility Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners The new 2010 Credit

Agreement consists of four year $300000 term loan facility Term Loan maturing in July 2014 and

three year revolving credit facility of $175000 maturing in July 2013 the 2010 Credit Facility and replaced

the Companys existing three-year $150000 senior secured credit facility which was scheduled to expire in

November 2010 The proceeds from the Term Loan were used to pay part of the cash portion of the merger

consideration payable in connection with the Companys acquisition of InfrastruX

The initial aggregate amount of commitments for the revolving credit facility totaled $175000 including

an accordion feature enabling the Company to increase the size of the facility by an incremental $75000 if it

is in compliance with certain terms of the 2010 Credit Facility The revolving credit facility is available for

letters of credit and for revolving loans which may be used for working capital and general corporate

purposes During an interim period ending on either September 30 2010 if the Company is in compliance

with end of 2010 leverage ratio requirements or December 31 2010 the Interim Period the revolving

credit facility has sublimit of $31500 for revolving loans with the proceeds thereof to be used only to pay

the purchase price on the Companys 6.5% Senior Convertible Notes the 6.5% Notes due 2012 as

result of any holder thereof exercising its right to require the Company to purchase such notes Thereafter

the revolving credit facility will have sublimit of $150000 for revolving loans

The Company is able to utilize 100 percent of the revolving credit facility to obtafri letters of credit

including during the Interim Period As of December 31 2010 the Company did not have any outstanding

borrowings under the revolving credit facility

Interest payable under the 2010 Credit Agreement is determined by the loan type Base rate loans

require annual interest payments equal to the adjusted base rate plus the applicable margin for base rate

loans The adjusted base rate is equal to the highest of the Prime Rate in effect for such day the sum
of the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect for such day plus 1/2 of 1.0% per annum cthe sum of the

Prime London Inter-Bank Offered Rate LIBOR or Eurocurrency Rate in effect for such day with maturity

of one month pIus 1.0% per annum and with respect to Term Loans only is 3.0% per annum The

applicable margin for base rate loans is 6.50% per annum for Term Loans and 3.25% per annum for

revolving advances during the Interim Period or following the Interim Period fixed margin based on the

Companys leverage ratio Eurocurrency rate loans require annual interest payments equal to the

Eurocurrency Rate plus the applicable margin for Eurocurrency rate loans The Eurocurrency Rate is equal
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10 Long-term Debt continued

to the LIBOR rate in effect for such day subject to 2.0% floor for Term Loans only The applicable margin

for Eurocurrency rate loans is 7.50% per annum for Term Loans and 4.25% per annum for revolving

advances during the Interim Period or following the Interim Period fixed margin based on the Companys

leverage ratio As of December 31 2010 the interest rate on the Term Loan currently Eurocurrency rate

loan was 9.5% Interest payments on the Eurocurrency rate loans are payable in arrears on the last day of

such interest period and in the case of interest periods of greater than three months on each business day

which occurs at three month intervals from the first day of such interest period Interest payments on base

rate loans are payable quarterly in arrears on the last business day of each calendar quarter Additionally

the Company is required under the terms of the 2010 Credit Agreement to maintain in effect one or more

hedging arrangements to fix or otherwise limit the interest cost with respect to at least 50 percent of the

aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Term Loan

The Term Loan was issued at discount such that th funded portion was equal to 94 percent of the

principal amount of the Term Loan Accordingly the Company recognized an $18000 discount on the Term

Loan that is being amortized over the four-year term of the Term Loan

The 2010 Credit Facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of WUSH the Company and the

other Guarantors The 2010 Credit Agreement prohibits the Company from paying cash dividends on its

common stock

The 2010 Credit Agreement includes customary affirmative and negative covenants including

maintenance of minimum interest coverage ratio

maintenance of maximum total leverage ratio

maintenance of minimum tangible net worth amount

maintenance of minimum consolidated EBITDA and minimum cash balance during the Interim

Period

limitations on capital expenditures during the Interim Period $60000 and the greater of $70000 or

25% of EBITDA thereafter

limitations on indebtedness

limitations on liens

limitations on certain asset sales and dispositions and

limitations on certain acquisitions and asset purchases if certain liquidity levels are not maintained

default under the 2010 Credit Agreement may be triggered by events such as failure to comply with

financial covenants or other covenants under the 2010 Credit Agreement failure to make payments when

due under the 2010 Credit Agreement failure to make payments when due in respect of or failure to

perform obligations relating to debt obligations in excess of $15000 change of control of the Company
and certain insolvency proceedings default under the 2010 Credit Agreement would permit Credit Agricole

and the Lenders to terminate their commitment to make cash advances or issue letters of credit require the

immediate repayment of any outstanding cash advances with interest and requfre the cash collateralization

of outstanding letter of credit obligations As of December 31 2010 the Company was in compliance with all

covenants under this agreement

Incurred unamortized debt issue costs associated with the creation of the 2010 Credit Agreement are

$16213 These debt issue costs are included in Other assets atDebember 31 2010 These costs will be

amortized to interest expense over the three and four-year terms of the revolving credit facility and Term

Loan respectively

On March 2011 the Company amended its 2010 Credit Agreement the Amendment The

Amendment allows the Company to make certain dispositions of equipment real estate and business units

In most cases proceeds from these dispositions would be required to pay down the existing Term Loan

made pursuant-to the 2010 Credit Agreement Financial covenants and associated definitions such as

Consolidated EBITDA were also amended to permit the Company to carry out its business plan and to
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clarify the treatment of certain items The Company agreed to limit its revolver borrowings under the 2010

Credit Agreement to $25000 with the exceptionof proceeds from revolving borrowings used to make any

payments in respect of the Convertible Senior Notes until the Companys total leverage ratio is 3.0 to 1.0 or

less However the Amendment does not change the limit on obtaining letters of credit The Amendment

also modifies the definition of Excess Cash Flow to include proceeds from the TransCanada Pipeline

Arbitration see Note 16 Contingencies Commitments and Other Circumstances Facility Construction

Project Termination which would require the Company to use all ora portion of such proceeds to further

pay down the Term Loan in the following fiscal year of receipt For prepayments made with Net Debt

Proceeds or Equity Issuance Proceeds as those terms are defined in the 2010 Credit Agreement the

Amendment requires prepayment premium of 4% of the principal amount of the Term Loans prepaid

before December 31 2011 and 1% of the principal amount of the Term Loans prepaid on and after

December 31 201.1 but before December 31 2012 Premiums for prepayments made with proceeds other

than Net Debt Proceeds or Equity Issuance Proceeds remain the same as set forth under the 2010 Credit

Agreement

In connection with the Amendment the Company incurred fees of $4743 and $376 related to lender

fees and third party legal costs respectively in the first quarter of 2011 Based on the FASBs accounting

standard on debt modifications the Company has cpitalized lender fees and will amortize them over the

three and four-year terms of the revolving credit facility and Term Loan respectively Based on the same

standard the third party legal fees were expensed as incurred during the first quarter of 2011

2007 Credit Facility

On November 20 2007 the Company entered into credit agreement the Credit Agreement among
WUSH as borrower the Company and certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors collectively the Loan

Parties and group of lenders the Lenders led .by Calyon New York Branch Calyon The Credit

Agreement provided for three-year senior secured $150000 revolving credit facility maturing in November

2010 the 2007 Credit Facility The Company was able to utilize 100 percent of the 2007 Credit Facility to

obtain performance letters of credit and 33.3 percent or $50000 of the facility for cash advances for

general corporate purposes and financial letters of credit The 2007 Credit Facility was secured by

substantially all of the assets of the Company including those of the Loan Parties as well as pledge of 100

percent of the equity interests of WUSH and each of the Companys other material U.S subsidiaries and

65.0 percept of the equity interests of Willbros Global Holdings Inc On July 12010 the 2007 Credit Facility

was terminated in connection with the acquisition of InfrastruX and replaced with the new 2010 Credit

Agreement

6.5% Senior Convertible Notes

In December 2005 the Company completed private placement of $65000 aggregate principal amount

of its 6.5% Notes pursuant to purchase agreement the Purchase Agreemeni During the first quarter of

2006 the initial purchasers of the 6.5% Notes exercised their options to purchase an additional $19500

aggregate principal amount of the 6.5% Notes The primary offering and the purchase option of the 6.5%

Notes totaled $84500

The 6.5% Notes are governed by an indenture by and among the Company as issuer WUSH as

guarantor and Bank of Texas N.A as successor to the original trustee as Trustee the Indenture and

were issued under the Purchase Agreement by and among the Company and the initial purchasers of the

6.5% Notes the Purchasers in transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities

Act The 6.5% Notes are convertible into shares of the Companys common stock at conversion rate of

56.9606 shares of common stock per $1000 principal amount of notes representing conversion price of

approximately $17.56 per share If all notes had been converted to common stock at December 31 2010

1825587 shares would have been issuable based on.the principal amount of the 6.5% Notes which remain

outstanding subject to adjustment in certain circumstances The 6.5% Notesare general senior unsecured

obligations Interest is due semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 and began on June 15 2006

The 6.5% Notes mature on December 15 2012 unless the notes are repurchased or converted earlier

The Company does not have the right to redeem the 6.5% Notes prior to maturity Upon maturity the

principal amount plus the accrued interest through the day prior to the maturity date is payable only in cash

The holders of the 6.5% Notes had the right to require the Company to purchase the 6.5% Notes for cash
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including unpaid interest on December 15 2010 None of the 6.5% Notes were surrendered for purchase

pursuant to the put option Accordingly the 6.5% Notes remain outstanding as of December 31 2010 and

continue to be subject to the terms and conditions of the Indenture governing the 6.5% Notes Following the

expiration of this put option an aggregate principal amount of $32050 remains outstanding net of $0

discount and has been classified as long-term and included within Long-term debt on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet at December 31 2010 The holders of the 6.5% Notes also have the right to require the

Company to purchase the 6.5% Ndtes for cash upon the occurrence of fundamental change as defined in

the Indenture In addition to the amounts described above the Comany will be required to pay make-
whole premium to the holds of the 6.5% Notes who elect to convert their notes into the Companys
common stock in connection with fundamental change The make-whole premium is payable in additional

shares of common stock and is calculated based on formula with the premium ranging from 0.0 percent to

28.0 percent depending on when the fundamental change occurs and the price of the Companys stock at

the time the fundamentatchange occurs

Upon conversion of the 6.5% Notes the Company has the right to deliver in lieu of shares of its

common stock cash or combination of cash and shares of its common stock Unier the Indenture the

Company is fequired to notify holders of the 6.5% Notes of its method for settling the principal amount of the

6.5% Ndtes upon conversion This notification once provided is irrevocable add legally binding upon the

Company with regard to any conversion of the 6.5% Notes On March 21 2006 the Company notified

holders of the 6.5% Notes of its election to satisfy its conversion obligation with respect to the principal

amount of any 6.5% Notes surrendered for conversion by paying the holders of such surrendered 6.5%

Notes 100 percent of the principal conversion obligation in the form of common stock of the Company Until

the 6.5% Notes are surrendered for conversion the Company will not be required to notify holders of its

method-br settling the excess amount of the conversion obligation relating to the amount of the conversion

value above the principal amount if any In the event of default of $10000 or more on any credit

agreement including the 2010 Credit Facility and the 2.75% Notes corresponding event of default would

result under the 6.5% Notes

covenant in the indenture for the 6.5% Notes prohibits the Company from incurring any additional

indebtedness if its consolidated leverage ratio exceeds 4.00 to 1.00 As of December 31 2010 this

covenant would not have precluded the Company from borrowing under the 2010 Credit Facility

On March 10 2010 the Company entered into Consent Agreements the Consent Agreements with

Highbridge International LLC Whitebox Combined Partners LP Whitebox Convertible Arbitrage Partners

LP lAM Mini-Fund 14 Limited HFR Combined Master Trust and Wolverine Convertible Arbitrage Trading

Limited the Consenting Holders who collectively held majority of the $32050 in aggregate principal

amount outstanding of the 6.5% Notes Pursuant to the Consent Agreements the Consenting Holders

consented to modifications and arribndments to the Indenture substantially in the form and substance set

forth in -a third supplemental indenture the Third Supplemental Indenture to the indenture for the 6.5%

Notes The Third Supplemental Indenture initially provided among other things for an amendment to

Section 6.13 of the Indenture so that certain restrictions on the Companys ability to incur indebtedness

would not be applicable to the borrowing by the Company of an amount not to exceed $300000 under new

credit facility to be entered into in connection with the acquisition of InfrastruX

On May 10 2010 the Company entered into an Amendment to Consent Agreement the Amendment
with the Consenting Holders Pursuant to the Amendment the Consenting Holders consented to

modifications to the Third Supplemental Indenture to clarify that certain restrictionson the Companys ability

to incur indebtedness would not be applicable to certain borrowings by the Company to acquire InfrastruX

egardless of whether the borrowing consisted of term loan under new credit agreement new series of

notes or bonds or combination thereof

The Company is required to separately account for the debt and equity components of the 6.5% Notes in

manner that reflects its nonconvertible debt borrowing rate at the time of issuanôe The-difference between

the fair value and the principal amOunt was recorded as debt discount and as component of equity
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The debt and equity components recognized for the Companys 6.5% Notes were as follows

December 31

2010 2009

Principal amount of 6.5% Notes 32050 32O50

Unamortized discount 600
32050 31450

Net carrying amount

Additional paid-in capital

3131 3131

The amount of interest expense recognized and effective interest rate related to this debt for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2909 2008

Contractual coupon Interest 2083 2083 2083

Amortization of discount 600 552 507

Interest expense 2683 2635 2590

Effective interest rate 8.46% 8.46% 8.46%

2.75% Convertible Senior Notes

In 2004 the Company completed primary offering of $60000 of 2.75% Convertible Senior Notes the

2.75% Notes Also in 2004 the initial purchasers of the 2.75% Notes exercised their option to purchase

an additional $10000 aggregate princial amount of the 2.75% Notes The primary offering and purchase

option of the 2.75% Notes totaled $70000 The 2.75% Notes are general senior unsecured obligations

Interest is paid semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 and began on September 15 2004 The

2.75% Notes mature on March 15 2024 unless the notes are repurchased redeemed or converted earlier

Upon maturity the principal amount plus the accrued interest through the day prior to the maturity date is

payable only in cash The indenture for the 2.75% Notes originally provided that the Company could redeem

the 2.75% Notes for cash on or after March 15 2011 at 100 percent of the principal amount of the notes

plus accrued interest The holders of the 2.75% Notes have the right to require the Company to purchase the

2.75% Notes including unpaid interest on March 15 2011 2014 and 2019 or upon change of control

related event On March 15 2014 and 2019 the Company has the option of providing its common stock in

lieu of cash or combination of common stock md cash to fund purchases Based on the uncertainty

surrounding the future economic conditions the Company is unable to estimate the probability of future

repurchases of the 2.75% Notes on March 15 2011 Accordingly all $58675 net of $682 discount has

been classified as short-term and included within Notes payable and current portion of other long-term debt

on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 2010

Accrued interest on the notes on all three put dates can only be paid in cash Upon the occurrence of

fundamental change as defined by the Indenture the holders of the 2.75% Notes have the right to require

the Company to purchase the 2.75% Notes for cash in addition to make-whole premium that is payable

in cash or in additional shares of common stock The holders of the 2.75% Notes may under certain

circumstances convert the notes intq shares of theCpmpanys cpmmon stock at an initial conversion ratio of

51.3611 shares of commOn stock per $1000.00 principal .amount of notes representing conversion price of

approximately $19.47 per share and resultipg in 3048642 shares atDecember 31 2010 based on the

principal amount of the 2.75% Notes which remain outstanding subject to adjustment in certain

circumstances The notes will be convertible only upon the occurrence of certain specified events including

but not limited to if at certain times the closing sale price of the Companys common stock exceeds

120.0 percent of the then current conversion price or $23.36 per share based on the initial conversion price

In the event of default under ahy Company credit agreement other than the indenture covering the 2.75%

Notes in whichihe Company fails to pay principal or interest on indebtedness with an aggregate
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principal balance of $10000 or more or in which indebtedness with principal balance of $10000 or

more is accelerated an event of default would result under the 2.75% Notes

An indenture amendment extended the initial date on or after which the 2.75% Notes may be redeemed

by the Company to March 15 2013 from March 15 2011 for cash at 100 percent of the principal amount of

the notes plus accrued interest In addition new provision was added to the indenture which requires the

Company in the event of fundamental change which is change of control event in which 10.0 percent

or more of the consideration in the transaction consists of cash to make coupon make-whole payment

equal to the present value discounted at the U.S treasury rate of the lesser of two years of scheduled

payments of interest on the 2.75% Notes or all scheduled interest on the 2.75% Notes from the date of

the transaction through March 15 2013

On November 29 2007 holder exercised its right to Qonvert converting $1832 in ggregate principal

amount of the 2.75% Notes into 102720 shares of the Companys common stock In connection with the

conversion the Company expensed proportionate amount of its debt issue costs resulting in additional

period interest expense of $47 On March 20 2008 holder exercised its right to convert converting $7980

in aggregate principal amount of the 2.75% Notes into 443913 shares of the Companys common stock In

connection with the conversion the Company expensed proportionate amount of its debt issuance costs

resulting in additional period interest expense of $187

The Company is required to separately account for the debt and equity components of the 2.75% Notes

in manner that reflects its nonconvertible debt borrowing rate at the time of issuance The difference

between the fair value and the principal amount was recorded as debt discount and as component of

equity

The debt and equity components recognized for the Companys 2.75% Notes were as follows

December 31

At December 31 2010 the unamortized discount had remaining recognition period of approximately

months

The amount of interest expense recognized and effective interest rate related to this debt for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Year nded Decem ber 31

2010 2009 2008

Contractual coupon interest 1632 1632 1672

Amortization of discount 2604 2419 2298

Interest expense 4236 4051 3970

Effective interest rate 7.40% 7.40% 7.40%

Based on information received from BOKF NA dbÆ Bank of Texas as paying agent for the 2.75%

Notes the Company announced on March 14 2011 that all of the 2.75% Notes with an aggregate principal

amount of $59357 wete validly surrendered and not withdrawn pursuant to the option of the holders of the

2.75% Notes to require the Company to purchase on March 15 2011 all or portion of such holders 2.75%

Ntes

The Company will draw down under its revoJving qredit facility to fund the purchase of the 2.75% Notes

All remaining unamortized discount will be expeqsd during the first quarter of 2011

Principal amount of 2.75% Notes

Unamortized discount

Net carrying amount

Additional paid-in capital

2010

59357

682
58675

14235

2009

59357

3286
56071

14235
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Capital Leases

The Company has entered into multiple capital lease agreements to acquire various construction

equipment which have weighted average of interest paid of 5.9 percent Assets held under capital leases

at December 31 2010 and 2009 are summarized below

December 31

2010 2009

Construction equipment 13706 23475

Transportation equipment 9665 1895

Furniture and equipment 1885 1911

Total assets held under capital lease 25256 27281
Less accumulated depreciation 10759 9800

Net assets under capital lease 14497 17481

The following are the minimum lease payments for assets financed under capital lease arrangements as

of December31 2010

Fiscal year

2011 6212

2012 4310

2013 1293

2014 49

Thereafter __________
Total minimum lease payments under capital lease obligations 11864

Less future interest expense 752
Net minimum lease payments under capital leases obligations 11112

Less current portion of net minimum lease payments 5371

Long-term net minimum lease payments 5741

Maturities

The maturities of long-term debt obligations as of December 31 2010 are as follows

Fiscal year

2011 74357

2012 47050

2013 15000

2014 254250

390657

Other Obligations

The Company has unsecured credit facilities with banks in certain countries outside the United States

Borrowings in the form of short-term notes and overdrafts are made at competitive local interest rates

Generally each line is available only for borrowings related to operations in specific country Credit

available under these facilities is approximately $6541 at December 31 2010 There were no outstanding

borrowings made under these facilities at December 31 2010 or 2009
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11 Retirement Benefits

The Company has defined contribution plans that are funded by participating employee contributions

and the Company The Company matches employee contributions up to maximum of four percent of

salary in the form of cash The Cpmpany match was suspended in May 2009 through December 2009 for all

U.S based plans Company contributions for the plans were $2949 $1435 and $3069 in 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

After the Companys acquisition of InfrastruX the Company is subject to collective bargaining

agreements with various unions As result the Company participates with other companies in the unions

multi-employer pension and other postretirement benefit plans These plans cover all employees who are

members of such unions The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended by the Multi-

Employer Pension Plan Amendments Act of 1980 imposes certain liabilities upon employers who are

contributors to multi-employer plan in the event of the employers withdrawal from or upon termination of

such plan The Company has no intention to withdraw from these plans The plans do not maintain

information on the net assets and actuarial present value of the plans unfunded vested benefits allocable to

the Company As such the amount if any for which the Company may be contingently liable is not

ascertainable at this time Contributions to all union multi-employer pension and other postretirement plans

by the Company were $26972 $6367 and $7333 as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

12 Income Taxes

The Company is domiciled in the United States and operates primarily in the U.S Canada and Oman
These countries have different tax regimes and tax rates which affect the consolidated income tax provision

of the Company and its effective tax rate Moreover losses from one country generally cannot be used to

offset taxable income from another country and some expenses incurred in certain tax jurisdictions receive

no tax benefit thereby affecting the effective tax rate

Income loss before income taxes consists of

Year Ended December 31

___________ 10511 31264

31119 68999

__________
1868 1666

____________
32987 70665

Current provision

Other countries

United States

Federal

State
______________ _____________ ______________

Deferred tax expense behefit

Other countries

United States
______________ ______________ _______________

Total provision benefit for income taxe
_______________

Other countries

2010 2009 2008

5243 20608

United States 62671

67914
Oman noncontrolling interest 1207

.$ 66707

Provision for income taxes by country consist of

37735

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

4725 7321 1214

12152 2648

2112 921

5.315 10890

32188

6159

39561

7419
22648

2705 8808

1607 22577

30067 1098 13769

35382 9792 25792

The total provision for income taxes excludes net adjustments related to unrecognized tax benefits of $768 $1 058 and

$150 for 20102009 and 2008 respectively as result of the adoption of the FASBs standard regarding the recognition

of tax benefits
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The provision for income taxes has been determined based upon the tax laws and rates in the countries

in which operations are conducted and income is earned The Company and its subsidiaries operating in the

United States are subject to federal income tax rates up to 35 percent and varying state income tax rates

and methods of computing tax liabilities The Companys principal international operations are in Canada

and Oman The Companys subsidiaries in Canada and Oman are subjecf to corporate income tax rates of

28 percent and 12 percent respectively The Company did not have any non-taxable foreign earnings from

tax holidays for taxable years 2008 through 2010

As required by the FASBs standard on income
taxes-special areas the Company has analyzed its

operations in the U.S Canada and Oman The Companys current operating strategy is to reinvest any

earnings of its operations internationally rather than tp distribute dividends to the U.S parent or its U.S

affiliates No dividends were paid frQm foreign operations to Willbros Group Inc or its domestic subsidiaries

during2010

However if the Company does repatriate cash from foreign operations to the United States then current

earnings and profits of approximately $52153 could be construed as taxable dividend subject to federal

income tax rates up to 35 percent This would be current tax expense

In addition although we have no intention of selling our primary international holding company
deferred tax liability of approximately $34125 would be required to be recorded in the event such sale were

to take place

reconciliation of the differences between the provision for income tax computed at the appropriate

statutory rates and the reported provision for income taxes is as follows For 2008 the Company was

domiciled in Panama which has no corporate income tax For 2009 and 2010 the Company was domiciled

in the U.S which has 35.0 percent statutory tax rate

2010 2009 2008

Taxes on earnings at statutory ratein domicile of parent

company 24963 9803

Earnings taxed at rates less or greater than parent

company rates

United States 12099

Other countries 1160 1857 10615

State income taxes net of U.S federal benefit 1560 506 2091

Contingent earnout 15869
Perdiem 1462 1358 813

Acquisition costs 1208

Other permanent items 1667 210 1334

Foreign rate changes 14 1461

Changes in provision for unrecognized tax positions

Statute expirations and tax authority settlements 1552 1945 725
Other changes in unrecognized tax positions 621 914 875

Change in valuation allowance 16 301 301

Stock-based compensation deferred tax asset write-off 3865

Other
129 46

Total provision benefit for income taxes 36150 8734 25942
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Upon adoption of the FASBs standard on the reconition of tax benefits in 2007 the Company recorded

$6369 chargØ to beginning stockholders equity for unrecognized tax positions During 2010 the Company

recognized $1552 of previously recorded unrecognized tax benefits due to the expiration of the statute of

limitations for purposes of assessment and the resolution of certain audits The Company accrued new

uncertain tax positions in the amount of $34 reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of

unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Balance at January 12010 5512

Change in measurement of existing tax positions related

to expiration of statute of limitations 1552
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 34

Additions based on tax positions related to prior years 586

Foreign exchange difference related to Canadian operations 286

Balance at December 31 2010 4.866

The $4866 of unrecognized tax benefits will impact the Companys effective tax rate if ultimately

recognized The amount of unrecognized tax benefits reasonably possible to be recognized during 2011 is

approximately $0 The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax

benefits in income tax expense During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 the Company has

recognized $223 in interest expense Interest and penalties are included in the table above in addition to the

effects of the changes in foreign currency that are included in other comprehensive income

The Company has total net tax liability equal to $24615 excluding uncertain tax positions The

increase in the Companys deferred tax liability resulted primarily from the acquisition of InfrastruX and the

associated difference between the fair market value of the acquired assets and the carryover basis that is

recorded for tax purposes in stock acquisition The net tax liability of $24615 is comprised of prepaid taxes

or tax refunds in the amount of $29341 recorded in the Companys prepaid expenses accrued income

taxes of $2356 currently owed to various federal and state/provincial tax authorities and deferred income

tax liability of $51600 which represents the difference in book and tax basis of property goodwill and

intangible assets The Company has recorded $9864 payable to the seller of InfrastruX for tax refunds

incurred prior to the change of ownership on July 2010 and this amount is included in the aggregate

amount of $29341 expected tax refunds
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2010 2009

Accrued vacation 2609 1118
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1825 656

Estimated loss

Other

1162

5408

421

680

11004 2875
Non-current

Deferred compensation 5172 3414
Goodwill impairment 20166

U.S tax net operating loss carry forwards 11080 694

State tax net operating loss carry forwards 7303 183

Other 185 577

Gross deferred tax assets 23740 25034

Valuation allowance 7170
Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 27574 27909

Deferred tax liabilities

Current

1616
1538
3154

1001
5071
6072

Non-current

Unbilled profitlretainage 599 3972
Bond discount amortization 3674 1540
Depreciation 43507 5844
Goodwill intangibles 28240

Deferred tax liabilities 79174 17428
Net deferred tax assets liabilities 51600 10481

The net deferred tax assets liabilities by geographical location are as follows

December 31

2010 2009

48068 20802

3532 10321

51600 10481

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carry forwards including

state net operating loss carry forwards is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income in

particular tax jurisdiction during the periods in which the use of such net operating losses are allowed The

Company considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in

making this assessment

At December 31 2010 the Company has remaining U.S federal het operating loss carry forwards of

$70915 and state-net operating loss carry forwards of $143292 The Company inherited $32732 of the

U.S federal net operating loss carry forwards and $140649 of the state net operating loss carry forwards

109

The principal components of the Companys net deferred tax assets liabilities are
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Deferred tax assets

Current

Prepaid expenses

Partnership tax deferral

United States

Other countries

Net deferred tax assets liabilities
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from the acquisition of InfrastruX under the attribution rules of Internal Revenue Code Section 381 Due to

the change in ownership of InfrastruX at July 2010 the inherited federal loss carry forwards are limited by

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code to the value of the stock of InfrastruX immediately prior to the

ownership change multiplied by the highest of the adjusted federal long-term rates in effect for July 2010 and

the prior two months The Company does not believe that the annual Section 382 limitationfof$19480 will

impact the utilization of the inherited federal net operating loss carry forwards due to the prqjected utilization

of the federal loss carry forwards in future years

The Companys U.S federal net operating losses expire beginning in 2013 Astate net operating loss

generally expires 20 years after the period in which the net operating loss was inQurred Based upon

carrybacks available to the Company tax planning strategies reversals of existing temporary differences

and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the net operating losses can be utilized to

offset taxable income the Company believes that it will realize tax benefit of $12600 in 2011 from the

carryback of approximately $36130 of these losses to 2008

InfrastruX has state net operating loss carry forwards of $140649 on whiàh defetred tax asset of

$7170 is offset by valuation allowance of $7170 There was change to the valuatibh allowance of $16

for the year ended December 31 2010 owing to the continued losses of one of the InfrastruX subsidiaries in

state jurisdiction

13 Stockholders Equity

The information contained in this note pertains to continuing and discontinued operations

Stock Ownership Plans

In My 1996 the Company established the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan the 1996 Plan with

1125000 shares of common stock authorized for issuance to provide for awards to key employees of the

Company and the Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan the Director Plan with 125000 shares of

common stock authorized for issuance to provide for the grant of stock options tq non-employee directors

The number of shares authorized for issuance under the 1996 Plan and the Director Plan was increased to

4825000 and 225000 respectively by stockholder approval The Directbr Plan epired August 16 2006 In

2006 the Company established the 2006 Director Restricted Stock Plan the 2006 Director Plan with

50000 shares authorized for issuance to grant shares of restricted stock and restricted stock rights to non-

employee directors The number of shares authorized for issuance under the 2006 Director Plan was

increased in 2008 to 250000 by stockholder approval

On May 26 2010 the Company established the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive

Compensation Plan 2010 Plan with 2100000 shares of common stock authorized for issuance to provide

for awards to key employees of the Company All future grants of stock awards to key employees will be

made through the 2010 Plan On May 26 2010 the 1996 Plan was frozen with the.eception of normal

vesting forfeiture and other activity associated with awards previously granted under the 1996 Plan At

December 31 2010 the 2010 plan had 1883073 shares available for grant

RSUs and options granted to employees vest generally over three to four year period Options

granted under the 2010 Plan expire ten years subsequent to the grant date Upon stock option exercise

common shares are issued from treasury stock Options granted under the Director Plan are fully vested

Restricted stock and restricted stock rights granted under the 2006 Director Plan vest one year after the date

of grant At December 31 2010 the 2006 Director Plan had 121711 shares available for grant For RSUs
granted prior to March of 2009 certain provisions allow for accelerated vesting upon eligible retirement

Additionally certain provisions allow for accelerated vesting in the event of involuntary termination not for

cause or change of control of the Company During the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

$669 $3683 and $1001 respectively of compensation expen.se was recognized due to accelerated vesting

of RSUs due to retirements and separation from the Company

Share-based compensation related to RSUs is recorded based on the Companys stock price as of the

grant date Expense from both stock options and RSUs totaled $8404 $13231 and $lt652 respectively

.for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
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The Company determines fair value of stock options as of its grant date using the Black-Scholes

valuation method No options were granted during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 or 2008

The Companys stock option activity and related information consist of

Year Ended December 31

2010

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding beginning of year 257750 15.91

Granted

2009 2008

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price

333750 15.47 418750 14.96

Nonvested beginning of year

Granted

Vested

Forfeited or expired ____________
Nonvested end of year ____________

The Companys RSU activity and related information consist of

Year Ended December 31

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value

22.38

11.39

23.97

20.23

13.54

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value

32.89

9.95

27.02

19.89

22.38

2008

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

548688 20.89

635314 38.24

249661 21.50

93999 29.00

840342 32.89

The total fair v.alue of RSUs vested during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was

$13911 $12791 and $5367 respectively
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Exercised 17500 10.77 53000 12.90

Forfeited or expired 30000 20.65 58500 14.93 32000 13.12

Outstanding end of year
227750 15.28 257750 15.91 333750 15.47

Exercisable at end of year
207750 15.02 220250 15.34 261250 14.50

As of December 31 2010 the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and stock options

exercisable was $128 and $128 respectively The weighted average remaining contractual term of

outstanding options is 4.29 years and the weighted average remaining contractual term of the exercisable

options is 4.21 years at December 31 2010 The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $0 $81 and

$1284 during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively There was no material tax

benefit realized related to those exercises The total fair value of options vested during the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $87 $247 and $322 respectively

The Companys nonvested options at December 31 2010 and the changes in nonvested options during

the year ended December 31 2010 are as follows

Weighted-

Average Grant-

Shares Date Fair Value

37500 7.23

12500
5000
20000

6.99

9.69

6.77

2010 2009

Shares

Outstanding beginning of year 859248

Granted 635849

Vested shares released 580369

Forfeited 25875

Outstanding end of year
888853

Shares

840342

545307

473406

52995

859248



Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

30557 24253 44723

1207 1817 1836

43013934 38883077 38764167

3048642 3048642 3146205

1825587 1825587 1825587

185397 185000 272750

536925 536925 536925

343905

5940456 5596154 5781467
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13 Stockholders Equity continued

As of December 31 2010 there was total of $8257 of unrecognized compensation cost net of

estimated forfeitures related tO all nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the

Companys stock ownership plans That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period

of 2.14 years

Warrants to Purchase Common Stock

In 2006 the Company completed private placement of equity to certain accredited investors pursuant

to which the Company issued and sold 3722360 shares of the Companys common stock resulting in net

proceeds of $48748 In conjunction with the private placement the Company also issued warrants to

purchase an additional 558354 shares of the Companys common stock Each warrant is exercisable in

whole or in part until 60 months from the date of issuance warrant holder may elect to exercise the

warrant by delivery of payment to the Company at the exercise price of $19.03 per share or pursuant to

cashless exercise as provided in the warrant agreement The fair value of the warrants was $3423 on the

date of the grant as calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model There were 536925 warrants

outstanding at December 31 2010 and 2009

14 Income Loss Per Common Share

Basic and diluted income loss per common share is computed as follows

Income loss from continuing operations

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest _____________ _____________ _____________

Net income loss from continuing operations attributable

to Willbros Group Inc numerator for basic calculation 31 764 22436 42887

Add Interest and debt issuance costs associated with

convertible notes

Net income loss from continuing operations applicable

to common shares numerator for diluted calculation 31764 22436 42887

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

for basic income per share 43013934 38687594 38269248

Weighted average number of potentially dilutive common

shares outstanding 195483 494919

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

for diluted incomeper share _____________ ____________
Income loss per common share from continuing

operations

Basic

Diluted

0.74

0.74

The Company has excluded shares potentially issuable under the terms of use of the securities listed

below from the number of potentially dilutive shares outstanding as the effect would be anti-dilutive

Year Ended December 31

0.58 1.12

0.58 1.10

2.75% Convertible Senior Notes

6.5% Senior Convertible Notes

Stock options

Warrants to purchase common stock

Restricted stock and restricted stock rights

2010 2009 2008

In accordance with the FASBs standard on earnings per share contingently convertible instruments

the shares issuable upon conversion of the convertible notes would have been included in diluted
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14 Income Loss Per Common Share continued

income loss per share if those securities were dilutive regardless of whether the Companys stock price

was greater than or equal to the conversion prices of $17.56 and $19.47 respectively However these

securities are only dilutive to The extent that interest per weighted average convertible share does not

exceed basic earnings per hare For the year ended December 31 2010 the related interest per

convertible share associated with the 2.75% Convertible Senior Notes and the 6.5% Senior Convertible

Notes exceeded basic earnings per share for the current period As such those shares have not been

included in the computation of diluted earnings per share During 2008 there were 443913 shares issued

upon conversion of the convertible notes

15 Segment Information

Revenue 573796

Operating expenses 562082

Goodwill impairment

Change in fair value of contingent

earnout liability

Operating income loss
11714

Other expense

Provision benefit for income taxes

Loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of provision for income taxes

Loss from continuing and discontinued operations

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net loss attributable to Willbros Group Inc

The Companys segments are strategic business units that are defined by the industry segments served

and are managed separately as each has different operational reqUfternent and strategies Prior to the

InfrastruX acquisition the Company operated through two bdsiness egments Upstream Oil Gas and

Downstream Oil Gas These segments operate prifflarily in the United States Canada and Oman On

July 2010 the Company closed on the acquisition of InfrasfruX InfrastruX is provider of electric

power and natural gas transmission and distribution maintenance and construction solutions to customers

from their regional operating centers in the South Central Midwest and East Coast regions of the United

States This acquisition significantly diversifies the Companys capabilities and end markets InfrastruX has

been designated as newly established segment Utility TD Management evaluates the performance of

each operating segment based on operating incpme Corporate operations include the executive management

general administrative and financing functions of the organization The costs to provide these services are

allocated as are certain other corporate assets among the three operating segments There were no material

inter-segment revenues in the periods presented

At the beginning of the third quarter of 2009 the Company acquired the engineering business of Wink

In anticipation of this abquisition in the second quarter of 2009 the Company redefined its business

segments from Engineering Upstream Oil Gas and Downs tream Oil Gas to two segments by integrating

the existing Engineering segment into the Upstream Oil Gas segment and Wink into the Downstream Oil

Gas segment The Company believes the inclusion of engineering services within each segment improves

internal connectivity by providing dedicated specialized engineering servi6es to both the upstream and

downstream markets Additionally in the third quarter of 2009 the CôrnpÆnyd compressor/pump station

construction business that wS previously included in the Downstream Oil Gaà segment was moved to the

Upstream Oil Gas segment The financial results for this business have beerlreclassifiØd for all periods

presented here into the Upstream Oil Gas segment

The tables below reflect the Companys operations by reportable segment for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Year Ended December 31 2010

Ups tream

Oil Gas

Downstream

Oil Gas Utility TD Consolidated

75215

301104 317512 1192412

316319

60000

343967 1222368
60000

45340

26455 44616

22091
36150
30557
5272

35829
1207

37036
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Depreciation and amortization expense by segment are presented below

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

19902 27610

10777 13250

25486
__________

56165 _________

2008

30507

14396

15 Segment Information continued

Revenue

Operating expenses

Year Ended December 31 2009

Upstream Downstream

Oil Gas Oil Gas Utility TD Consolidated

982523

942526

39997

277250

276751

499
Operating income _____________

Other expense

Provision for income taxes

Income from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations net of provision for income taxes

Income from continuing and discontinued operations

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income.attributable to Willbros Group Inc

1259773
1219277

40496

7509
8734

24253

4613
19640

1817
17823

Year Ended December 31 2008

Upstream Downstream

Oil Gas Oil Gas Utility TD Consolidated

Revenue 1545629 367075 $1912704

Operating expenses 1434744 343859 1778603

Goodwill impairment 62295 62295

Operating income loss
110885 39079 71806

Otherexpense

Provision for income taxes

1141
25942

Incomefrom continuing operations 44723

Income from discontinued operations net of provision for income taxes 745

Income from continuing and discontinued operations 45468

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest 1836

Net income attributable to Willbros Group Inc 43632

Upstream Oil Gas

Downstream Oil Gas

Utility TD
Total __________ 40860 44903

Amounts above include corporate allocated depreciation of $3442 $4637 and $5465 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2006 respectively
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15 Segment Information continued

Capital expenditures by segment are presented below

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Upstream Oil Gas 9586 7318 38491

DowMtream Oil Gas 951 1889 3613

Utility TD 6437

Corporate 1326 3900
____________

Total 18300 13107 __________

Total assets by segment as of Decembe 31 2010 and 2O09 are presented below

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Upstream Oil Gas 249716 258a46

Downstream Oil Gas 126095 174512

Utility TD 698939

Corporate 210812 294828

Total assets continuing operations 1285562 727686

Dueto limited number of major projects and clients the Company may.at any one time have

substantial part of its operations dedicated to one project client and country

Customers representing 10 percent or more of total contract revenue are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

924590

193841

73589

392

$1192412

10944

53048

Customer

Customer

Customer

Customer

Customer

16% -%

-% 22%

-% 13%

-% -%
-% _______

16% 35%

Information about the Companys operations in its work countries is shown below

Year Ended December31

-%

19%

11%

30%

Contract revenue

United States

Canada

Oman

Other

2010 2009 2008

$1440239

387498

84967

939985

254420

65368

1259773 $1912704
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All of the above are customers of the Upstream Oil Gas segment

15 Segment Information continued

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Long-lived assets

United States 190734 81574

Canada 30593 40938

Oman 7053 10175

Other 799 192

229179 132879

16 Contingencies Commitments and Other Circumstances

Contingencies

Resolution of criminal and regulatory matters

In May 2008 the United States Department of Justice filed an Information and Deferred Prosecution

Agreement DPA in the United States District Court in Houston concluding its investigation into violations

of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 as amended by Willbros Group Inc and its subsidiary Willbros

International Inc WIl Also in May 2008 WGI reached final settlement with the $EC to resolve its

previously disclosed investigation of possible violations of the FCPA and possible violations of the Securities

Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These investigations stemmed primarily from the

Companys former operations in Bolivia Ecuador and Nigeria The settlements together require the

Company to pay over approximately three years total of $32300 in penalties and disgorgement plus

post-judgment interest on $7725 of that amount As part of its agreement with the SEC the Company will be

subject to permanent injunction barring future violations of certain provisions of the federal securities laws

As to its agreement with the DOJ both WGI and WIl for period of three years from May 2008 are subject

to the DPA which among its terms provides that in exchange for WGIs and WIIs full compliance with the

DPA the DOJ will not continue criminal prosecution of WGI and WIl and with the successful completion of

the DPAs terms the DOJ will move to dismiss the criminal information

For the term of the DPA WGI and WIl will fully cooperate with the government and comply with all

federal criminal laws including but not limited to the FCPA As provided for in the DPA with the approval of

the DOJ and effective September 25 2009 the Company retained government approved independent

monitor at the Companys expense for two and one-half year period who is reporting to the DOJ on the

Companys compliance with the DPA

Since the appointment of the monitor the Company has cooperated and provided the monitor with

access to information documents records facilities and employees On March 2010 the monitor filed

with the DOJ the first of three required reports under the DPA In the report the monitor made numerous

findings and recommendations to the Company with respect to the improvement of its internal controls

policies and procedures for detecting and preventing violations of applicable anti-corruption laws

The Company iØ obligated pursuant to the terms of the DPA to adopt the recommendations in the

monitors report unless the Company advises the monitor and the DOJ that it considers the

recommendations unduly burdensome impractical costly or otherwise inadvisable The Company has

advised the DOJ that it intends to implement all of the recommendations The Company will require

increased resources costs and management oversight in order to effectively implement the

recommendations

Failure by the Company to comply with the terms and conditions of either settlement could result in

resumed prosecution and other regulatory sanctions
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16 Contingencies Commitments and Other Circumstances continued

Facility Construction Project Termination

In September 2008 TransCanada Pipelines Ltd TCPL awarded the Company cost reimbursable

plus fixed fee construction contract for seven pump stations in Nebraska and Kansas On January 13 2010

TCPL notified the Company that it was in breach of the contract and was being terminated for cause

immediately At the time of termination the Company had completed approximately 96.0 percent of its scope

of work

The Company has disputed the validity of the termination for cause and has challenged the contractual

procedure followed by TCPL for termination for cause which allows for 30 day notification period during

which time the Company is granted the opportunity to remedy the alleged default Despite not being granted

this time the Company agreed in good faith to cooperate with TCPL in an orderly demobilization and

handover of the remaining work As of December 31 201.0 the Company has outstanding receivables

related to this project of $71159 and unapproved change orders for additional work of $4222 which have

not been billed Additionally there are claims for additional fees totaling $16442 It is the Companys policy

not to recognize revenue or income on unapproved change orders or claims until they have been approved

Accordingly the $4222 in pending change orders and the $16442 of claims have been excluded from the

Companys revenue recognition The preceding balances are partially offset by an unissued billing credit of

$2000 related to TCPL mobilization prepayment

If the termination for cause is determined to be valid and enforceable the Company could be held liable

for any damages resulting from the alleged breach of contract including but not limited to costs incurred by

TCPL to hire replacement contractor to complete the remainder of the work less the cost that the Company
would have incurred to perform the same scope of work

In May and June of 2010 the Company filed liens on the constructe facilities On June 16 2010 the

Company notified TCPL that the Company intended to exercise its rights to conflict resolution under the

contract and on July 2010 the International Chamber of Commerce reŁeived the Companys request for

arbitration On September 15 2010 the Company received TCPLs response to the Notice of Arbitration

which included counterclaim for damages of $23100 for the alleged breach of contract inclusive of the

unissued billing credit of $2000 for mobilization prepayment In addition TCPL has disclaimed its

responsibility for payment of the burrent receivable balance the unapproved change orders for additional

work and claims for additional fee

At this point the Company cannot estimate the probable outcome of the arbitration but believes it is not

in breach of contract and will defend its contractual rights No allowance for collection has been established

for the outstanding accounts receivable The Company estimates that arbitration process will conclude

during 2011

TransCanada has removed the Company from TransCanadas bid list

Pipeline Construction Project Issues

In July 2007 the Company announced the award of an installation contract 42-inch Contçact for the

construction of three segments of the Midcontinent Express Pipeline Project MEP Project by Midcontinent

Express Pkpeline LLC MEP The contract was structured as cost reimbursable contract with fixed fee

for the Company In September 2008 the Company and MEP signed an amendment which finalized the

scope of work under the 42-inch Contract and also included the award to the Company of an additional

installation contract 36-inch Contract for the bonstrUction of 136 miles of 36-inch pipelipe which at the

time was anticipated to start in March 2009

In its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 the Company referenced an ongoing dispute

between MEP and the Company in which portion of the scope of work on the 42-inch Contract was

terminated for cause and the 36-inch Contract was terminated for convenience This issue was subsequently

resolved and MEP paid termination fee for the cancellation of the 36-inch Contract in the first quarter of

2009

Furthermore the Company achieved mechanical completion of the 179 miles on the 42-inch pipeline in

April 2009 and completed close out efforts in the first quarter of 2010
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16 Contingencies Commitments and Other Circumstances continued

Project claims and audit disputes

Post-contract completion audits and reviews are periodically conducted by clients and/or government

entities on certain contracts As of December 31 2010 the Company has been notified of claims and audit

assertions totaling $6000 The claims are associated with single gross maximum price contract It is the

Companys position that the claims are without merit Further the Company will continue to pursue all

avenues for couecting the remaining receivable There can be no assurance as to the resolution of these

claims and assertions nor the collection of the outstanding balance

Pre-acquisition contingencies

The Company has evaluated and continues to evaluate contingencies relating to the acquisition of

InfrastruX that existed as of the acquisition date The Company has preliminarily determined that certain of

these pre-acquisition contingencies are probable in nature and estimable as of the acquisition date and

accordingly has recorded its best estimates for these contingencies as part of the purchase price

allocation for InfrastruX The Company continues to gather information for and evaluate substantially all pre

acquisition contingencies that it has asumed from InfrastruX If the Company makes changes to the

amounts recorded or identifies additional pre-acquisition contingencies during the remainder of the

measurement period such amounts recorded will be included in the purchase price allocation during the

measurement period and subsequently in the results of operations assuming the information existed at the

acquisition date

Other

In addition to the mailers discussed above the Company is party to number of legal proceedings

Management believes that the nature and number of these proceedings are typical for firm of similar size

engaged in similar type of business and that none of these proceedings is material to the Companys
financial position See Note 21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services

Agreement for additional information pertaining to legal proceedings

Commitments

From time to timtFe Company enters into commercial commitments usually in the form of commercial

and standby Ietter of credit surety bonds and financial guarantees Contracts with the Companys
customers may requfte the Company to secure letters of credit or surety bonds with regard to the Companys

performance of contracted services In such cases the commitments can be called upon in the event of

failure to perform contracted services Likewise contracts may allow the Company to issue letters of credit

or surety bonds in lieu of contract retention provisions where the client withholds percentage of the

contract value until project completion or expiration of warranty period Retention commitments can be

called upon in the event of warranty or project completion issues as prescribed in the contracts At

December 31 2010 the Company had approximately $25678 of outstanding letters of credit all of which

related to continuing operations This amount represents the maximum amount of payments the Company
could be required to make if these letters of credit are drawn upon Additionally the Company issues surety

bonds customarily required by commercial terms on construction projects At December 31 2010 the

Company had bonds outstanding primarily performance bonds with face value at $530152 related to

continuing operations This amount represents the bond penalty amount of future payments the Company
could be required to make if the Company fails to perform its obligations under such contracts The

performance bonds do not have stated expiration date rather each is released when the contract is

accepted by the owner The Companys maximum exposure as it relates to the value of the bonds

outstanding is lowered on each bonded project as the cost to complete is reduced As of

December 31 2010 no liability has been recognized for letters of credit or surety bonds See Note 21

Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement for further discussion

related to letters of credit

Operating Leases

The Company has certain operating leases for office and camp facilities Rental expense for continuing

operations excluding daily rentals and reimbursable rentals under cost plus contracts was $16527 in 2010
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16 Contingencies Commitments and Other Circumstances continued

$1 1473 in 2009 and $8720 in 2008 Minimum lease commitments under operating leases as of

December31 2010 totaled $99627 and are payable as follows 2011 $26493 2012 $20244 2013

$16429 2014 $9486 2015 $5613 and thereafter $21362

Other Circumstances

Operations outside the United States may be subject to certain risks which ordinarily would not be

expected to exiS in the United States including foreign aurrency restrictions extreme exchange rate

fluctuations expropriation of assets civil uprisings and riots war unanticipated taxes including income

taxes excise duties import taxes export taxes sales taxes or other governmental assessments availability

of suitable personnel and equipment termination of existing contracts aædcleŁses government instability and

legal systems of decrees laws regulations interpretations and court decisions which are not always fully

developed and which may be retroactively aYplied

Based upon the advice of local advisors in the various work countries concerning the interpretation of

the laws practices and customs of the countries in which it operates management believes the Company
follows the current practices in those countries and as applicable under the FCPA However because of the

nature of these potential risks there can be no assurance that the Company may not be adversely affected

by them in the future

The Company insures substantially all of its equipment in countries outside the United States against

certain political risks and terrorism through political risk insurance coverage that contains 20.0 percent co
insurance provision The Company has the usual liability of contractors for the completion of contracts and

the warranty of its work Where work is performed through joint venture the Company also has possible

liability for the contract completion and warranty responsibilities of its joint venture partners In addition the

Company acts as prime contractor on majority of the projects it undertakes and is normally responsible for

the performance of the entire project including subcontract work Management is not aware of any material

exposure related thereto which has not been provided for in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements

The Company attempts to manage contract risk by implementing standard contracting philosophy to

minimize liabilities assumed in the agreements with the Companys clients With the acquisitions the

Company has made in the last few years however there may be contracts or master service agreements in

place that do not meet the Companys current contracting standards While the Company has made efforts

to improve its contractual terms with its clients this process takes time to implement The Company has

attempted to mitigate the risk by requesting amendments with its clients and by maintaining primary and

excess insurance of certain specified limits in the event losswas to ensue

See Note 21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement for

discussion of commitments and contingencies associated with Discontinued Operations

17 Fair Value Measurements

The FASBs standard on fair value measurements defines fair value as the price that would be received

from selling an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or

permitted to be recorded at fair value the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in

which it would transact and considers assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the

asset or liability such as inherent risk transfer restrictions and risk of nonperformance

Fair Value Hierarchy

The FASBs standard on fair value measurements establishes fair value hierarchy that requires an

entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when

measuring fair value financial instruments categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the

lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement This standard establishes three levels

of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities
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17 Fair Value Measurements continued

Level Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of fair

value of assets pr liabilities

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

The Company measures its financial assets and financial liabilities specifically its hedging arrangements

and contingent earnout liability at fair value on recurring basis The fair value of these financial assets and

liabilities was determined using the following inputs as of December 31 2010

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets for Other Other

Identical Assets Observable Unobservabl

Total Level Inputs Level Inputs Level

Assets

Interestratecap 12 12

Interest rate swap 104 104

Liabilities

Contingent earnout liability 10000 100

Contingent earnout liability

In connection with the acquisition of InfrastruX on July 2010 InfrastruX shareholders are eligible to

receive earnout payments of up to $125000 if certain EBITDA targets are met The earnout payments begin

when EBTDA adjusted for certain items specifically identified within the merger agreement for the

InfrastruX business equals or exceeds

$69825 in 2010

$80000 in 2011 or

$175000 for 2010 and 2011 combined the Bonus Earnout Amount

The Company estimated the fair value of the contingent earnout liability based on its probability

assessment of InfrastruXs EBITDA achievements during the earnout period In developing these estimates

the Company considered its revenue and EBITDA projections its historical results and general macro
economic environment and industry trends This fair value measurement is based on significant revenue and

EBITDA inputs not observed in the market and thus represents Level measurement Level instruments

are valued based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and reflect the

Companys own assumptions in measuring fair value The Companys fair value estimate of this liability was

$55340 at the date of acquisition Changes in the fair value of the contingent earnout liability subsequent to

the acquisition date including changes arising from events that occurred after the acquisition date such as

changes in the Companys estimate of revenue achievements are recognized in earnings in the periods

when the estimated fair value changes

The following table represents reconciliation of the change in the fair value measurement of the

contingent earnout liability for the period ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Beginning balance 55340

Change in fair value of contingent earnout liability included in

operating expenses 45340

Ending balance 10000

In accordance with the FASBs standard on business combinations the Company reviews the

contingent earnout liability on quarterly basis in order to determine its fair value Changes in the fair value

of the liability are recordedwithin operating expenses in the period in which the change is made and the

liability may increase or decrease on quarterly basis until the earnout period has concluded
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17 Fair Value Measurements continued

During the third quarter of 2010 the Company recorded $45340 adjustment to the estimated fair value

of the contingent earnout liability This change in estimated contingent earnout liability to the former

lnfrastruX shareholders was due to third quarter decrease in the probability-weighted estimated

achievement of EBITDA targets as set forth in the merger agreement This reduction was driven primarily by

the following

Expectations for lower margins on major transmission projects due to shift in the mix of projects

in Texas towards lower margin projects than previously anticipated and ii ongoing competition in

other regions particularly the northeast as the pace of bid activity has been slower than expected in

returning to pre-2009 levels

slower than anticipated rebound in key housing markets continues to pressure work volumes

under existing Master Service Agreements MSA arid the budgets of many of our utility customers
while increasing the competitive pricing on bids for new awards

Reduced expectations for significant storm work which typically carries higher margin than our

standard MSA work

Under GAAP Company has up to one year subsequent to closing an acquisition to perform its annual

testing for goodwill impairment unless indicators of an impairment exist The Company determined that no

indicators of impairment including the events that led to the reduction in the contingent earnout liability as

mentioned above were identified during the fourth quarter of 2010

During the fourth quarter of 2010 the amount recognized for the contingent earnout the range of

outcomes and the assumptions used to develop the estimates did not materially change from those used in

determining the balance as of September 30 2010 Accordingly no adjustment to the contingent earnout

liability was made at December 31 2010

Hedging Arrangements

The Company attempts to negotiate contracts that provide for payment in U.S dollars but it may be

required to take all or portion of payment under contract in another currency To mitigate non-U.S

currency exchange risk the Company seeks to match anticipated non-U.S currency revenue with expenses

in the same currency whenever possible To the extent it is unable to match non-U.S currency revenue with

expenses in the same currency the Company may use forward contracts options or other common hedging

techniques in the same non-U.S currencies The Company had no derivatiVe financial instruments to hedge

currency riskat December 31 2010 or December 31 2009

Interest Rate Swap

In conjunction with the new credit agreement the Company entered into aŁ of June 30 2010 the

Company is subject to hedging arrangements to fix or otherwise limit the interest cost of the term loans The

Company is subject to interest rate risk on its debt and investment of cash and cash equivalents arising in

the normal course of business as the Company does not engage in speculative trading strategies

In September 2010 the Company entered into two 18-month forward interest rate swap agreements for

total notional amount of $150000 in order to hedge changes in the variable rate interest expense of half of

the $300000 Term Loan maturing on June 30 2014 Under the swap agreement the Company receives

interest at floating rate of three-month Libor conditional on three-month Libor exceeding percent to

mirror variable rate interest provisions of the underlying hedged debt and pays interest at fixed rate of

2.685 percent effective March 28 2012 through June 30 2014 The swap agreement is designated and

qualifies as cash flow hedging instrument with the effective portion of the swaps change in fair value

recorded in Other Comprehensive Income OCI The swap of the variable rate interest is deemed to be

highly effective hedge and resulted in no gain or loss recorded for hedge ineffectiveness in the Consolidated

Statement of Operations Amounts in OCI are reported in interest expense when the hedged interest

payments on the underlying debt are recognized The fair value of the swap agreement was determined

using model with Level inputs including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and

maturity dates
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Interest Rate Caps

In September 2010 the Company entered into two interest rate capagreements for notional.amounts of

$75000 each in order to limit its exposure to an increase of the interest rate above percent effective

September 28 2010 through March 28 2012 Total premiums of $98 were paid for the interest rate caps
The cap agreements are desighated and qualify as cash flow hedging instruments with the effective portion

of the caps change in fair value recorded in OCI Amounts in OCI and the premiums paid for the caps are

reported in interest expense as the hedged interest payments on the underlying debt are recognized The

interest rate caps are deemed to be highly effective resulting in an immaterial amount of hedge
ineffectiveness recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations The fair value of the interest rate cap

agreements was determined using model with Level inputs including quoted market prices for contracts

with similar terms and maturity dates An immaterial amount of OCI relating to the interest rate swap and

caps is expected to be recognized in earnings in the coming 12 months

Asset Derivatives as of December 31

2010 2009

Balance Balance Sheet Fair

Sheet Location Fair Value Location Value

Interest rate contracts- caps Other Assets 12

Other Long-Term

Interest rate contracts- swaps Assets 104

Total derivatives 116

For the Year Ended December 31

Location of Amount of

Gain or Loss Gain or Loss Location of

Amount of Reclassified Reclassified Gain or Amount of

Gain or Loss from from Loss Gain or Loss
Recognized in Accumulated Accumulated Recognized Recognized in

Derivatives in OCI on OCI into OCI into in Income on Income on

ASC 815 Cash Derivative Income Income Derivative Derivative

Flow Hedging Effective Effective Effective Ineffective Ineffective

Relationships Portion Portion Portion Portion Portion

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Interest rate Interest Interest

contracts 19 Expense Expense

Total 19$ -$
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Year 2010 Quarter Ended

Contract revenue

Contract income

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes

kncorne loss from continuing operations net of

provisions for income taxes

Income loss from discontinued operations net of

provisions for income taxes

Net income loss

Less Income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income loss attributable to Willbros Group
Inc

Reconciliation of net income attributable to Wilibros

Group Inc

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss attributable to Willbros Group
Inc

Basic income loss per share attributable to

Company shareholders

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss
Diluted income per share attributable to Company

shareholders

Income loss from continuing bperations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Additional Notes

WILLBROS GROUP INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

18 Quarterly Financial Data

SeleCted unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 is

presented below The total of the quarterly income loss per share amounts may not equal the per share

amounts for the full year due to the manner in which earnings loss per share is calculated

March 31

2010

June 30
2010

September 30
2010

December 31 Total

2010 2010

136996

4979

248129

42363

408792

58658

398496 1192412

6022 112021

20058 16122 34304 97073 66707

11918 10369 36991 65997 30557

1130

13048

256

13Ł7

8982

353

1290

35701

293

1465 5272

67462 35829

305 1207

13304 8629 35408 67767 37036

12174 10016 36698 66302 31764
1130 1387 1290 1465 5272

13304 8629 35408 67767 37036

0.31

0.03

0.26

0.04

0.78

0.03

1.41 0.74

0.03 0.12

0.34 0.22 0.75 1.44 0.86

0.31

0.03

0.25

0.03

0.73

0.02

1.41 0.74

0.03 0.12

0.34 0.22 0.71 1.44 0.86

38942133

38942133

39018105

42352485

46997431

52154029

47099756 43013934

47099756 43013934

During thequarter ended December 31 2010 the Company classified its Libyan operations as discontinued operations

Accordingly the Libyan results ofoperations have been reclassified to discontinued operations for all periods presented See Note

21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Diposals and Transition Services Agreement for further discussion of discontinued

operations

During the quarter ended December 31 2010 the Company recorded nod-dash befthe-tax charge of $48000 for Impairment of

goodwill
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18 Quarterly Financial Data continued

Contract income

Income toss from continuing operations before

income taxes

Income lossfrom continuing operations net of

provisions for income taxes

Income loss from discontinued operations net

of provisions for income taxes

Net income loss
Less Income attributable to noncontrolling

interest

Net income loss attributable to Willbros Group
Inc

Reconciliation of net income attributable to

Wilibros Group Inc

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss attributable to Willbros Group
Inc

Basic income loss per share attributable to

Company shreholders

__________
2009 2008

5843

594 3169

446 3682

3771 12694

Year 2009 Quarter Ended

Contract revenue

March 31

2009

463926

June 30 September 30

2009 2009

December 31 Total

2009 2009

354483 247533 193831 1259773

56541 43067 25203 19738 144549

24684 17296 2489 11482 32987

16444 11343 3428 6962 24253

208 2012 1400 993 4613

16236 9331 2028 7955 19640

747 .423 372 275 1817

8230 1782315489 8908 1656

15697 10920 3056 7237 22436

208 2012 1490 993 4613

15489 8908 1656 8230 17823

0.41 0.28 0.08 0.19 0.58

0.01 0.05 0.04 0.02 0.12

0.40 0.23 0.04 0.21 0.46

0.36 0.25 0.08 0.19 0.58

0.05 0.04 0.02 0.12

0.36 0.20 0.04 0.21 0.46

38563937 38684446 38721586

43552113 43729642 38918933

38778157 38687594

38778157 38883077

Income loss from continuing operations

Income lossfrom discontinued operations

Net income loss
Diluted income per share attributable to

Company shareholders

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

Basic

Diluted

19 Other Charges

In QeCember 2010 thp Company announced that in Continuing to implement its initiative to fully

integrate InfrastruX acquired in July 2010 into its Utility TD segment it had identified cost and

managementsynergies that could be realized by closing the Seattle administrative offices of InfrastruX As

result certain elements of the Seattle office were transitioned into other Utility TD business units and the

segment pnagement activities will be integrated into the Hawkeye corporat9 offices located in Hauppauge
New York The transition was completed on February 28 2011 In connection with this office closure the

Company incurred $2473 and $165 of charges related to severance and accelerated vesting of stock

awards respectively

Fourth quarter of 2010 charges include change in estimate of $417 associated with one leased facility

which was abandoned in 2009

The table below summarizes all charges included in Other charges in the Consolidated Statements of

Operations

Year Ended December 31

2010

Employee severance 2731

Lease abandonments

Accelerated vesting of stock awards

Total other charges
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19 Other Charges continued

Other charges by segment are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Upstream Oil Gas 749 7965

Downstream Oil Gas 384 4729

Utility TD 2638

Total other charges 3771 $12694

Other charges incurred during 2010 and 2009 include $0 and $7217 related to corporate operations and

have beenallocated to the Companys business segments based on percentage of total revepue

The accrual at December 31 2010 for carrying costs of the abandoned lease spacetotaled $989 which

consists of $935 in Other current liabilities and $54 in Other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated

Balance Sheets The estimated carrying costs of the abandoned lease space Was determihed with the

assistance of the Companys third party real estate adviors and were based on ah assessment of

applicable commercial real estate markets There may be significant fluctuation in the estimated costs to

the extent the evaluation of the facts circumstances and expectations change The principal variables in

estimating the carrying costs are the length of time required to sublease the space the sublease rate and

expense for inducements e.g. rent abatement and tenant improvement allowance that may be offered to

prospective sublease tenant While the Company believes this accrual is adequate it is subject to

adjustment as conditions change The Company will continue to evaluate the adequacy of the accrual and

will make the necessary changes to the accrual as conditions warrant Activity in the accrual related to other

charges for the year ended December 31 2010 is as follows

Non-

Cancelable

Lease and

Employee Other

Termination and Contractual

Other Benefits Obligations Total

Accrued cost at December 31 2009 2325 4405

Costs recognized during 2010 317 3494

Cash payments 1913 3678j

Non-cash charges 17 463
Change in estimates

________________
277 277

Accrued cost at December 31 2010 3046 989 4035

Non-cash charges consist of $446 of accelerated stock-based compensation and $17 of accretion expense

20 Related Party Transaction

Two of the Companys board members function in similar role for current custoæier of the Upstream
Oil Gas U.S construction business unit During 2010 the Company performed midstream natural gas

construction for this customer generating approximately $12500 in revenue and accounts receivable of

approximately $8000 as of December 31 2010

21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement

Strategic DecisionC

During the fourth quarter of 2Q10 the Company chose to exit the Libyan market and .accdrdingly these

operations were classified as part of Discontinued Operations The Companys investment in establishing

presence in Libya while resulting in contract awards had not yielded any notice to proceed on subject

awards and the Company therefore exited this market due to the delays and identification of other more
attractive opportunities
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21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement continued

Additionally in 2006 the Company announced that it intended to sell its assets and operations in

Venezuela and Nigeria and classified these operations as Discontinued Operations The net assets and net

liabilities related to the Discontinued Operations are shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as

Liabilities of discontinued operations The results of the Discontinued Operations are shown on the

Consolidated Statements of Operations as Income loss from discontinued operations net of provisions for

income taxes for all periods presented

Nigeria Assets and Nigeria-Based Operations

Share Purchase Agreement

On February 2007 Willbros Global Holdings Inc formerly known as Wilibros Group Inc Panama

corporation WGHI which is now subsidiary of the Company and holds portion of the Companys non-

U.S operations sold its Nigeria assets and Nigeria-based operations in West Africa to Ascot Offshore

Nigeria Limited Ascot Nigerian oilfield services company for total consideration bf $155250 later

adjusted to $130250 The sale was pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement by and between WGHI and

Ascot dated as of February 2007 the Agreement providing for the purchase by Ascot of all of the share

capital of WG Nigeria Holdings Limited WGNHL the holding company for Willbros West Africa Inc

WWAI Willbros Nigeria Limited Willbros Offshore Nigeria Limited and WG Nigeria Equipment Limited

In connection with the sale of its Nigeria assets and operations WGHI and WIl another subsidiary of the

Company entered into an indemnity agreement with Ascot and Berkeley Group plc Berkeley the parent

company of Ascot the Indemnity Agreement pursuant to which Ascot and Berkeley agreed to indemnify

WGHI and WIl for any obligations incurred by WGHI or WIl in connection with the parent company

guarantees the Guarantees that WGHI and WIl previously issued and maintained on behalf of certain

former subsidiaries now owned by Ascot under certain working contracts between the subsidiaries and their

customers Either WGHI WIl or both may be contractually obligated in varying degrees under the

Guarantees with respect to the performance of work related to several ongoing projects Among the

Guarantees covered by the Indemnity Agreement are five contracts under which the Company estimates

that at February 2007 there was aggregate remaining contract revenue excluding any additional claim

revenue of $352107 and aggregate estimated cost to complete of $293562 At the February 2007 sale

date one of the contracts covered by the Guarantees was estimated to be in loss position with an accrual

for such loss of $33157 The associated liability was included in the liabilities acquired by Ascot and

Berkeley

Approximately one year after the sale of the Nigeria assets and operations WGHI received its first

notification asserting various rights under one of the outstanding parent guarantees On February 2008

WWAI the Ascot company performing the West African Gas Pipeline WAGP contract received letter

from West African Gas Pipeline Company Limited WAPC0 the owner of WAGP wherein WAPCo gave

written notice alleging that WWAI was in default under the WAGP contract as amended and giving WWAI
brief cure period to remedy the alleged default The Company understands that WWAI responded by

denying being in breach of its WAGP contract obligations and apparently also advised WAPCo that WWAI
requires further $55 million without which it will not be able to complete the work which it had previously

undertaken to perform The Company understands that on February 27 2008 WAPCo terminated the

WAGP contract for the alleged continuing non-performance of WWAI

Also in February 2008 WGHI received letter from WAPCo reminding WGHI of its parent guarantee on

the WAGP contract and requesting that WGHI remedy WWAIs default under that contract as amended

WGHI responded to WAPC0 consistent with its earlier communications that for variety of legal

contractual and othar reasons it did not consider the prior WAGP contract parent guarantee to have

continued application In February 2009 WGHI received another letter from WAPCo formally demanding
that WGHI pay all sums payable in consequence of the non-performance by WWAI with WAPCo and stating

that quantification of that amount would be provided sometime in the future when the work was completed
In spite of this lettS the Company continued to believe that the parent guarantee was not valid WAPCo

disputed WGHIs position that it is no longer bound by the terms of WGHIs prior parent guarantee of the

WAGP contract and has reserved all its rights in that regard

On February 15 2010 WGHI received letter from attorneys representing WAPCo seeking to recover

from WGHI under its prior WAGP contract parent company guarantee for losses and damages allegedly
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21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement continued

incurred by WAPCo in connection with the alleged non-performance of WWAI under the WAGP contract

The letter pUrports to be formal notice of claim for purposes of the Pre-Action Protocol for Construction

and Engineering Disputes under the rules of the High Court in London England The letter claims damages
in the amount of $264834 At February 2007 when WGHI sold its Nigeria assets and operations to

Ascot the total WAGP contract value was $165300 and the WAGP project was estimated to be

approximately 82.0 percent complete The remaining costs to complete the project at that time were

estimated at slightly under $30000 The Company is seeking to understand the magnitude of the WAPCo
claim relative to the WAGP projects financial status three years earlier

On August 2010 the Company received notice that WAPCo had filed suit against WGHI under

English law in the London High Court on July 30 2010 for the sum of $273386 WGHI has several possible

defenses to this suit and intends to contest the matter vigorously but the Company cannot provide any

assurance as to the outcome The Compan expects the litiation process to be lengthy trial of the matter

is scheduled to commence in June of 2012

The Company currently has no employees working in Nigeria and has no intention of returning to

Nigeria If ultimately it is determined by an English Court that WGHI is liable in whole or in part for damages

that WAPCo may establish against WWAI for WWAIs alleged non-performance of the WAGP contract or if

WAPCo is able to establish liability against WGHI directly under the parent company guarantee and in

either case WGHI is unable to enforce rights under the indemnity agreement entered into with Ascot and

Bthkeley in connection with the WAGP contract WGHI may experience substantial losses However at this

time the Company cannot predict the outcome of the London High COurt litigation or be certain of the

degree to which the indemnity agreement given in WGHIs favor by Ascot and Berkeley will protect WGHI

Letters of Credit

At the time of the February 2007 sale of its Nigeria assets and operations the Company had four

letters of credit outstanding totaling $20322 associated with Discontinued Operations the Discontinued

LCs In accordance with FASBs standard on guarantees liability was recognized for $1575 related to

the letters of credit This liability was released as each of the Discontinued LCs was released or expired and

the Company was relieved of its risk related to the Discontinued LCs During the twelve months ended

December 31 2008 two Discontinued LCs in the aggregate .amount of $19759 expired resulting in the

release of the associated liability and recognition of $1543 of additional cumulative gain on the sale of

Nigeria assets and operations The remaining Discontinued LC in the amount of $123 expired on February

28 2009 As of December 31 2009 and 2010 none of the Discontinued LCs remained issued and

outstanding

Transition Senices Agreement

Concurrent with the Nigeria sale the Company entered into two-year Transition Services Agreement

TSA with Ascot Under the agreement the Company was primarily providing labor in the form of

seconded employees to work under the direction of Ascot along with specifically defined work orders for

services generally covered inthe TSA Ascot agreed to reimburse the Company for these services For the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 these reimbursable contract costs totaled approximately $0 and

$0 respectively

On February 2009 the TSA expired according to its terms which ended the Companys obligation to

provide any further support or other services to Ascot in West Africa or otherwise The Company has

recognized all known costs associated with concluding the TSA including the write-off of all residual

accounts receivable and equipment in West Africa The total expense recognized in accordance with the

conclusion of the TSA is $357

Residual Equipment in Nigeria

In conjunction with the TSA the Company made available certain equipment to Ascot for use in Nigeria

and at times in Benin Togo and Ghana This equipment was not sold to Ascot under the Agreement The

Companys net book value for the equipment in West Africa at December 31 2010 and 2009 was $0 and $0

respectively The majority of this equipment which is comprised primarily of construction equipment rolling
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21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement continued

stock and generator sets was redeployed to the Companys operations in Oman The remainder was used

in exchange for equipment owned by Ascot and needed by the Companys North American operations

On February 2009 the Company reached final settlement with Ascot on the equipment exchange

and the Company no longer owns any equipment in West Africa

Insurance Recovery

During the twelve months ended December 31 2008 income from Discontinued Operations consisted

of two pre-Nigeria sale insurance claim recoveries of $3004 for events of loss the Company suffered prior to

the sale of its Nigeria operations

Venezuela

Business Disposal

On November 28 2006 the Company completed the sale of its assets and operations in Venezuela

The Company received total compensation of $7000 in cash and $3300 in the form of commitment from

the buyer to be paid on or before December 2013 The repayment bommitment is secured by

10 percent interest in Venezuelan financing joint venture During the second quarter of 2009 the

nationalization of several oil-field service contractors in Venezuela made the collection of the outstanding

commitment highly unlikely Accordingly the Company wrote off the net book value of the note resulting in

charge of $1750 to discontinued operations net of tax

Asset Disposal

Sale of Canada Fabrication Facility

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company decided to sell one of its fabrication facilities located in

Edmonton Alberta Canada which was comprised of manufacturing and office space of approximately

130000 square feet The Company determined that the capital employed in this facility would be more

efficiently applied to another fabrication location as well as to support the Companys cross-country pipeline

business in Canada The facility and various other related assets at the time of sale had net book value of

$1 1899 The Company received $19593 in net proceeds which resulted in gain on sale of $7694 which

is included in other net

Results of Discontinued Operations

Condensed Statements of Operations of the Discontinued Operations for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Year Ended December 31 2010

Nigeria Discontinued

Nigeri TSA Venezuela Libya Operations

Contract revenue 154 154

Operating expenses

Contract

General and administrative 2043 3327 5370

2044 3328 5372

Operating loss 2044 3174 5218
Other income expense 49 54
Income loss before income taxes

... 2093 3179 5272
Provision for income taxes

Net income loss
2093 3179 5272

costs represent legal fees incurred in connection with the defense of wAPco parent company guarantee assertions
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21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement continued

Year Ended December 31 2009

Nigeria Discontinued

Nigeria TSA Venezuela Libya Operations

Contract revenue 45 45

Operating expenses

Contract 429 37 466

General and administrative 151 194 1750 312 5217

151 623 1750 3159 5683

Operating loss 151 623 1750 3114 5638
Other income expense 120 1296 1177

Income loss before income taxes ... 271 673 1750 3113 4461
Provision for income taxes 149 152

Net income loss 271 524 1750 3116 4613

Year Ended December 31 2008

Nigeria Discontinued

Nigeria TSA Venezuela Libya Operations

Contract revenue 94 2474 2380

Operating expenses

Contract 94 3760 3666
General and administrative 151 62 2004 2217

57 3822 2004 5883

Operating loss 151 1348 2004 3503
Other income expense 4453 177 4268

Income loss before income taxes 4302 1525 2012 765

Provision for income taxes 20 20

Net income loss 4302 1545 2012 745
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Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable net

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment net

Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Net assets of discontinued operations

84 90

156 46

114

242 250

442

240 692

324 351

324 351

84 341

WILLBROS GROUP INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

21 Discontinuance of Operations Asset Disposals and Transition Services Agreement continued

Financial Position of Discontinued Operations

Condensed Balance Sheets of the Discontinued Operations are as follows

December 31 December 31
2010 2009
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2010 we have carried out an evaluation under the supervision of and with the participation of our

management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the

design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15e
and 1d-15e under the Exchange Act There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of

disclosure controls and procedures including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or

overriding of the controls and procedures Accordingly even effective disclosure controls and procedures

can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives that information required

to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized

and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and that information required to be

disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to

our management including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer as appropriate to

allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Based on that evaluation and the identification of material weakness in our internal control over

financial reporting described in paragraph below our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31 2010 due

to this material weakness

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Exchange Act Our internal control over financial

reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

All internal control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even

those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial

statement preparation and presentation Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to

future periods are subjedL to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a-1 5f Management with the participation of our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO This evaluation

included review of the documentation controls evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls testing of

the operating effectiveness of controls and concluding on this evaluation The Utility TD segment acquired

July 2010 has been excluded from our 2010 assessment due to the relatively short implementation

period This segment represents 26.6% of total revenue for fiscal year 2010 and 54.4% of total assets at

December 31 2010

Based on this evaluation and the identification of the material weakness discussed below management
concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31
2010

materiaF weakness as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2 is control deficiency or combination of

control deficiencies such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the annual or

interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis We have identified the

following material weakness
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Management identified material weakness related to compliance with the established estimation

process at the Companys subsidiary in Canada Management determined that project cost etimations were

not prepared in sufficient detail to properly analyze job margin and management review was not thorough

and did not include follow through on issues from prior month estimates These operating deficiencies

resulted in failure to identify four loss contracts in timely manner as of December 31 2010 This

oversight was subsequently identified by the Canadian management team during the monthly review

process for January 2011 and February 2011 The full amount of the $19221 Of estimated project operating

losses is reflected in our financial statements for the year ended December 31 2010 included in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K Management assessed the potential impact of this error on prior quarters and noted

that work on these loss contracts did not have substantial progress until the fourth quarter of 2010

Management also reviewed the estimated costs at completion EAC calculations for other significant

contracts and determined that this deficiency was confined to these loss contracts

Management has determined that this control deficiehcy could contribute to there being reasonable

possibility that material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements would not be prevented

or detected on timely basis and therefore constitutes material weakness

Grant Thornton LLP an independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting which is included inthis Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Remediation of Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In the fourth quarter of 2010 EAC calculations were not performed in sufficient detail for four fixed price

àOntracts in Canada and management failed to follow through to ensure action items previously identified

during bi-monthly management review meetings were fully resolved In response to this material weakness

management implemented and will implement additional monitoring controls over the established control

environment that is already in place

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that materially affected or are

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of

2010

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART Ill

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item with respect to the Companys directors and corporate governance

is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled PROPOSAL ONE ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS and CORPORATE GOVERNANCE in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement for 2011

Annual Meeting of Stockholders Proxy Statement The information required by this item with respect to

the Companys executive officers is included in Item 4A of Part of this Form 10-K The information required

by this item with respect to the Section 16 ownership reports is incorporated herein by reference to the

section entitled SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE in the Proxy

Statement

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has adopted both code qf business conduct and ethics for our directors

officers and employees and an additional separate code of ethics for our Chief Executive Officer and senior

financial officers This information is availabte on our webslte at http//www.willbros.com under the

Governance caption on the Investors page We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements including

those of Item 406 of Regulation S-K regarding certain amendments to or waivers from provisions of our

code of business conduct and ethics and code of ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and senior financial

officers by posting such information on our website Additionally our corporate governance guidelines and

the charters of the Audit Committee the Compensation Committee and the Nominating/Corporate

Gcivernance Committee of the Board of Directors are also available on our website copy of the codes

governance guidelines and charters will be provided to any of our stockholders upon request to Secretary

Willbros Group Inc 4400 Post Oak Parkway Suite 1000 Houston Texas 77027

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION and DIRECTOR COMPENSATION in the Proxy Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION and PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS AND SECURITY

ONWERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT in the Proxy Statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS and CORPORATE GOVERNANCE in the

Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled Fees of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy in the Proxy

Statement

133



PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Our financial statements and those of our subsidiaries and independent registered public accountingL

firms reports are listed in Item of this Form 10-K

Financial Statement Srchedule

2010

Form 10-IC

Pages

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Grant Thornton LLP 141

Schedule II Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 142

All other schedules are omitted as inapplicable or because the required information is containedin the

financial statements or included in the footnotes thereto

Exhibits

The following documents are included as exhibits to this Form 10-K Those exhibits below incorporated

by reference herein are indicated as such by the information supplied in the parenthetical thereafter Jf no

parenthetical appears after an exhibit suchexhibit is filed herewith

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 10 2008 among Willbros GroUplnc Delaware

corporation Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation and Willbros Merger Inc
Delaware corporation filed as Annex to the proxy statement/prospectus included in our

Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-155281

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 11 2010 among Willbros Group Inc Co Merger

Sub Inc Ho Merger Sub II LLC and InfrastruX Group Inc filed as Exhibit to our current report

on Form 8-K dated March 10 2010 filed March 16 2010

2.3 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Mergerdated as of May 17 2010 among Willbros Group

Inc Co Merger Sub Inc Ho Merger Sub II LLC and InfrastruX Group mc filed as Exhibit to

our current report on Form 8-K dated May 17 2010 filed May 20 2010

2.4 Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 22 2010 among Willbros

Group Inc Co Merger Sub Inc Ho Merger SublI LLC and InfrastruX Group Inc filed as Exhibit

to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 22 201Q filed June 28 2010

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our

current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

3.2 Bylaws of Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit 3.2 to our current report on

Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.1 Form of stock certificate for Common Stock par value $0.05 of Willbros Group lnc.a Delaware

corporation filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009

filed May 2009

4.2 Indenture including form of note dated March 12 2004 between Willbros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation and JPMorganChase Bank as trustee filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our report on

Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

4.3 First Supplemental Indenture dated September 22 2005 between Willbros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank as

trustee to the Indenture dated March 12 2004 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on

Form 8-K dated September 22 2005 filed September 28 2005
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4.4 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 2009 among Willbros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation and The Bank of New York

Mellon Trust Company N.A as successor in interest to JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A as trustee

filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.5 Indenture including form of note dated December 23 2905 among Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation Willbros USA Inc as guarantor and The Bank of New York as

trustee filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 21 2005 filed

December 23 2005

4.6 First Supplemental Indenture dated Novemb 2007 among Willbros Group Inc Republic of

Panama corporation Willbros USA Inc as guarantor and The Bank of New York as trustee to the

Indenture dated December 23 2005 among Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation Willbros USA Inc as guarantor and The Bank of New York as trustee filed as Exhibit

4.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 2007 filed November 2007

4.7 Waiver Agreement dated November 2007 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation and Portside Growth and Opportunity Fund with respect to the First Supplemental

Indenture listed in Exhibit 4.9 above filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

November 2007 filed November 2007

4.8 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 2009 among Willbros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation Willbros United States

Holdings Inc Delaware corporation formerly known as Willbros USA Inc and The Bank of

New York Mellon formerly known as The Bank of New York as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.2 to our

current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.9 Form of bonsent Agreement and Third Supplemental Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.2 to our current

report on Form 8-K dated March 10 2010 filed March 16 2010

4.10 Form of Amendment to Consent Agreement and Third Supplemental Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.3

to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2010 filed May 10 2010

4.11 Form of Warrant dated October 27 2006 filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K

dated October 26 2006 filed on October 27 2006

4.12 Warrant Assumption Agreement dated as of January 30 2009 between Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation and Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit

10.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.13 Stockholder Agreement dated as of March 11 2010 between Willbros Group Inc and InfrastruX

Holdings LLC filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 10 2010 filed

March 16 2010

4.14 Certificate of Designations of Series Preferred Stock filed as Exhibit to our current report on

Form 8-K dated June 30 2010 filed July 2010

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of June 30 2010 among Willbros United States Holdings lnc as

borrower Willbros Group Inc and certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors the lenders from time to

time party thereto Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank Credit Agricole as

Administrative Agent Collateral Agent Issuing Bank Revolving Credit Facility Sole Lead Arranger

Sole Bookrunner and participating Lender UBS Securities LLC UBS as Syndication Agent

Natixis The Bank of Nova Scotia and Capital One N.A as Co-Documentation Agents and Credit

Agricole and UBS as Term Loan Facility Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint BookrunnØrs filed as

Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 30 2010 filed on July 2010

10.2 Amendment No Ito Credit Agreement dated as of March 2011 among Willbros United States

Holdings Inc as borrower Willbros Group Inc and certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors and

certain lenders party to the Credit Agreement filed as Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K

dated March 2011 filed March 2011

10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement between our directors and officers and us filed as Exhibit 10 to

our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2009 filed August 2009
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10.4 Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as Exhibit 10.8 to our Registration Statement on

Form 5-1 Registration No 333-5413 the S-I Registration Statement

10.5 Amendment Nuæiber to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated Februry 24 1999 filed as

ExhibitAto our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated March 31 1999

10.6 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated March 2001 filed as Exhibit

to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 2001

10.7 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated January 2004 filed as

Exhibit 10.4 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

10.8 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated March 10 2004 filed as

Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 23 2004

10.9 Amendment Nurnber to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as Exhlbi to our Proxy

Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated July 2006

10.10 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1O96 $tock Plan dated March 27 2008 filed as

Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 23 2008

10.11 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated December 31 2008 filed as

Exhibit 10.12 to our report on Fprm 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed February 26
2009 the 2008 Form 10-K

.10.12 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated March 12 2009 filed as

Exhibit 10.12 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.13 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as

Exhibit 10.13 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996 filed March 31
1997 the 1996 Form 10-K

10.14 Form.of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan

filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the 1996Form 10-K

10.15 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as

Exhibit 10.6 to our report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May7 2004

10.16 Form of Restricted StockAward Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as

Exhibit 10.14 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 filed November 22
2005 the 2004 Form 10-K

10.17 Form of Restricted Stock Rights Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan

filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the 2004 Form 10-K

10.18 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan for

awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our report on Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.19 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan for

awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our report onForm 10-0 for the

quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.2O Form of Restripted Stock Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan for

awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.6 to our report on Form 10-0 for the

quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.21 Form of Restricted Stock Rights Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan

for awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our report on Form 10-0 for

the quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.22 Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the S-I Registration Statement

10.23 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan dated January 2002 filed as

Exhibit 10.13 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2001 filed February 20

2002
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10.24 Amendment Number to the Wilibros Group Inc Director Stock Plan dated February 18 2002 filed

as Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 30 2002

10.25 Amendment Number to the Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan dated January 2004 filed

as Exhibit 10.5 to our report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

10.26 Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted Stock Plan filed as Exhibit

10.19 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 filed February 29 2008

10.27 Amendment Number to Wilibros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted

Stock Plan dated March 27 2008 filed as Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of

Stockholders dated April 23 2008

10.28 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted

Stock Plan dated January 2010 filed as Exhibit 10.28 to our report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2009 filed March 11 2010 the 2009 Form 10-K

10.29 Amendment Number to Wilibros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted

Stock Plan dated August 25 2010 filed.as Exhibit 10.4 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 30 2010 filed November 2010

10.30 Assumption and General Amendment of Employee Stock Plan and Directors Stock Plans and

General Amendment of Employee Benefit Programs of Willbros Group Inc dated March 2009
between Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation and Willbros Group Inc
Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009
filed March 2009

10.31 Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit to our Proxy

Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 23 2010

10.32 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive

Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20
2010 filed September 22 2010

10.33 Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and

Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

September 20 2010 filed September 22 2010

10.34 Form of Phantom Stock Units Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and

Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

September 20 2010 filed September 22 2010

10.35 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and

Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.6 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

September 20 2010 filed September 22 2010

IQ.36 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive

Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20
2010 filed September 22 2010

10.37 Willbros Group Inc Severance Plan as amended and restated effective September 25 2003 filed

as Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2003 filed

November 13 2003

10.38 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Severance Plan dated December 31 2008 flIed as

Exhibit 10.25 to the 2008 Form 10-K

10.39 Willbros Group Inc Management Severance Plan as amended and restated effective January 24

2006 and Amendment Number thereto dated April 10 2006 filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the 2009

Form 10-K

10.40 Willbros GroUp Inc 2010 Management Severance Plan for Executives

10.41 Willbros Group Inc 2010 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan

10.42 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Willbros USA
Inc and Robert Randy Harl filed as Exhibit 10.29 to the 2008 Form 10-K
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10.43 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of March 23 2010

between Wilibros United States Holdings Inc and Robert Han filed as Exhibit 101 to our report

on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended March 31 2010 filed May 10 2010

10.44 Employment Agreement dated as of September 20 2010 between Willbros United States Holdings

Inc and RobeitR Harl filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20
2010 filed September 22 2010

10.45 Bonus Agreement dated as of September 20 2010 between Willbros United States Holdings Inc

and Robert Harl filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20
2010 filed September 22 2010

10.46 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Willbros USA
Inc and Van Welch filed as Exhibit 10.30 to the 2008 Form 10-K

10.47 Employment Agreement dated November 20 2007 between Integrated Service Company LLC and

Arlo Dekraai filed as Exhibit 10.32 to our report on Form 10-K for The year ended December 31
2007 filed February 29 2008

10.48 Amendment No.1 to Employment Agreement dated December 30 2008 between Integrated Service

Company LLC and Arlo DeKraai filed as Exhibit 10.33tp the 2008 Form 10-K

10.49 Separation Agreement and Release dated February 25 2010 between Willbros United States

Holdings Inc and its affiliate Integrated Service Company LLC and Arlo DeKraai filed as Exhibit

10.39 to the 2009 Form 10-K

10.50 Employment Agreement dated November 20 2007 between Integrated Service Company LLC and

Clayton Hughes and Amendment No thereto dated December 31 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.40

to the 2009 Form 10-K

10.51 Employment Agreement dated May 2006 between InfrastruX Group Inc and Michael Lennon

and Amendment thereto dated December 31 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 10-0

for the quarter ended September 30 2010 filed November 2010

10.52 Employment AreØment dated as of February 2011 between Willbros United States Holdings

Inc and Robert Berra

10.53 Amended and Restated Management Incentive Compensation Program Effective February 26

2008 filed as Exhibit 10 to our report on Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31 2008 filed

May 2008

10.54 Amendment Number to the Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated Management Incentive

Compensation Program filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

March 31 2010 filed May 10 2010

10.55 Purchase Agreement dated December 22 2005 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of

Panama corporation Willbros USA Inc and the purchasers set forth on Schedule thereto the
Purchase Agreemeht filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 21

2005 filed December 23 2005

10.56 Securities PurOhase Agreement dated October 26 20O6 by and amOng Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation and the buyers listed on the signature pages thereto the Buyers
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated October 26 2006 filed October 27

2006

10.57 Registration Rights Agreement dated October 27 2006 by and among Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation and each of the Buyers filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our current report

on Form 8-K dated October 26 2006 filed October 27 2006

10.58 Share Purchase Agreement dated February 2007 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of

Panama corporation and Ascot Offshore Nigeria Limited filed as Exhibit 10.40 to our report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 filed March 14 2007

10.59 Indemnity Agreement dated February 2007 among Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation Willbros International Inc Ascot Offshore Nigeria Limited and Berkeley Group plc filed
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as Exhibit 10.41 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 filed March 14

2007

10.60 Global Settlement Agreement dated August 15 2007 among Ascot Offshore Nigeria Limited

Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation Willbros International Services Nigeria
Limited and Berkeley Group PLC filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 10-0 for the quarter

ended September 30 2007 filed November 2007

10.61 Share Purchase Agreement dated October 31 2007 among Willbros USA Inc Willbros GroJp

Inc Republic of Panama corporation Integrated Service Company LLC the persons listed on the

shareholders schedule attached thereto the Shareholders and the Shareholders Representative

filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 20 2007 filed November 27

2007

10.62 Amendment No to Share Purchase Agreement dated November 20 2007 among Willbros USA
Inc Integrated Service Company LLC and Arlo Dekraai as Shareholders Representative filed

as Exhibit 2.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 20 2007 filed November 27
2007

10.63 Deferred Prosecution Agreement among Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation

Willbros International Inc and the Department of Justice filed on May 14 2008 with the United

States District Court Southern District of Texas Houston Division filed as Exhibit 10 to our current

report on Form 8-K dated May 14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

21 Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Willbros Group Inc and Willbros International Inc Information document filed on May 14 008 by

the United States Attorneys Office for the Southern District of Texas and the United States

Department of Justice filed as Exhibit 99.1 to our current report pn Form 8-Kdated May 14 2008
filed on May 15 2008

99.2 Complaint by the Securities and Exchange Commission Willbros Group Inc filed on May 14
2008 with the United States District Court Southern District of Texas Houston Division filed as

Exhibit 99.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated May 14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

99.3 Consent of Willbros Group Inc filed as Exhibit 99.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated May
14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

99.4 Agreed Judgment as to Willbros Group Inc filed as Exhibit 99.4 to our current report on Form 8-K

dated May 14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

WILLBROS GROUP INC

Date March 14 2011 By IsI Robert Harl

is Robert Harl

Robert Harl

Director President and

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

March 14 2011

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Director and Chairman of the Board

Director

Director March 2011

Robert Harl

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below

bythe following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

is Van Welch

Van Welch

March 142011

March 14 2011

March 14 2011

is John McNabb II

John McNabb II

is Michael Bayer

Michael Bayer

William Berry

is Arlo DeKraai

Arlo DeKraai

Edward DiPaolo

Alan Levande

is Daniel Lonergan

Daniel Lonergan

Robert Sluder

is Miller Williams

Miller Williams

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 142011

March 2011

March 2011

March 142011

March 2011

March 142011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Willbros Group Inc

We have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated financial statements of Willbros Group Inc and Subsidiaries referred to in

our report dated March 14 2011 which is included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K Our audits of the

basic financial statements included the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item

15 a2 which is the responsibility of the Companys management In our opinion this financial statement

schedule when considered ip relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in

all material respects the information set forth therein

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Houston Texas

March 14 2011
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WILLBROS GROUP INC

SCHEDULE II- CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
In thousands

Charged

Credited
Balance at to Costs Charge Balance

Beginning and Offs and at End

Year Ended Description of Year Expense Other of Year

December 31 2008 Allowance for Bad Debts 1108 2403 1960 1551

December 31 2009 Allowance for Bad Debts 1551 664 279 1936

December 31 2010 Allowance for Bad Debts 1936 2887 324 4499
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The following documents are included as exhibits to this Form 10-K Those exhibits below incorporated

by reference herein are indicated as such by the information supplied in the parenthetical thereafter If no

parenthetical appears after an exhibit such exhibit is filed herewith

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 10 2008 among Willbros Group Inc Delaware

corporation Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation and Willbros Merger Inc

Delaware corporation filed as Annex to the proxy statement/prospectus included in our

Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-155281

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 11 2010 among WilIbros Group Inc Co Merger

Sub Inc Ho Merger Sub II LLC and InfrastruX Group Inc filed as Exhibit to our current report

on Form 8-K dated March 10 2010 filed March 16 2010

2.3 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 17 2010 among Willbros Group

Inc Co Merger Sub Inc Ho Merger Sub II LLC and IrifrastruX Group Inc filed as Exhibit to

our current report on Form 8-K dated May 17 2010 flIed May 20 2010

2.4 Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 22 2010 among Willbros

Group Inc Co Merger Sub Inc Ho Merger Sub LLC and InfrastruX Group Inc filed as Exhibit

to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 22 2010 filed June 28 2010

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our

current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

3.2 Bylaws of Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit 3.2 to our current report on

Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.1 Form of stock certificate for Common Stock par value $0.05 of Willbros Group Inc Delaware

corporation filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009
filed May 2009

4.2 Indenture including form of note dated March 12 2004 between Willbros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation and JPMorganChase Bank as trustee filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our report on

Form 10-Q for thequarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

4.3 First Supplemental Indenture dated September 22 2005 between Willbros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A successor to JPMorgan Chase Bank as

trustee to the Indenture dated March 12 2004 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on

Form 8-K dated September 22 2005 filed September 28 2005

4.4 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 2009 among Wilibros Group Inc Republic

of Panama corporation Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation and The Bank of New York

Mellon Trust Company N.A as successor in interest to JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A as trustee

filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.5 Indenture including form of note dated December 23 2005 among Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation Willbros USA Inc as guarantor and The Bank of New York as

trustee filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Forth 8-K dated December 21 2005 filed

December 23 2005

4.6 First Supplemental Indenture dated November 2007 among Willbros Group Inc Republic of

Panama corporation Willbros USA Inc as guarantor and The Bank of New York as trustee to the

Indenture dated December 23 2005 among Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation Willbros USA Inc as guarantor and The Bank of New York as trustee filed as Exhibit

4.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 2007 filed November 2007

4.7 Waiver Agreement dated November 2007 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation and Portside Growth and Opportunity Fund with respect to the First Supplemental

Indenture listed in Exhibit 4.9 above filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

November 2007 filed November 2007
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4.8 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 2009 among Willbros Group Inc.a Republic

of Panama corporation Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation Willbros United States

Holdings Inc Delaware corporation formerly known as Willbros USA Inc and The Bank of

New York Mellon formerly known as The Bank of New York as trustee filed as Exhibit 4.2 to our

current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.9 Form of Consent Agreement and Third Supplemental Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.2 to our current

report on Form 8-K dated March 10 2010 filed March 16 2010

4.10 Form of Amendment to Consent Agreement and Third Supplemental Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.3

to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2010 filed May 10 2010

4.11 Form of Warrant dated October 27 2006 filed as Exhibit 16.2 to our current report on Form 8-K

dated October 26 2006 filed on October 27 2006

4.12 Warrant Assumption Agreement dated as of January 30 2009 between Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation and Willbros Group Inc Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit

10.3 to our current report on Form 8-Kdated March 2009 filed March 2009

4.13 Stockholder Agreement dated as of March 11 2010 between Willbros Group Inc and InfrastruX

Holdings LLC filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 10 2010 filed

March 16 2010

4.14 Certificate of Designations of Series Preferred Stock filed as Exhibit to our current report on

Form 8-K dated June 30 2010 filed July 2010

10.1 Credit Agreement dated as of June 30 2010 among Willbros United States Holdings Inc as

borrower Willbros Group Inc and certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors the lenders from time to

time party thereto Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank CØdit gricole as

Administrative Agent Collateral Agent Issuing Bank Revolving Credit Facility Sole Lead Arranger

Sole Bookrunner and participating Lender UBS Securities LLC UBS as Syndication Agent

Natixis The Bank of Nova Scotia and Capital One N.A as Co-Documentation AgentS and Credit

Agricole and UBS as Term Loan Facility Joint Lead Arrangers arid Joint BopkrunnØrs filed as

Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K dated June 30 2010 filed on July 2010

10.2 Amendment No to Credit Agreement dated as of March 2011 among Willbros United States

Holdings Inc as borrower Willbros Group Inc and certain of its subsidiaries as .gUarantors and

certain lenders party to the Credit Agreement filed as Exhibit 10 to our current report on Form 8-K

dated March 42011 filed March 92011

10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement between our directors and officers arid us filed as Exhibit 10 to

our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2009 filed August 2009

10.4 Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as Exhibit 10.8 to our Registration Statement on

Form S-I Registration No 333-5413 the S-I Registration Statement

10.5 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated February 24 1999 filed as

Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated March 31 1999

10.6 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated March 2001 filed as Exhibit

to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 2001

10.7 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated January 2004 filed as

Exhibit 10.4 to our report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

10.8 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated March 10 2004 filed as

Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 23 2004

10.9 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as Exhibit to our Proxy

Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated July 2006

10.10 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated MSch 27 2008 filed as

Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meetin of Stockholders dated April 23 2908
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10.11 Amendment Number to Wilibros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated December 31 2008 filed as

Exhibit 10.12 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 filed February 26
2009 the 2008 Form 10-K

10.12 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan dated March 1.2 2009 filed as

Exhibit 10.12 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.13 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as

Exhibit 10.13 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996 filed March 31
1997 the 1996 Form 10-K

10.14 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan

filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the 1996 Form 10-K

10.15 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as

Exhibit 10.6 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

10.16 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreemept under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan filed as

Exhibit 10.14 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 filed November 22
2005 the 2004 Form 10-K

10.17 Form of Restricted Stock Rights Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan

filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the 2004 Form 10-K

10.18 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan for

awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

1019 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan for

awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.20 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan for

awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.6 to our report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

.10.21 Form of Restricted Stock Rights Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 1996 Stock Plan

for awards granted on or after March 12 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended March 31 2009 filed May 2009

10.22 Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the 5-1 Registration Statement

10.23 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan dated January 2002 filed as

Exhibit 10.13 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2001 filed February 20
2002

10.24 Amendment Number to the Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan dated February 18 2002 filed

as Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 30 2002

10.25 Amendment Number to the Willbros Group Inc Director Stock Plan dated January 2004 filed

as Exhibit 10.5 to our report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 filed May 2004

10.26 Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted Stock Plan filed as Exhibit

10.19 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 filed February 29 2008

10.27 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted

Stock Plan dated March 27 2008 filed as Exhibit to our Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of

Stockholders dated April 23 2008

10.28 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted

Stock Plan dated January 2010 filed as Exhibit 10.28 to our report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2009 filed March 11 2010 the 2009 Form 10-K

10.29 Amendment Number to Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated 2006 Director Restricted

Stock Plan dated August 25 2010 filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 30 2010 filed November 2010
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10.30 Assumption and General Amendment of Employee Stock Plan arid Directors Stopk Plans and

General Amendment of Employee Benefit Programs of Willbros Group Inc dated March 2009

between Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation and Willbros Group Inc
Delaware corporation filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 2009

filed March 2009

10.31 Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit to our Proxy

Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated April 23 2010

10.32 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive

Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20

2010 filed September 22 2010

10.33 Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and

Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

September 20 2010 filed September 22 2010

10.34 Form of Phantom Stock Units Award Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and

Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

September 20 2010 filed September 22 2010

10.35 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stockand

Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.6 to our current report on Form 8-K dated

September 20 2010 filed September 22 2010

10.36 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Willbros Group Inc 2010 Stock and Incentive

Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20
2010 filed September 22 2010

10.37 Willbros Group Inc Severance Plan as amended and restated effective September 25 2003 filed

as Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2003 filed

November 13 2003

10.38 Amendment Number ito Willbros Group Inc Severance Plan dated December 31 2008 filed as

Exhibit 10.25 to the 2008 Form 10-K

10.39 Willbros Group Inc Management Severance PIari as amended and restated effective Jahuar 24

2006 and Amendment Number thereto dated April 10 2006 filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the 2009

Form 10-K

iO.40 Willbros Group Inc 2010 Management Severance Plan for Executives

iO.41 Willbros Group Inc 2010 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan

10.42 Amended and Restated EmIoyment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between WiUbros USA
Inc and Robert Randy Harl filed as Exhibit 10.29 to the 2908 Form 10-K

iO.43 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement ated as Qt March 23 2010

between Willbros United States Holdings Inc and Robert Harl filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our report

on FormiO-Qforthe quarterended March 31 20i0 filed May 10 2010

10.44 Employment Agreement daTted as of September 20 20i0 between Wilibros United States Holdings

Inc and Robert Harl filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20

2010 filed September 22 2010

iO.45 Bonus Agreement dated as of September 20 2010 between WilibroC United States Holdings Inc

and Robert Harl filed as Exhibit iO.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated September 20
20i0 filed September 22 20i0

iO.46 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 betWeen WHIbos USA
Inc and Van Welch filed as Exhibit 1030 to-the 2008 Forrri 10-K

iO.47 Employment Agreement dated lovember 20 2007 between Integrated Service Company LLC and

Arlo Dekraai filed as Exhibit iO.32 to our report on Form 10-K fothe year ended DeceFnber 31

2007 filed February 29 2008
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10.48 Amendment No.1 to Employment Agreement dated December 30 008 between Integrated Service

Company LLC and Arlo peKraai filed as Exhibit 10.33 to the 2008 Form 10-K.

10.49 Separation Agreement arid Release dated February 25 2010 between Willbros United States

Holdings Inc and its affiliate Integrated Service Company LLC and Arlo DeKraai filed as Exhibit

10.39 to the 2009 Form 10-K

10.50 Employment Agreement dated November 20 2007 between Integrated Service Company LLC and

Clayton Hughes and Amendment No thereto dated December 31 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.40

to the 2009 Form 10-K

10.51 Employment Agreement dated May 2006 between InfrastruX Group Inc and Michael Lennon

and Amendment thereto dated December 31 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended September 30 2010 filed NoveAiber 2010

10.52 Employment Agreement dated as of February 2011 between Wilibros United States Holdings

Inc and Robert Berra

10.53 Amended and Restated Management lrcentive Compensation Program Effective February 26

2008 filed as Exhibit 10 to our report on Form 10-Qfor the quarter ended March 31 2008 filed

May 2008

10.54 Amendment Number to the Willbros Group Inc Amended and Restated Management Incentive

Compensation Program filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

March 31 2010 filed May 10 2010

10.55 Purchase Agreement dated December 22 2005 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of

Panama corporation Willbros USA Inc and the purchasers set forth on Schedule thereto the
Purchase Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 21
2005 filed December 23 2005

10.56 Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 26 2006 by and among Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation and the buyers listed on the signature pages thereto the Buyers
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated October 26 2006 filed October 27

2006

10.57 Registration Rights Agreement dated October 27 2006 by and among Willbros Group Inc

Republic of Panama corporation and each of the Buyers filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our current report

on Form 8-K dated October 26 2006 filed October 27 2006

10.58 Share Purchase Agreement dated February 2007 between Willbros Group Inc Republic of

Panama corporation and Ascot Offshore Nigeria Limited filed as Exhibit 10.40 to our report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December31 2006 filed March 14 2007

10.59 Indemnity Agreement dated February 2007 among Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama

corporation Willbros International Inc Ascot Offshore Nigeria Limited and Berkeley Group plc filed

as Exhibit 10.41 to our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 filed March 14

2007

10.60 Global Settlement Agreement dated August 15 2007 among Ascot Offshore Nigeria Limited

Willbros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation Willbros International Services Nigeria
Limited and Berkeley Group PLC filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 30 2007 filed November 2007

10.61 Share Purchase Agreement dated October 31 2007 among Willbros USA Inc Willbros Group

Inc Republic of Panama corporation Integrated Service Company LLC the persons listed on the

shareholders schedule attached thereto the Shareholders and the Shareholders Representative

filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Our current report on Form 8-K dated November 20 2007 filed November 27

2007

10.62 Amendment No to Share Purchase Agreement dated November 20 2007 among Willbros USA
Inc Integrated Service Company LLC and Arlo Dekraai as Shareholders Representative filed

as Exhibit 2.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated November 20 2007 filed November 27

2007
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10.63 Deferred Prosecution Agreement among Wilibros Group Inc Republic of Panama corporation

Willbros International Inc and the Department of Justice filed on May 14 2008 with the United

States District Court Southern District of Texas Houston Division filed as Exhibit 10 to our current

report on Form 8-K dated May 14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

21 Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 3a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Willbros Group Inc and Willbros International Inc Information document filed on May 14 2008 by

the United States Attorneys Office for the Southern District of Texas and the United States

Department of Justice filed as Exhibit 99.1 to our current report on Form 8-K dated May 14 2008
filed on May 15 2008

99.2 Complaint by the Securities and Exchange Commission Wilibros Group Inc filed on May 14
2008 with the United States District Court Southern District of Texas Houston Division filed as

Exhibit 99.2 to our current report on Form 8-K dated May 14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

99.3 Consent of Willbros Group Inc filed as Exhibit 99.3 to our current report on Form 8-K dated May
14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

99.4 Agreed Judgment as to Willbros Group Inc filed as Exhibit 99.4 to our ôurrent report on Form 8-K

dated May 14 2008 filed on May 15 2008

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

Wilibros Group Inc

We have issued our reports dated March 14 2011 with respect to the consolidated financial statements

ahd schedule and internal control over financial reporting included in the Annual Report of Willbros Group

Inc on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2019 We hereby consent to the incorporation by

refererce of said reports in the registration statements Nos 333-18421-01 333-53748-01 333-74290-01

333-135543-01 333-139353-01 333-151795-01 333-151796-01 and 333-167940 on Form S-8 of Willbros

Group Inc

Is Grant Thornton LLP

Houston Texas

March 14 2011
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Robert Han certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Willbros Group Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the

registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 14 2011 IsI Robert Harl

Robert Harl

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Van Welch certify that

.1 have reviewedthis Annual Report on Form 10-K of Willbros Group Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the

registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 14 2011 /5/ Van Welch

Van Welch

Chief Financial Officer

151



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 USC SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Willbros Group Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiqn on the date hereof the

Report Robed Harl Chief Executive Officer of the Company hereby certify pursuant to 18 USC
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesrOxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Date March 14 2011 Is/Robert Harl

Robed Harl

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 USC SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Willbros Group Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Van Welch Chief Financial Officer of the Company hereby certify pursuant to 18 USC
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Date March 14 2011 Is Van Welch

Van Welch

Chief Financial Officer
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iNILLBROS GROUP INC

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

John McNabb II 66

Chairman

John McNabb II age 66 has served as non-executive

Chairman of the Board since September 2007 He was elected to

the Board of Directors in August 2006 Mr MeNabb is founder

and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Growth Capital

Partners L.P an investment and merchant banking firm that has

provided financial advisory servsces to middle market companies

throughout the United States since 1992 He has served as

Principal of Southwest Mezzanine Investments the investment

affiliate of Growth Capital Partners L.P since 2001 Previously he

was Managsng Director of Bankers Trust NewYork Corporation

and Board uscmber uf BT Southwest Inc the southwest U.S

merchant banking affiliate of Bankers Trust from 1989 to 1992

Mr McNabb started his career after serving in the U.S Air

Force during the Vietnam conflict with Mobil Oil in its

exploration and production division He has served on the boards

of seven public companies including Hiland Partners LP Warrior

Energy Services Corporation Hugoton Energy Corporaton and

Vintage Petroleum Inc and currently serves on the board of

Continental Resources Inc Mr McNabb earned both hss

undergraduate degree and MBA from Duke Umversity

Mr McNabbs service as partner in two independent

exploration and pmduction companies shareholder company

specializing in directional drilling his extensive expersence

leading management teams and serving as financial advisor to

energy industry companies enables him to chair our Board of

Directors with respect to industry matters His background in

finance also provides the necessary expertise to serve on the

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and to be

considered one of our audit committee financial experts Mr

McNabbs sigmficant prior and current service on the boards

of numerous pubbc and private companies ideally suit him

in petroleum industry finance corporate governance and

oversight matters to serve as Chairman of the Board

Robert Han 60

Director President And Chief Executive Officer

Robert Harl age 60 was elected to the Board of Directors

and President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company in

January 2006 and as Chief Executive Officer in January 2007 He

currently serves as President and Chief Executive Officer and is

member of the Executive Leadership Team Mr Harl has over 30

years experience working with Kellogg Brown Root 15K
global engineering construction and services company and its

subsidiaries in
variety

of officer capacities serving as President of

several of the KBR business units Mr Harls experience includes

executive management responsibilities
for units serving both

upstream and downstream oil and
gas sectors as well as power

government and infrastructure sectors He was President and Chief

Executive Officer of KBR from March 2001 untdJuly 2004 when

he was appointed Chairman osition he held untilJanuary 2005

KBR filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S

Bankruptcy Code in December 2003 in order to discharge certain

asbestos and silica personal injury claims The order confirming

KBRs plan of reorganization became final in December 2004 and

the plan of reorgamzation became effective in January 2005

Mr Harl was engaged as consultant to the Company fmm August

2005 untd he became an executive officer and director of the

Company in January 2006

As the current President and CEO of the Company Mr Harl

provides management representative on the Board of Directors

with extensive knowledge of our day to day operations As

result he can facilitate the Board of Directors access to timely and

relevant information and its oversight of managements strategy

planning and performance In addition Mr Harl brings to the

Board of Directors considerable management and leadership

experience and extensive knowledge of the international energy

industry and our business especially
as it relates to engineering

procurement and construction

Michael Bayer 63

Director

Michael Bayer age 63 was elected to the Board of Directors

in December 2006 Mr Bayer is the President and CEO of

Dumbarton Straregies.Wachingrnn D.C which prnvides advicnry

services for
strategic positioning and merger and acquisition within

the energy and national security sectors Mr Bayer also serves as

Director of SIGA Technologies Inc In addition he isa Member of

the Defense Science Board the Sandia National Laboratorys

National Security Advisory Panel and the Chief of Naval

Operations Executive Panel Mr Bayers previous U.S

Government service included appointments as Chairman of the

Defense Business Board Member of the Board of Visitors of the

United States Military Academy Chairman of the Army Science

Board Member of the U.S Naval War College Board of Visitors

Chairman of the Secretary of Air Forces Advisory Group and

Member of the U.S European Command Senior Advisory Group

Earlier in his career he was Counsel to senior member of the U.S

House of Representatives Deputy Assistant Secretary at the U.S

Department Of Energy Malcolm Baldriges Associate Deputy

Secretary of Commerce Counselor to the United States Synthetic

Fuels Corporation Counselor to President Bushs Commission on

Aviation Security and Terrorism and the Federal Inspector for the

Alaska Natural Gas Transportation System Mr Bayer has previously

served as member of the Board of Directors of EGG Inc

Duratek Inc Athena Inc Stratos Global and Dyncorp

International Inc Mr Bayers education includes Bachelor of

Science in International Economics Master of Business

Administration and
Juris Doctor

William Berry 58

Director

William Berry age 58 was elected to the Board of Directors

in February 2008 Mr Berry served as Executive Vice President

Exploration and Production of ConocoPhillips major



international integrated energy company from 2003 until hii

retirement in January 2008 He hai over 30
years

of experience

with ConocoPhillips and Phillips Petroleum Company which

became
part

of ConocoPhillips in August 2002.While with these

compames he served at various times in other executive positions

including President Asia Pacific Senior Vice President of

Exploration and Production Eurasia Middle East Vice President

of Exploration and Production Eurasia Vice President of

International Exploration and Production NewVenturcs Country

Manager for International Exploration and Production in China

Manager Corporate Planning and Operations Manager

responsible for exploration and production and
gas gathering and

processing for Phillips Permian Basin operations He served these

companies in various locations including London England

Abidjan Ivory Coast Stavanger Norway Shekou and Beijing

China and Singapore Mr Berry was recognized by the

government of China as one of the 31 outstanding foreign experts

in 1996 He currendy serves on the Board of Directors of Nexen Inc

Arlo Dekraai 63

Director

Arlo DeKraai age 63 was elected to the Board of Directors

in November 2007 Mr DeKraai joined Willbros in November

2007 in conjunction with the acquisition of the Companys

Downstream business segment InServ and served as President

of that segment and Executive Vice President of Willbros Group

Inc until his retirement in February 2010 Prior to the acquisition

he was Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of

InServ downstream construction turnaround maintenance and

turnkey projects company he founded in 1994 as Cust 0-Fab

Service Co Mr DeKraas has over 40
years experience working

in the downstream oil and
gas construction turnaround and

maintenance industries He began his career working for Texaco

Inc in its refining operations He entered the construction and

turnaround business in various capacities and ultimately was the

founder and President of Midwest Industrial Contractors in 1983

provider of construction and maintenance services for the

refinery and petrochemical sector Mr DeKraai was named

Distinguished Engineer of South Dakota State University

SDSU in 2005 and serves on the Board of Governors of The

Enterprise Institute an affiliate of SDSU

Edward Dipaolo 58

Director

Edward DiPaolo age 58 was elected to the Board of

Directors in May 2009 Mr DiPaolo is an Energy Partner fur

Growth Capital Partners L.P an investment and merchant banking

firm and has served in that capacity since 2003 From 1976 to

2002 Mr DiPaolo was with Haffiburton Company most recently

as Group Senior Vice President of Global Business Development

Previously he was the North American Regional Vice President

and Far East Regional Vice President within Halliburron In this

role Mr DiPaolo was responsible for the overall operations of

Halliburton Energy Services North American and Far East

operations He currently serves on the board of directors of the

following SEC reporting companies Evolution Petroleum

Corporation and Edgen Murray Corporation as well as several

private company boards including Bourland and Leverich LLC

Mr DiPaulo also serves as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

of Inwell Directional Drilling He has also served on the boards of

Superior Well Services Inc Boots Coots Inc where he also

served as interim Chairman of the Board and Innercor

Subsurface Technologies Mr DiPaolo received his undergraduate

degree in Agricultural Engineering from West Virginia University

in 1976 and serves on the Advisory Board for the West Virginia

University College of Engineering

Alan Levande 54

Director

Alan Levande age 54 has served on the Board of Directors

since July 2010 subsequent to the closing of the acquisition of

InfrastruX Group Inc Mr Levande is Senior Managing Director

and founding member of Tenaska Capital Management and has

approximately 30 years of experience in the
energy and power

industries He was previously senior investment banker and

devoted almost his entire 20 year investment banking career to the

power industry In his capacity as an investment banker Mr

Levande has arranged wide variety of acquisitions divestitures

initial publlc offerings other equity related offerings investment

and non investment grade corporate debt transactions and project

and lease financings Tenaska manages two power and energy

focused
private equity funds which have approximately $4 billion

in assets under management

Prior to joining Tenaska Capital Management Mr Levande

spent 10 yeats at Goldman Sachs as Managing Director in the

Investment Banking Natural Resources Group with responsibility

for Goldmans unregulated power business efforts He also worked

closely with many of Goldmans largest integrated electric utility

clients In addition he was actively involved in Goldmans principal

investment activities in the power industry Prior to joining

Goldman in 1992 Mr Lcvande worked at Salomon Brothers as

Director and Co-Manager of its Project Finance and Independent

Power Group Mr Levande graduated from the Wharton School of

the University of Pennsylvania with B.S in Accounting and an

M.B.A in Finance

Daniel Lonergan 54

Director

Daniel Lonergan age 54 has served on the Board of

Directors since July 2010 subsequent to the closing of the

acquisition of InfrastruX Group Inc Mr Lonergan is Senior

Managing Director and founding member of Tenaska Capital

Management He has more than 25 years experience in the energy

and power industries sn finance mergers acquisitions strategic

planning business development financial reporting and

administration Tenaska manages two power and energy focused

private equity funds which have approximately $4 billion in assets

under management

Mr Lonergan joined Tenaska in 1997 as Vice President in

Tenaskas finance division Prior to joining Tenaska Mr Lonergan

held
variety

of executive
positions in the energy sector including

Vice President of Finance for the non regulated businesses of
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Robert Sluder 61

Di cctor
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Jattctat 1996 to Decctttbet 20ff Mr Shader set ved as Seittot Vice

Pt estdettt aitci Gcttcral Mattagcr of Dciit Rh er ft out 993 to 1996

attd ts ltrec tot Opet atictits fctr Kern Rivet ft ott 199 to 1995

ft tctr to titat tttttc ftc Itelci vat ic ty cf tigitte et tttd

cottstrctcttott supet 150t
posittotis

ss itlt sat uwis
cotttpatttes

Miller Williams 59

Ditct Ot

MtllerWtlliattts age 39ss ts elected to tlte Boatd of Iitectots

iii May ffff4 Stttce Attgust 211119 ftc has hectt hecitttve Vice

larestdettt Fittatc attd Adttttttistratictt ctf Solthet itt Litet
gy

LLC

ettess able ettecgs itis esttttettt
cotttpaits

He It ts beett Mattagtttg

Dtrcctot of Wtllvest LLC ait tttvcstuttettt attd corporate

dcveloptttettt advtsot ftu nt stitce ffff4 He was Esecctttve Vice

Pt esiclent of Stt ategic Developtttettt of Vat tec Tclecottt lttc au

tittertiattottal eottsct itter teleeottttttu uticattoits set ices otttpatts

frottt August ff1 ittil Mas fff attd ss as appctttttecf Chief

Ft itattetal Offic ci ctf Vat tec itt Nos ettther ffff3 Ft Ott 2ffffff to

Augctst 211113 Mt Wtlliattts ssas hecctttve Cltatrtttatt of tlte

Beau of Pow end ittc publt cotttpattv that pros ided

telec ottttttctntcatiotts services itt Atistralia Ft Ott 99 to ffff ftc

sets ed itt sat tocts e\eecttise posittoits itlt Wtlltattts

Cotttttct tticatiotts Gt oup suhsidtat of The Wtlliatuts
otttpanies

tltat pits ided global ttetss ctrk attd broadband ittedia sets ices svhete

Itis last
posttiott svas Settitr Vice Resident Cot

pctr tte

Des elctptttettt Gettet al
attaget ittet ttatiottal attd Cltairtitait of

WCG Vetttotes tlte cotttpattvs etiture capital fctttd

Aodtt Cotttttttttee

Ncttttutatt
tig

ot
pot ate Gos ci attc Cotttttttttec

Cctuutpcttsati out otttttttttec

E.ccottse otttttttttce

tttcftcates ccttttttittee cltatt ttt.ttt

Boatd Pbcto Stctttdio It/i to tç/tt Edss aid DiP tolo Alan Lcv tttdc Robe Slcider Arlo DcKraai Datttcl Lttttcrgan

Wtlltattt Bt ry

Setfcd It/i to ttg/tt
Michael BayctJohtt McNabb II Robct U. Hail Millet Wtlliattts



CORPORATE DATA

INVESTOR INFORMATION

copy of the Companys Annual repoi to tile Seeorities

and Exchange Comnussion Fox no ill 1K is available upon

written request to Investor Relations Wilibros Gioup

Inc Five Post Oak Park 4400 Post Oak Parkway Sote

1000 Houston Texas 77027

Investor Relations Contact

Michael Coliiei

Vice Presidenl nvestor Relations

Sales and Maiketing

Wilibios United States Holdings Inc

713 403 8038

nnke.colher@wiilbi os.cOill

Common Stock Information

and Dividend Policy

The Conopanys common stock trades on the New Yoik

Stock Exchange undei the symbol WG As of April

0i there sere 227 stockholders of iecord The table

below sets forth the common stock tradmg price by quartei

foi 2009 and 2110 The Company does not presently pay

common stock dividend and piesently intends to ietano

its earnuogs to hind the development and tutui growth of

the business

Annual CEO Certification

The annual CEO Cci tibcation regarding the New Yoi

Stock Exchanges corporate governance listing standards

required by Section 303A 12a of the New York Stock

Exchange Listed Company Manual was piovided to the

NewYoik Stock Exchange on July 62010

CORPORATE OFFICES

Headquarters Office

Wilibi os Group Inc

Five Post Oak Paik

4400 Post Oak Park\vay Suite 1000

HoustonTexas 77027

713 403 8001

\v\vwAvillbios corn

Stock Transfer Agent And Registrar

Mellon Investor Sei vices LLC

Newport Office Center VII

480 Woshington Boulevard

Jersey City New Jersey 073 10

800 635 9270

w\v\\ine1lon investoi.cono

Corporate Secretary

V/iilbros Group Inc

Lori Pindei

Comparison Of Cumulative

Five Year Total Return

$300

$250

tnn

$50

_z_-._

2005 2006 2001 2008 2009 2010

4--Wilibros Group Inc tSP 000 Index SP 500 tonuiruuion Engineering Index

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

2010

High Low

18.51 11.57

13.76 7.36

9.75 6.80

10.02 9.69

2009

High Low

11.64 5.85

17.01 9.21

15.58 10.78

18.11 12.59Fourth Quarter



EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP

Robert Han 60

Diieeto Pies ident

and Chief Executive Of/ices

Willbios Group Inc

Van Welch 56

Senior Vice Ps esiddllt

and Chief Einasseial Of/leer

Willbios Gioup Inc

Peter Arbour 62

Seino Vice Pies ident

and Ct neiai Cassss tel

Wilibros Gioup Inc

James Gibson 60

Chief Opeiatint 0//ieee

Willbros Group Inc

Robert Berra 43

Lx cc utive Vise Pi isis/en

Stiles asic1 .\Iaikctini

Wilibios Group Isic

Jernit Coward 42

Pies ideist

Vdillbios Upstream Oil Gas

Richard Cellon 54

J5res ic/cut

\Xtillbios oss nstreani Oil Gas

Michael Giarratano 58

Chief Opeisitinçi Off leer

VJillbios Utility Tl

Kevin Fleury 52

Piesident

Vi1lbios Canada

OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT

James Gibson 60

Chief Opesatisig Officer

Willbros Group Inc

Jerrit Coward 42

Pies nient

WilIbi os Upsn cain Oil Gas

Pies ic/cut

VVillbros U.S Consn uction

Edward Wiegele 50

Prc sidrist

Villbros Engincci nip

Latif Razek 64

Viii Pu cc/dent lit/tile st Opi sation

Vice Pu cc/dent and lasso çiuç lii ci tar

The Oman Construction Co loco

Richard Cellon 54

ihesident

Jillbi us os nsn cani Oil Gas

Michael Giarratano 58

Chief peratinu Of/its

WiIltns Unlit

Kevin Fleury 52

Ps es ident

Villbios Canada

Harry New 48

Anthony Farris 52

Pu us ident

Wink Engincci nip




